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Asout VFG

VFG 18 THE HOLDING COMPANY FOR PLANTERS BANK & TrusT COMPANY
OF VIRGINIA (IN STAUNTON), SECOND BanK & TRUST (FREDERICKSBURG)
AND VIRGINIA COMMONWEALTH TRUST Company (CULPEPER). THE
COMPANY IS A TRADITIONAL COMMUNITY BANKING PROVIDER, OFFERING A
FULL RANGE OF BUSINESS AND CONSUMER BANKING SERVICES INCLUDING
TRUST AND ASSET MANAGEMENT SERVICE VIA ITS TRUST COMPANY AFFILIATE.
THE ORGANIZATION MAINTAINS A NETWORK OF FORTY BRANCHES SERVING

NORTHERN, CENTRAL AND SOUTHWEST VIRGINIA. [T ALSO MAINTAINS FIVE

TRUST AND INVESTMENT SERVICE QOFFICES IN ITS MARKETS.
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS (unvavoren)

2006 2005 2004 2003
Total Revenue. $ 75630 $ 72 288 $ 65318 § 58,697
Net Income | $ 19497 §$ 18, 216 $ 15203 % 13,492
Diluted Earnings Per Share!" $ 1.80 % 1‘!.68 $ 1.41 % 1.25
Assets $1,625,989 $1 ,505,‘l|84 © $1,449,608 $1,387,211
Stockholders’|Equity $ 150,652 § 136105 § 127,089 $ 119,830
Return on Awlsrage Equity 13.57% 1?1‘.86% 12.40% 11.47%
Efficiency Ratio 60.54% 59/32% 61.12% 64.42%
Dividends Per Common Share $ 0.61 $ 0!56 $ 0.52 3 0.50
Book Value Pér Share $ 1397 § 1206 § 1183 $ 1107
Market Capitalization $ 300,019 $ 257,:2:86 $ 262,541 S 254,070
Employees 580 520 512 510
Financial Centers 40 37 37 37

(1) Adjusted for 3-for-2 stock split
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To Our SHAREHOLDERS, CUSTOMERS AND EMPLOYEES -

o~

BUILDING ON OUR SUCCESS, 2006

When we describe Virginia Financial Group as a “tradi-
tional community banking pr‘ovider,” the words calll to
mind tellers who grew up with their depositors, Ioan
officers who understand clients’ dreams, and directors
who have a personal stake in their community. This
picture is true to who we are’But VFG is also about
growth through strategic asset management, market

‘Our

2006 performance is proof that, when all these qualities

intelligence, and attention to shareholder value.

. . . .
are combined, the community banking model can th!nve.

VFG experienced solid financial growth in 2006 delspile

' a difficult operating environment for the banking iﬁdustry -

in general and its $1 to $5 billion segment in particular.
Our yearly earnings and diluted EPS grew by a healthy
7% through increased revenue from multiple streams.
Loans, which produced $84.0 million in interest feve-
nues, represented an in;rease of $13.3 million or 16?.8%
more than in 2005. Our mortgage and trust/asset man-
agément units also made a substkantial contribution of
$6.7 million in revenues. These results are no accident.
We spent the year focused on sustainable revenue gen-

eration, opening branches, improving our infrastructure,

and recruiting talent.

.Banking is a mature business. Bankers know not to
expect “magic pills” to jump-start performance; We
know that income and market share accrue to whoever
is best at “scooping up the nickels and dimes.” This tru-

ism is particularly appropriate today, as the contraction

Pl

LY

Il

of the real estate market increases competition and
squeezes margins. Fortunately, VFG’s experience in
community banking has given us the skills necessary to
prevail in the emerging environment: cultivating rela-
tionships; maximizing fee income, and branching for

success. Extensive progress was made in these areas.

RELATIONSHIPS

One reason our loan portfolio grew 6.5% over 2005 is
that we made a cancerted effort to understand our client
reiationsHips. Many of our clients use diverse VFG
products. In order that we continue to develop a full
appreciation of our current relationships, we will begin
in 2007 implementation of a new pricing model that
will allow lenders to look beyond the immediate trans-
action and create advantageously priced packages. The
model is well suited for the construction and commer-
cial industrial market, the main growth_drivers in our

loan husiness.

FEE BUSINESSES I

Our non-interest businesses proved increasingly depend-
able saurces of fee income. They help insulate us from
the margin-depressing eifects of the market’s flat or
inverted yield curve. For example, our trust/asset man-
agement division put $86 million in new assets under
management this year. With a view towards leveraging
our home loan busiﬁess, we established a new title and
settlement company in April. This line of business
generated over $500 thousand in revenues over nine

months and is expected to grow over 20% in 2007 as

18.80/0 ToTtAL RETURN

oN VFG Stock N 2006




|
“VFG IS ALSO ‘ABOUT GROWTH

THROUGH STRATEGIC|ASSET MANAGEMENT,

|
MARKET INTEL‘LIGEN(I:E, AND ATTENTION

TO SHAREHQl'iDER VALUE.”

O. R. Barham, Ir.

President and Chief Executive Officer

penetration levels approach a normalized rate. Growth in
. I . .
these areas increases our touch points with customers

at different stages of their lives.

GROWING THE FRANCHISE

. Touching customers’ lives also means establishing loca-
tions where they need us. Responding to demographic
trends, we openeg five full-service branches and a
loan production ofi;ice. in contiguous Northern Virginia
markets, we recently completed the combination of two
affiliate banks into a single 15-branch organization. This
helped us maximize operational efficiencies and manage-

ment depth while better serving our customers, -

“The past should be a springboard, not a hammock.”.

Taking to heart Ivern Bell’s oft-quoted remark, VFG’s
management evaluates past performance in order to
plan for continuing success in the future. Our 2006
strategy was gearedI towards growing the business amid
tncreasing margin pressures. Since those pressures will
continue or intensi}y, our revenue-centered initiatives

will contintre throughout 2007 and beyond.

Specifically, we plan to further diversify our portfolio,
especially in the commercial/industrial market where
today’s borrowers are often tomorrow’s depositors. New
loan offices may follow this promising market segment.

Our trust/asset management business will achieve its

revenue-generating p‘votential by 2008 and continue to
expand as the population ages. In our mortgage divi-
sion, process improvements and new management
expertise should foster improved performance even in a
slowing market. Finally, our branching stra{égy will pro-
ceed at a slightly sl?:wer tempo in 2007 as branches
planted in 2006 work on becoming great contributors
by 2008.

Uhliimately, the success we have enjoyed is not a matter
of luck—except perh‘zllps as defined by our Albemarle
County neighbor, Thomas Jefferson, who said, “The
harder | work the more luck 1 have.” Qur success
directly reflects hard l'vork by the 580 peoplé of VFG.
From that work, we made solid progress in 2006 and
laid a foundation on which we can build and grow for

years to come,

On behalf of the Board and our Employees, | would like
to thank you for your past and continued support of our

|
Company and its affiliates.

Dt

O. R. Barham, Jr.

President and Chief Executive Officer

Virginia Financial Group, Inc. * 2006 Annual Report 3
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|

CRreatING A CULTURE OF EFFICIENCY |

[
!
|

Superior execution is the key to success in a tightening
market, and people are the key to superior exec:ution.
It’s not just a matter of recruiting and retaining talented
individuals, however. Getting the right resultsr from
the right people depends on how they are trained,
deployed, and managed. With that awareness, we
waorked hard to optimize our training, branch dleploy-
ment, and leadership—not just to achieve tactical
objectives, but to instill a culture of efficiencly and
excellence throughout VFG. I

In the area of training, we rolled out the second phase
of a multi-year sales and service course with special
emphasis on relationship building. Retail manaéement
and frontline employees were taught to think ;proac-
tively about sales—to anticipate and meet the n?eds of
each customer rather than follow a script. Employees
practiced specific actions designed to secure business
beyond the immediate quote the customer has
requested. Since over half of VFG's employees have
undergone this training, we feel justified in alt;ibuting
some of last year’s individual and group sales}perfor-

mance improvements to this new initiative. |

We also looked at where our cusiomers were located,
and realigned our operations to better cover the mar-
ket. This resulted in both opening and consolidating
banks. Following regional growth trends, we opened
new VFG franchises in Lynchburg, Charlottesville,
and Winchester, while consolidating two Covington
branches into one for greater efficiency. In rapidly
growing Northern Virginia, business expansion and
suburban sprawl had started to blur the boundaries of
the adjoining Fredericksburg and Culpeper markets,
where we operated two affiliates, Virginia Heartland
Bank and Second Bank & Trust. We recently com-
pleted the merger, resulting in single regional bank
holding $715 million in assets under the Second Bank
& Trust name and charter. Besides achieving econo-
mies of scale and avoiding cannibalization, the merger
gives VFG a strategic anchor on the eastern side of the
Blue Ridge Mountains to match the similarly sized
Planter’'s Bank affiliate based in Staunton on the

waestern side.

Finally, we took steps to ensure our corporate leader-

ship was complete and positioned to address the

$752 MILLION INCREASE

AVERAGE NET LOANS RECEIVABLE
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il “OUR COMMITMENT TO PROVIDING
A FULL RANGE OF SUPERIOR BANKING

1 _
P.ITODUCTS BACKED BY EXCELLENT SERVICE

/| AND THE CONVENIENCE OF OUR
| ‘HLOCATIONS AND OFFICE HOURS ARE

i
" DESIGNED WITH ONE THING IN MIND—
1 YOU. LET ME SHOW YOU HOW
'PLANTERS BANK IS PREPARED TO BE
'YOUR FINANCIAL PARTNER FOR LIFE.”

11 Charlie Marlorana
' Senior Vice President

Area Exceutive in Harrisonburg, Virginia

organization’s futuré needs. We created and filled a new

officer-level position, Director of Regulatory Manage-

ment. This gives us a compliance and regulatory infra-
structure that will| effectively serve our company for Py
| T 22.81%
many years and support the growth initiatives we have
- l . .
planned. Similarly, we created a sales executive position
for the Lynchburg market in anticipation of future growth .
1 ¥ T
there. The appointment of an industry veteran to head o oo | o Lol 2
I — VFGl  —— SA&P500 || —— NASDAQ Bark Index  —— S&P Bank Index |
our secondary mortgage business was driven both by I
Y :
expected growth and the need 1o improve the division’s ) cied M . ||
125% .
performance. o | ] Ao -
] 1581%
L, ]
1no%

h wwmm.nr e R

3.62%

55% T T li T T T T T T T
1/29 2/29 IN9 429 FEH‘J 629 7729 829 929 10729 112912719

] —— VIGI = NASDAQBisklIndex  — SAPI00  —— 5P Bankinder |

Source: Factset
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Focusep ON RELATIONSHIPS

Anytime a product or service is sold, the buyer and

seller begin a relationship. Whether that relatiogship
begins and ends with one transaction or widens and
deepens over time is largely up to the seller. In a
productive customer relationship, the bank or lending
institution acts as a partner who understands|all the
customer’s needs, not just the stated ones, artllculates
those needs, proposes solutions and delivers| as the
customer expected. That is why investments in under-
standing and extending customer relationships are
among the most important a bank can make. VFG made

several of these investments in 2006.

Customer-centered sales training and ongoing efforts to
diversify our portfolio are steadily producing more points

of entry into long-term client relationships. Ajcase in

point is our campaign to attract commercial/industrial

loan customers. This is an especially important market

I

for us. One reason is granularity. Our [oan portfolio, like
many of our peers, is heavily weighted to commercial
real estate. C&| lending improves granularity, which will
ultimately improve our sensitivity to downturns in the
real estate market like that Vexperienced in 2006,
Addi.tionally, it is lucrative because business clients have
predictable capital needs, higher cash balances, pre-
dictable operating cycles, insurance needs, etc., which
can be addressed by VFG's fee-based products. We
were able to grow this segment of our portfolio by 34%
in 2006. Given the value of this market, we look to add
several seasoned lenders with skill sets conducive to

this type of lending.

It is also important to have products that extend across
the life-cycle of the relationship and give meaning to
our tag line, Your Financial Partner for Life. Many of our

customers are nearing retirement or have amassed

“IN THESE DAYS OF SELF-SERVICE THIS
AND DO-IT-YOURSELF THAT, WE REALLY
APPRECIATE THE VALUE OF PERSONAL
SERVICE. IT'S NICE TO KNOW WE
CAN VISIT THE BANK AND CONDUCT
OUR TRANSACTIONS IN PERSON,
AND HAVING ALL OUR ACCOUNTS
IN ONE PLACE REALLY MAKES IT EASY

TO GET THINGS DONE.”

Ben Miller & mother JoAnn Miller

Miller Farms

& Virginia Financial Group, Inc. » 2006 Annual Report
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wealth and now séek our trust/asset management ser-
vices. Their increasing demand and our ability to meet
that demand resulted in year-over-year growth of 16.8%
in assets under management, and resulted in assets
approaching a miltlestone of $600 million under man-
agement. Because we staffed the division in anticipation
of this strong growth, we are operating the division at
an optimal level of efficiency. To better serve the other
end of the refationship life cycle, our Secondary Market
Lending unit, which books mortgages to sell for a fee, is
gearing up for increased productivity under its new
leadership, adding originators in underserved markets

and better leveraging back-office resources.
r

i
“1 HAVE HAD A PERSONAL BANKING

RELATIONSHIP WITH SEG(;ND BANK
& Trust FOR 10 YEAR:S% WHEN
"I oreNeD FOOD FOR [THOUGHT
‘l IN 2004 | CHOSE THEM AS MY

." ’ , \

| ]
BUSINESS BANKERS. SECOND BANK

|
& TRUST SUPPORTED ME WITH THE
I
'SMALL BUSINESS LOANS| |I' NEEDED

TO GET STARTED AN? ;‘souo
|
BUSINESS ADVICE TO KEEP

]

]
MY BUSINESS cRovxlrl&G.”

Il;l'li(_‘ Thomas

Food for Thought

Reported Vol = 3,327,743

| Stock Price mmm V"'“ml l | | Est, Shares Traded / Shares Quistanding = 30.86%

Source: Factsct
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GrOWTH OPPORTUNITIES AHEAD

?
i
[
|

Continuing on the path we have set in 2006, Virginia
Financial Group will continue to focus on revenjue gen-
eration in 2007 and beyond. As we have noted, increas-
ing revenue requires continually improving efficiencies,
building strong customer relationships, identifyirl1g areas
of future growth, and reassessing the financial ir}'wpact of

our business mix and geographical footprint. |

With a planned slowdown in the opening of new branches
in 2007, we will concentrate on evaluating our existing
40 branches in light of the changing competitive land-
scape. To this end, we have commissioned a Retail
Delivery Optimization Study that analyzes our:markets
in muitiple ways, including economics, competition,
contiguous areas, and demaographics (such as house-
| holds per branch). An examination of resource alllocation
and not a performance review, the study will give us a
picture of otherwise difficult to measure trcs:nds,I such as
when a market is about to become over-banked. It will
help us set growth expectations, retrospectively explain

b .
divergences from earlier expectations, and guide the

]

I

180

157,000

160

140

120

100 -

79,000

80

60

Households (000')

11.5% 8

a0l

122,000

109%

future allocation of resources. Leaders will use the
study—along with judgment derived from their long
experience as bankers in Central and Western Virginia—
to provide essential validations or corrections for the

decision-making process.

In its infancy, a small but promising growth opportunity
is in title and closing services. As part of our focus on
relationship building and improving efficiencies, we
established a new title and settlement company in April
2006. We launched the business to entice home loan
customers with the convenience of one-stop shopping.
Along with their mortgage, they can use us for title and
closing services and home insurance, thus providing

added convenience and heightened customer service.

These are just some of the ways we expect to build

upon our 2006 successes and thrive in the year ahead.

Proiecte!‘d Households—2006-2011

98,000

Source:
Verdi & Compary

Virginia Financial Group, Inc. » 2006 Annual Report




“BANKING THE WAY

| LIKE IT—CLEAN,

CONCISE AND

PROFESSIONAL.” \

Rabert Whittingham
whittinghant Home &

The Kitchen at Whittingham

$10.00

$25.00

600,000
v - ,_“'u‘.' 450,000
MW
$20.00 P ==
3 Hl Iulw.---
$15.00
$190.00 )
120/02 1229/03 12904 1/29/05 ‘ 112129106

Reported Vol. = 15,029,663
Est. Shares Traded / Shares Ouistanding = £9.69%

300,000

150,000

—— Stock Price ssmm Volume Il

Source: Factset

980/0 INCREASE

Five YEAR PRICE APPRECIAT]ON
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BOARD MEMBERS

VIRGINA FINANCIAL
GROUP BOARD OF
DIRECTORS

Lee S. Baker
Manager/Owner,
Staunton Tractor, Inc.

P. William Moore, |r.
Chairman,
Moore Brothers, Co., Inc.

Christopher M. Hallberg
President,

Hallberg & O'Malley
Financial Group

Gregory L. Fisher
President/Owner,
Eddins Ford, Inc.

Jan S. Hoover
President,
Arehart Associates, inc.

Martin F. Lightsey
Chairman,
Specialty Blades, Inc.

Fred D. Bowers
Secretary,

Virginia Financial Group, Inc.

Thomas F. Williams, Jr.
Fartner,
Frankiin, Williams & Cowan

Taylor E. Gore, Chairman,

Virginia Financial Group, Inc.

O. R. Barham, |r.
President & CEQ,

Virginia Financial Group, Inc.

H. Wayne Parrish
Vice-Chairman,

Virginia Financial Group, Inc.

t
PLANTERS BANK & TRUST
BOARD OF DIRECTORS

b

John N. Neff
President & CEQ,
Nielsen Builders, Inc.

William B. McClung
A:rorney—ar-mer,'
McClung & Associates, PC

Greg C. Raetz E

CPA, Raetz & Hawkins, PC

H. C. Stuart Coichran,
Chairman i
Agent, Bankers Insurance

James T. Huertl:l
President & CEQ,
Planters Bank & Trust

Raymond Erger{bright
Retired, I
Staunton, VA

Christopher C. LEarhart
President, .

Dixie Gas and Gil Corp.;
Managing Partner, EADD, LLC

Lee A, Beam
President,
Staunton Steam Laundry, Inc.

SECOND BANK & TRUST
BOARD OF DIRECTORS

James A. Branscome
Owner/President,
Freemnan Beverage Co., Inc.

John ). Davies, 11}
Partner, Davies, Barrell, Will,
Lewellyn & Edwards, PC

Ronald E. Davis,
President & CFO,
Second Bank & Trust

James §. Day, Jr.
President & CEQ,
Defarnette & Beale
Insurance Agency

Charles K. Gyory
President
Willow Run Company, inc.

Alan W, Myers
Chairman

General Manager,

Blue Ridge Growers, Inc.

Keith L. Wampler
CPA and Managing Partner,
PBGH, LLP

“THE COMBINATION OF SECOND BANK & TRUST AND

VIRGINA
COMMONWEALTH TRUST
COMPANY BOARD OF
DIRECTORS

O. R. Barham, |r.
President & CEQ,
Virginia Financial Group, Inc.

Christopher M. Hallberg,
Chairman

President,

Hallberg & O'Malley
Financial Group

Jan S. Hoover
President,
Arehart Associates, Inc.

P. witliam Moore, |Jr.
Chairman,
Moore Brothers, Co., Inc,

Frank A. Thomas
Partner,

Shackelford, Thomas and
Gregg, PLC

VIRGINIA HEARTLAND BANK POSITIONS OUR COMPANY TO TAKE BETTER

ADVANTAGE OF THE RAPIDLY GROWING NORTHERN VIRGINIA MARKET.”
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PARTI
Item 1. BUSINESS

GENERAL

Virginia Financial Group, Inc. (VFG or the Company) is a bank holding company incorporated under the laws of the
Commonwealth of Virginia. Currently, VFG is one of the largest independent bank holding companies headquartered
in the Commonwealth of Virginia with total assets of approximately $1.6 billion. VFG’s trust affiliate, Virginia
Commonwealth Trust Company, manages fee and commission based assets of approximately $597 million. Affiliates
of the Company include: Planters Bank & Trust Company of Virginia - in Staunton, Second Bank & Trust - in
Culpeper, Virginia Heartland Bank - in Fredencksburg, Virginia Commonwealth- Trust Company - in Culpeper and
VFG Limited Liability Trust. VFG, through its afﬁhates also owns a 70% interest in VFG Title, LLC. VFG combined
its Virginia Heartland Bank (Fredericksburg) into its Second Bank & Trust (Culpeper) affiliate on February 16, 2007.
The two banks were geographically contiguous, shared increasingly similar market dynamics and offered the
opportunity to create efficiencies and management depth. - The organization has a network of forty branches serving a
contiguous market throughout central, south |cent.ral and southwest Virginia. Virginia Commonwealth Trust
Corporation has offices in Culpeper, Fredericksburg, Harrisonburg and Staunton.
. | .

VFG's affiliate banks are community-oriented and offer services customarily provided by full-service banks, including
individual and commercial demand and time dep051t accounts, commercial and consumer loans, residential mortgages,

credit card services and deposit services. VFG’s afﬁhate banks offer internet banking access for banking services, and
online bill payment for both consumers and commercial customers. Lending is focused on individuals and small and
middie-market businesses in the local market of VFG's affiliate banks. VFG’s trust affiliate provides a variety of
wealth management and personal trust services mcludmg estate administration, employee benefit plan administration
and planning’ specifically addressing the investment and financial management needs of its customers. Utilizing a
“super-community” banking strategy, each afﬁhate is run autonomously, with the holding company providing common
services such as corporate finance, information technology, marketing, human resources, compliance, audit and loan

review. [
|

+

EMPLOYEES

|
At December 31, 2006, VFG had 580 full time equwaient employees. No emp]oyeee are represented by any collective
bargaining unit.” VFG considers relatlons with 1ts employees to be good.

f
COMPETITION '

} .
VFG and its affiliates incur strong competition mI each of its primary markets from large regional and national financial
institutions, savings and loans, credit unions and other community banking organizations. In addition, consumer finance
companies, asset managers and mortgage compames all provide competition. Out-of-state bank holding companies are
providing increased competition through merger w1th and acquisition of Virginia banks.

VFG’s deposit market share at June 30, 2006 repr&sented 1% of the total banking deposits in the Commonwealth of
Virginia. Competition for deposits is influenced by rates paid, customer loyalty factors, product offerings and convenience
of branch network. i

The competition in the industry has also mereased as a result of the passage of the Gramm- Leach-Bhley Act of 1999
(the “Act™), which drew new lines between the types of activities that are financial in nature and permitted for banking
organizations, and those activities that are commercial in nature and not permitted. The Act imposes Community
Reinvestment requirements on financial service organizations that seek to qualify for the expanded powers to engage in
broader financial activities and affiliations with financial companies that are permitted. .

. |

The Act created a new form of financial orgamzatlon called a financial holdmg company that may own banks,
insurance companies and secunties firms. A ﬁnanmal holding company is authorized to engage in any activity that is

I
| i
t
f
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financial in nature, incidental to an activity that is financial in nature, or is a complunentary activity. These activities
may include insurance, securities transactions, and traditional banking related activities. The Act establishes a
consultative and cooperative procedure between the Federal Reserve and the Secretary of the Treasury for purposes of
determination as to the scope of activities permitted by the Act. VFGisnota ﬁnianmal holding company.

No material part of the business of the affiliate banks is dependent upon a single mf a few customers and the loss of one or
more customers would not have a materially adverse effect upon the business of the banks. Management is not aware of
any indications that the business of the banks or material portion thereof is, or may be, seasonal.

. o i
REGULATION, SUPERVISION AND GOVERNMENT POLICY 1 '

L]
Bank Holding Company 1

|
VFG is registered as a bank halding company under the Federal Bank Holding Corporation Act of 1956, as amended,
and is subject to supervision and regulation by the Board of Governors of the Federal Reserve System (the “Federal
‘Reserve Board”) and State Corporation Commission (“SCC”). As a bank holding company, VFG is required to furnish
to the Federal Reserve Board an annual report of its operations at the end of :cach fiscal year and to furnish such
additional information as the Federal Reserve Board may require pursuant to the;Bank Holding Corporation Act. The
Federal Reserve Board and SCC also may conduct examinations of VFG and its affiliates.

i
A bank holding company must satisfy special criteria to qualify for the expanded powers authorized by the Act,
including the maintenance of a well-capitalized and well-managed status for all affiliate banks and a satisfactory
community reinvestment rating. o | \

Capital Requirements g

The Company is subject to various regulatory capital requirements admlmstered by the federal banking agencies.
Failure to meet minimum capital requirements can initiate certain mandatory or possibly additional discretionary
actions by regulators that, if undertaken, could have a direct material effect on the Company’s financial statements.
Under capital adequacy guidelines and the regulatory framework for prompt oorroctlve action, the Company must meet
specific capital guidelines that involve quantitative measures of the Company’ s assets, liabilities, and certain off-
balance-sheet items as calculated under regulatory accounting practices. The Company’s capital amounts and

classifications are also. subJ ect to qualitative judgments by the regulators about components risk weightings, and other
factors.

Quantitative measures established by regulation to ensure capital adequacy require the Company to maintain minimum
amounts and ratios of total and Tier 1 capital (as defined in the regulations) tolnsk-welghted assets, and of Tier 1
capital to average assets. Management believes, as of December 31, 2006, that the Company and its affiliate banks
meet all capital adequacy requirements to which it is subject.

As of December 31, 2006, the most recent notification from the Federal Reserve"Bank of Richmond categorized the
Company’s subsidiary banks as “well capitalized” under the regulatory framework for prompt corrective action under
the Federal Deposit Insurance Act of 1991 (FDICIA). To be categorized as “well capitalized,” the Company must
maintain minimum total risk-based, Tier 1 risk-based, and Tier 1 leverage ratios. l There are no conditions or events
since notification that management believes have changed the Company’s category

Dividends : :1

1
VFG is a separate operating entity from its affiliates, and thus has liquidity needé! that are funded primarily from the
income of its affiliates. The parent company’s cash outflows consist of dmdends to shareholders and unailocated
corporate expenses. The main sources of funding for the parent Company are the*management fees and dividends it
receives from its banking and trust affiliates. Under the current supervisory regulation, prior approval from such
agencies is required if the community bank pays cash dividends that exceed certain ‘_levels as defined. During 2006, the
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banking affiliates and the non-bank subsidiary paid $13.0 million in management fees to the Company, and $12.5
million in dividends were paid to the Company. As of January 1, 2007, the aggregate amount of additional unrestricted
funds, which could be transferred from the banking affiliates to VFG without prior regulatory approval totaled $42.1
million or 27.9% of the consolidated net assets.
!
Sarbanes-Oxtley Act of 2002 , !
. t
The Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 (Sarbanes-Oxley), which was signed into law in July, 2002, impacts all companies
with securities registered under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, including the Company. Sarbanes-Oxley created
new requirements in the areas of corporate governance and financial disclosure-including, among other things, (i)
increased responsibility for the Chief Executive pfﬁcem and Chief Financial Officers with respect to the content of
filings with the SEC; (ii} enhanced reqmremcnts for audit committees, including independence and disclosure of
expertise; (iii) enhanced requirements for aud1tor independence and the types of non-audit services that auditors can
provide; (iv) accelerated filing requirements for; SEC reports; (v) increased disclosure and reporting obligations for
companies, their directors and executive officers;and (vi) new and increased civil and criminal penalties for violations
of securities laws. Certifications of the Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer can be found in the
“Exhibits” section of this document. Management’ “Statement of Management’s Responsibility” can be found in Item
9A of this report.

BANK REGULATION '

Each of VFG’s affiliate banks are subject to supervision and regulation by the Federal Reserve Board and the SCC. The
various laws and regulations administered by the regulatory agencies affect corporate practices, including business
practices related to payment and charging of interest, documentation and disclosures, and affect the ability to open and
close offices or purchase other affiliates, J

USA Patriot Act. VFG’s affiliate banks are subjf;ct to the requirements of the USA Patriot Act, which provides for the
facilitation of information sharing among governmental entities and financial institutions for the purpose of combating
terrorism and money laundering. The Act places a significantly increased reporting responsibility and regulatory oversight
on financial institutions to share information with the federal government concerning activities that may involve money
laundering or terrorist activities. The USA Patriot Act is considered a significant banking law in terms of information
disclosure regarding certain customer transactions. Certain provisions of the USA Patriot Act impose the obligation to
establish anti-money laundering programs, including the development of a customer identification program, and the
screening of all customers against any government lists of known or suspected terrorists. The Company is in compliance
with both the requirements of the Act. i

Insurance of Accounm. VFG’s affiliate banks'have deposits which are insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance
Corporation (FDIC), and the banks are subject to insurance premium assessments by the FDIC. The FDIC has developed a
risk-based assessment system, under which the asswsment rate for an insured depository institution varies according to its
level of risk. An institution's risk category is based upon whether the institution is well capitalized, adequately capitalized

-or undercapitalized and the institution's "supemsory subgroups": Subgroup A, B or C, Subgroup A institutions are

financially sound institutions with a few mmor weaknesses; Subgroup B institutions are institutions that demonstrate
weaknesses which, if not corrected, could result'in significant deterioration; and Subgroup C institutions are institutions
for which there is a substantial probability that the FDIC will suffer a loss in connection with the institution unless
effective action is taken to comrect the areas of weakness. Based on its capital and supervisory subgroups, each DIF
member institution is assigned an annual FDIC assessment rate per $100 of insured deposits varying between 0.05% per
annum (for well capitalized Subgroup A msntutmns) and 0.43% per annum (for undercapitalized Subgroup C
institutions). All of VFG’s subsidiary bank’s qugroup for 2006 was A. Each of VFG’s affiliate banks expect to receive
a one-time assessment credit to offset the cost of ;expected higher deposit insurance premiums for 2007.

Community Reinvestment Act. VFG’s affiliate banks are subject to the requirements of the Commﬁnity Reinvestment Act
of 1977 (CRA). The CRA imposes on financial institutions an affirmative and ongoing obligation to meet the needs of the
local communities, including low and moderate income neighborhoods. If any of our.bank affiliates receives a rating from
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the Federal Reserve of less than satisfactory under the CRA, restrictions on our opcratmg activities would be imposed.
Our bank’s currently meet the CRA requirements. i

Privacy Legislation. Several new regulations issued by federal banking agencies allso provide new protections against the
transfer and use of customer information by financial institutions. A financial msntutxon must provide to its customers
information regarding its polices and procedures with respect to the handling of 'customers personal information. Each
institution must conduct an internal risk assessment of its ability to protect . customer information. These privacy
provisions generally prohibit a financial institution from providing a customer s personal financial information to
unaffiliated parties without pnor notice and approval from the customer. . | :
Basel Commzttee On Fcbruary 28, 2007, the federal banking agencies rclcascd for comment the new Basel Capltal
Accord (“Basel IT"), which proposes establishment of a new framework of capxtal adequacy for banking organizations;
the Committee pubhshed the text of the framework on July 26, 2004. Despite the release of the Basel II framework, it
is not clear at this time whether and in what manner the new accord will be adopted by bank regulators with respect to
‘banking organizations that they supervise and regulate. Although the Committee’ s stated intent is that Basel II will not
change the amount of overall capital in the global banking system, adoptlon of thc proposed new accord could require
individual banking organizations, including the Company, to increase the mmunum level of capital held. The Company
will continue to closely monitor regulatory action on this matter and assess the pottcnual impact to the Company

Consumer Laws and Regulations. VFG’s affiliate banks are also subject to certain consumer laws and regulations that
are designed to protect consumers in transactions with banks, While the list set forth herein is not exhaustive, these
laws and regulations include the Truth in Lending Act, the Truth in Savings Act the Electronic Funds Transfer Act,
the Expedited Funds Availability Act, the Equal Credit Opportunity Act, Real Estate Settlement Procedures (RESPA),
Home Mortgage Disclosure Act (HMDA), the Fair Credit Reporting Act and the Fair Housing Act, among others.
These laws and regulations mandate certain disclosure requirements and regulate the manner in which financial
institutions transact business with customers. VFG's affiliate banks must comply with the applicable provisions of
these consumer protection laws and regulations as part of its ongoing customer rclﬁatmns
ACCESS TO FILINGS i
li
The Company files annual reports on Form 10-K, quarterly reports on Form IO-Q, current reports on Form 8-K and
other filings with the Securities and Exchange Commission (“SEC™). The pubhc may read and copy any documents
the Company files at the SEC’s Public Reference Room at 100 F Street, N.E. Washmgton, D.C. 20549. The public
may obtain information on the operation of the Public Reference Room by callmg the SEC at 1-800-SEC-0330. The
Company’s SEC filings can also be obtained on the SEC’s website on the mtemet at http://'www.sec.gov. Also, annual
reports on Form 10-K and quarterly reports on Form 10-Q are posted on the Company s website at http://www.vfgi.net
as soon as reasonably practical after filing electronically with the SEC. 'i
. 3
Item 1A. RISK FACTORS |
|
This section highlights specific risks that could affect our business and us. Alithough we have tried to dlscuss key
factors, please be aware that other risks may prove to be important in the future. New risks may emerge at any time and
- we cannot predict such risks or estimate the extent to which they may affect curI ‘financial performance. In addition to
the factors discussed elsewhere in this rcport, among the other factors that: could cause actual results to differ
materially are the followmg - : i

Our praﬁtability depends on interest rates generally.

|
i

Our profitability depends-in substantlal part on our net interest margin, which i 1s the difference between the rates we
receive on loans and investments and the rates we pay for deposits and other sources of funds. Our net interest margin
depends on many factors that are partly or completely outside of our control, mcludmg competition, federal economic,
monetary and ﬁscal policies, and economic conditions generally. Changes in mtcrcst rates w1ll affect our opcratmg
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performance and financial condition. We try to minimize our exposure to interest rate risk, but we are unable to
completely eliminate this risk. |

1

Our profitability depends significantly on local economic conditions.

Our success depends primarily on the general economic conditions of the markets in which we operate. Unlike larger
banks that are more geographically diversified, we provide banking and financial services to customers primarily in
Northemn, Central and Western Virginia. The local economic conditions in these areas have a significant impact on our
business, real estate and construction loans, the ability of the borrowers to repay these loans and the value of the
collateral securing these-loans. A significant decline in general economic conditions, caused by inflation, recession,
acts of terrorism, an outbreak of hostilities or other international or domestic calamities, unemployment or other factors
beyond our control, could impact these local economic conditions and could negatively affect the financial results of
our banking operatlons . :

Our affiliate banks’ ability to pay dividends is subject to regulatory limitations which, to the extent VFG requires
such dividends in the future, may affect our ability to pay obltgaaons and dividends. C .

VFG is a separate legal entity from the afﬁhate banks and independent trust company, and thus does not have
significant revenue sources of its own. We currently depend on the affiliate banks’ cash and liquidity as well as
dividends from our subsidiaries to pay our o‘pef-atmg expenses and dividends to shareholders. No assurance can be
made that in the future the affiliate banks will have the capacity to pay the necessary dividends and that VFG will not

require dividends from the affiliate banks to satisfy VFG’s obligations. The availability of dividends from our affiliate
-banks is limited by various statutes and regulations. It is possible, depending upon the financial condition of VFG and

other factors, that the Federal Reserve could assert that payment of dividends or other payments by the affiliate banks
are an unsafe or unsound practice. In the event the affiliate banks are unable to pay dividends sufficient to satisfy the
Company’s obligations and the affiliate banks are unable to pay dividends to the Company, VFG may not be able to
service its obligations as they become due, or pay dividends on the Company's common stock. Consequently, the
inability to receive dividends from the affiliate banks could adversely affect our financial condmon, results of
operations and cash flows.
|
Our profitability may suffer because-of rapid and unpredictable changes in the highly regulated environment in

which we operate. r
. i

We are subject to extensive supervision by several governmental regulatory agencies at the federal and state levels.
Recently enacted, proposed and future banking legislation and regulations have had, will continue to have, or may have
a significant impact on the financial services industry. These regulations, which are intended to protect depositors and
not our sharcholders, and the interpretation and application of them by federal and state regulators, are beyond our
control, may change rapidly and unpredictably and can be expected to influence our earnings and growth. Our success
depends on our continued ability to maintain compliance with these regulations. Some of these regulations may
increase our costs and thus place other financial mstltutlons that are not subject to similar regulation in stronger, more
favorable competitive positions. ;
I_'f our allowance for loan losses becomes inadequate, our results of operations may be adversely affected.

We maintain an allowance for loan losses that we believe is adequate to absorb estimated incurred losses inherent in
our loan portfolio. Through a periodic review and consideration of the loan portfolio, management determines the
amount of the allowance for loan losses by considering current general market conditions, credit quality of the loan
portfolio and performance of our customers relative to their financial obligations with us. The amount of future losses
is susceptible to changes in economic, operating and other conditions, including changes in interest rates that may be
beyond our control and these losses may cause our loan loss provision to vary widely from recent levels. Although we
believe the allowance for loan losses is adequate to absorb probable incurred losses in our loan portfolio, it is an
estimate subject to revision as losses are confirmed. Higher levels of loan losses in the future could have a material
adverse impact on our financial performance. Federal and state regulators, as an integral part of their supervisory
funetion, periodically review our allowance for 'loan losses. These regulatory agencies may require us to increase our
5 .
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|, : :
provision for loan losses or to recognize further loan charge offs based upon their judgments, which may be different
from ours. Any increase in the allowance for loan losses required by th%e regulatory agencies could have a ncgatwe
effect on our financial condition and results of operatlons 4 ,
‘ I .
Our concentration in loans secured by real estate may mcrease our loan Ioss‘is, which would negatwely affect our
financial results.

We offer a variety of secured loans, including commercial lines of credit,’i commercial term loans, real estate,
construction, home equity, consumer and other loans. Many of our loans are secured by real estate (both residential and
commercial) in our market area. At December 31, 2006, approximately 47% land 41% of our $1.22 billion loans
receivable portfolio were secured by commercial and residential real estate, respectlvely A major change in the real
estate market, such as deterioration in the value of this collateral, or in the local 'or national economy, could adversely
affect our customers’ ability to pay these loans, which in turn could impact us. R1sk of loan defaults and foreclosures
are unavoidable in the banking industry, and we try to limit our exposure to thls risk by monitoring our extensions of
credit carefully. We cannot fully eliminate credit risk, and as a result credit losses may occur in the future.

Our future success is dependent on our ability to compete effectively in the hzghly competmve banking industry.

We face vigorous competition - from other banks and other ﬂnanmal mstItutlons mcludmg savings and loan
associations, savings banks, finance companies and credit unions for deposits, loans and other financial services in our
market area. Many competitors, offer products and services which we do not! 'and many have substantially greater
resources, name recognition and market . presence that benefit them in attriictmg business. In addition, larger
competitors may be able to.price loans and deposits more aggressively than wc do. Some of the financial services
orgamzatlons with which we compete are not subject to the same degree of regu]atlon as is imposed on bank holding
companies and federally insured state-chartered banks, national banks and federal savings institutions. As a result,
these nonbank competitors have certain advantages over us in accessing funding and in providing various services. The
differences in resources and regulations may make it harder for us to compete proﬁtably, reduce the rates that we can
earn on loans and investments, increase the rates we must offer on deposits andI Lother funds, and adversely affect our
overall financial condition and eamings. ;
We depend on the services of our key personnel, and a loss of any of those personnel may disrupt our operations
and result in reduced revenues. :
Our success depends upon the continued service of our senior management team and upon our ability to attract and
retain qualified financial services personnel. Competition for qualified employees is intense. In our experience, it can
take a significant pcnod of time to identify and hire personnel with the combmatlon of skills and attributes required in
carrying out our strategy. If we lose the services of our key personnel, or are unable to attract additional qualified
personnel, our busmess financial condition, results of operations and cash ﬂows could be materially adversely
affected.

l| .
We may identify a material weakness or a significant deficiency in our internal control over financial reporting that
may adversely affect our ability to properly account for non-routine transactiau;é!.

As we have grown and expanded, we have acquired and added, and expect to coi‘y.inue to acquire and add, businesses
and other activities that complement our core retail and commercial banking functions. Such acquisitions or additions

- frequently involve complex operational and financial reporting issues that can influence management’s internal control

system. While we make every effort to thoroughly understand any new activity or :acquired entity's business processes,
our planning for proper integration into our Company can give no assurance that we will not encounter operational and
financial reporting difficulties impacting our controls over the Company.

i
If we need additional capital in the future to continue our growth, we may not b‘e able to obtain it on terms that are
favorable. This could negatively affect our performance and the value of our common stock.

Our business strategy calls for continued growth. We anticipate that we will be able to support this growth through the
generation of additional deposits at new branch locations ‘as well as investment opportunities. However, we may need

]
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to raise additional capital in the future to supportI our continued growth and to maintain our capital levels. Our ability
{o raise capital through the sale of additional securmes will depend primarily upon our financial condition and the
condition of financial markets at that time. We may not be able to obtain additional capital in the amounts or on terms
satisfactory to us. Our growth may be constramed if we are unable to raise addmonal capital as needed.

Because our mortgage banking revenue is sensmve to changes in economic candmons, decreased economic
activity, a slowdown in the housmg market or htgher interest rates may reduce our profits. '

Maintaining a high level of fees from this opcratlon depends primarily on our ability to continue to originate mortgage
loans. Production levels are sensitive to changes i m economic conditions and can suffer from decreased economic
activity, a slowdown in the housing market or hxghcr interest rates, Generally, any sustained period of decréased
economic activity or higher interest rates could adversely affect our mortgage originations and, consequently, reduce
our income from mortgage banking activities. As a result, these conditions may adversely affect our net income.

Item 1B. UNRESOLVED STAFF COMMENTS
f . : . ’

None. S -

Item 2. PROPERTIES oy

l

The Company’s headquarters is located at 102 S. Main Street in Culpeper, Virginia, and also maintains executive
offices at 1807 Seminole Trail, Charlottesville, Virginia. The Company’s subsidiary banks operate forty branch
locations. They own thirty-four branches and lease the remaining six. Two additional locations are owned by our bank
affiliates to facilitate operations and loan production. Additional information regarding lease oomnutments can be
found in Note 19 of the 2006 Consolidated Financial Statements, '
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As of December 31, 2006 the offices (including executive offices) of our subsidiaries were as follows: -

. Location of Executive Ofﬁce Location of Offices

Snbéidiary ‘ Executive Office . Owned/Leased | (including executive office)
Second Bank & Trust 102 South Main Street -~ Owned - i 15 banking offices in Culpeper,
o Culpeper Virginia .+ Madision, Orange, Locust Grove,
|

i' Albemarle, Spotsylvania, Caroline

. 1 and Stafford Counties, Virginia;

: l Charlottesville, Fredericksburg,

l and Bowling Green Cities,
Virginia

4700 Harrison Road Leased
Fredericksburg, Virginia

Planters Bank & Trust 24 South Augusta Street Owned |} 25 banking offices in Augusta,
.Company of Virginia Staunton, Virginia ' | Rockbridge, Franklin, Prince
- ' '  Prince Edward, and Bedford
l Counties, Virginia; Grottoes,
.| Woodstock, Rocky Mount, and
| Farmville Towns, Virginia;
[ Waynesboro, Harrisonburg,
‘ Lynchburg, Buena Vista, Staunton,
| and Covington Cities, Virginia

1

Virginia Commonwealth 102 South Main Street *  Owned 1 5 trust offices in Albemarle, and
Trust Company i Culpeper, Virginia t Culpeper, Counties, Virginia;
o i Fredericksburg, Staunton and
]I Harrisonburg Cities, Virginia

All of the Company’s properties are in good operating condition and are adequate fox:'gthe Company’s present needs.

i
Item 3. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS 1
There are no material proceedings to which the Company or any of our subsidi’éq‘ies are a party orlby which, to the
Company’s knowledge, we, or any subsidiaries, are threatened. All legal proceedings presently pending or threatened

against the Company or our subsidiaries involve routine litigation incidental to the business of the Company or the
subsidiary involved and are not material in respect to the amount in controversy.

Item 4, S‘UBMISSIOE OF MATTERS TO A VOTE OF SECURITY HOLDERS

!

No matters were submitted during the fourth quarter of the fiscal year covered by tlus report to a vote of security holders
of the Company through a solicitation of proxies or otherwise. )
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EXECUTIVE OFFICERS OF REGISTRANT |

The executive officers of the Company are appoinied each year at the organizational meeting of the Board of Directors,
which follows the annual meeting of the shareholders, and at other Board of Directors meetings as appropriate. Each of
the executive officers has been employed by the Company in the position or positions indicated in the list and pertinent
notes below. Messrs. Barham and Farrar have becn employed by the Company as executive officers for more than five
3’331'3 i
!
[
|

Name . - .. Ase ! Current Position
O.R. Batham, Jr. o 56 Mr. Barham has been President and Chief Executive

Officer of the Company since 2002. Mr. Barham served as

a director of the Company since 1996. Prior to January

2002 he served as President and Chief Executive Officer of

- Virgi:nia Commonwealth Financial Corporation and its
. predecessor, Second National Financial Corporation.

Jeffrey W. Farrar 46  Mr. Farrar has been Executive Vice President and Chief
Financial Officer of the Company since January 18, 2002.
Mr. Farrar served as Executive Vice President and Chief
Financial Officer of Virginia Commonwealth Financial
Corporation and its predecessor, Second National Financial

5 Corporation, since 1996.
Litz Van Dyke 43  Mr. Van Dyke is Executive Vice President -and Chief
- ' Operating Officer of the Company. Mr. Van Dyke joined
the Company in September 2004, and previously served in
a similar capacity for FNB Corporation of Christiansburg,

_ ' Vu'glma

Richard L. Saunders 53  Mr, Saunders is Chief Credit Officer of the Company. Mr.
T Saunders joined the Company in May 2004 and previously
served in a similar capacity for Guaranty Bank of

' Charlottesville, Virginia.

James T. Huerth . 45  Mr. Huerth has been President & CEO of Planters Bank &
Trust Company of Virginia since January 2005. Mr. Huerth
served as an Area Commercial Executive for Branch
Banking & Trust (BB&T) in Georgia’s northern market
pricn: to joining the Company.
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‘ PART 11 ’
. Item 5. MARKET FOR REGISTRANT’S COMMON EQUITY. RELATED STOCKHOLDER MA'I'I‘ERS AND
ISSUER PURCHASES OF EQUITY SECURITIES
The Company’s stock trades on the NASDAQ Global Select Market, and cm'rently trades under the trading symbol
VFGL As of March 1, 2007, there were approximately 5,100 shareholders of record and the closing price of the
Company’s common stock was $24.10. There were no repurchases of stock conducted during 2006. Listed below are
the high and low prices for the common stock, as reported by NASDAQ, and dmdends paid for each quarter in the two
year period ended December 31, 2006. VFG anticipates the same level of dmdend payment in the future. On
September 6, 2006 the Company paid a three-for-two stock split in the form of a 50% stock dividend. The per share
amounts below and throughout this document have been restated to reflect the three-for-two stock split for all periods

presented. ;'
Sales Price i Dividends
1
' ‘ nl Per Share
2006 2005 2006 2005
High: Low High " Low "
1st Quarter $27.97 $23.70 - $25.53 $21.01 $0.15 $0.13
2nd Quarter 29.67 24.87 12433 21.20 .15 0.14
3rd Quarter 29.45 25.05 25.00 2171 015 0.14

H
4th Quarter 2894 26.17 26.20 22,13 f 0.16 0.15
' o ;

A
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STOCK PERFORMANCE GRAPH '
The following graph compares the Company’s annuai percentage change in cumulative total return on common stock over the past
five years with the cumulative total return of companiés comprising the NASDAQ Composite Index, the SNL $1-$5 Billion Bank
Index and SNL Composite Bank Index. The SNL index:es are indexes are published by SNL Financial, LC. The Bank indexes are, in
the opinion of management, a more relevant standard by which to compare performance, whereas the peer groups are more similar
in terms of size and business profiles. I
_ | . -

This presentation assumes that $100 was invested in! shares of the relevant issuers on December 31, 2001, and that dividend
received were immediately invested in additional shares, The graph plots the value of the intial investment at one-year intervals for
the fiscal years shown. ! :

k
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_ : Period Ending
Index 12/31/01  12/31/02 12/31/03  12/31/04 12/31/05 12/31/06
Virginia Financial Group, Inc. 100.00 137.53 168.07 177.51 178.79 213.14
NASDAQ Composite 100.00 68.76 103.67 113.16 115.57 127.58
SNL. $1B-$5B Bank Index . 100.00 115.44 156.98 193.74 190.43 220.36
SNL Bank Index : 100.00 91.69 123.69 138.61 140.50 164.35

On Jenuary 22, 2002, the Company’s common stock began trading on the NASDAQ National Market , and currently trades on the
NASDAQ Global Select Market under the trading symllaol VFGI.

i
There can be no assurance that the Company's stock performance in the future will continue with the same or similar trends depicted
in the graph above. _ i
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Item 6. SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA

The following is selected financial data for the Company for the last five years. '

)

\

Years Ended December 31,
(In thousands, except per share data) 2006 2005 2004 2003 2002
Statement of Operations Data:
Interest Income 3 95,627 § 80,706 § 70,402 % 62,827 § 63,723
Interest Expense 35,482 23,361 i] 19,628 19,357 23,101
Net Interest Income 60,145 56,845 [ 50,774 43470 40,622
Provision for Loan Losses 750 2,012 ii 2,534 1,290 1,602
Total Noninterest Income 15,485 15,443 14,544 15,227 12,721
Total Noninterest Expense 46918 43,702 l 41,016 38,866 35,030
Net Income 19,497 18,216 15,203 13,492 12,335
Performance Ratios: ] '
Retumn on Average Assets 1.24% 1.23% . 1.07% 1.13% 1.15%
Return on Average Equity 13.57% 13.86% l 12.40% . 11.47% 11.05% -
Net Interest Margin ‘ 4.25% 4.29% ] 4.04% 4.15%. 4.29%
Efficiency Ratio (l) 60.54% 59.32% 1 61.12% 64.42% 63.08%
Per Share Data: : i
Net Income - Basic 3 181 § 169 § | 142 % 126 § 1.13
Net Income - Diluted 1.80 1.68 i 1.41 1.25 1.13
Cash Dividends 0.61 056 . il 052 0.50. 0.48
Book Vaiue 13.97 12.66 il 11.83 11.17 10.63
Market Price Per Share 27.99 . 24.02 1 2444 23.68 19.87
Cash Dividend Payout Ratio 34.03% 33.07% 1 36.76% 39.81% 42.65%
Balance Sheet Data: ik , :
Assets $ 1625989 §- 1,505,184 $§ 1,449,608 § 1387211 § 1,114,905
Loans . 1,217,632 1,143,076 1,061,575 922,689 700,979
Investment securities 264,141 241,032 286,856 360,041 295,628
Deposits 1,318,281 1,255,509 1 257 164 1,210,774 959,822
Total borrowings 144,812 101,831 | 56,649 48,821 32,415
Stackholders' Equity 150,652 136,105 {127,089 119,830 114,371
Capital Ratios: ';
Tier 1 Capital (to Average Assets) 9.65% 9.32% | 8.77% 7.03% 9.63%
Total Capital {to Risk Weighted Assets) 12.44% 12.18% h 12.37% 10.57% 14.30%
Asset Quality Ratios: i
Total allowance for loan losses 1.19% 1.19% 1 1.10% 1.06% 1.31%
to total loans outstanding | : .
Non-performing assets to year-end loans 0.25% 0.16% 7 0.38% 0.80% 1.15%

and other property owned

i

(1) Computed by dividing non-interest expense by the sum of net interest income and non- !
interest income, net of gains or losses on securities, fixed assets and foreclosed assets. T?ns isa
non-GAAP financial measure, which we believe provides investors with important mformauan
regarding our operational efficiency. Comparison of our efficiency ratio with those of ather
companies may not be possible, because other companies may calculate the efficiency ratio
differently. i
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Item 7. MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF
OPERATIONS -

r
VIRGINIA FINANCIAL GROUP, INC.

[
Management’s Discussion and Anal}"sis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations

The following discussion provides management’s ana]ysrs of the consolidated financial results of operations, financial
condition, liquidity and capital resources of Vlrglma Financial Group, Inc. and its affiliates (VFG). This discussion and
analysis should be read in conjunction with the audlted ﬁnanc1al statements and footnotes appearing elsewhere in this

report. l
CAUTIONARY STATEMENT REGARDINGFORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

In addition to historical information, Mnnagementl’s Discussion and Analysis contains forward-looking statements. The
forward-looking statements are subject to certain risks and uncertainties, which could cause actual results to differ
materially from historical results, or those anticipated. When we use words such as “believes”, “expects”, “anticipates™ or
similar expressions, we are making forward-looking statements. Readers are cautioned not to place undue reliance on these
forward-looking statements, which reflect management’s analysis only as of the date thereof. VFG wishes to caution the
reader that factors, such as those listed below, in some cases have affected and could affect VFG’s actual results, causing
actual results to differ materially from those in any furward looking statement. These factors include:
¢ Expected cost savings from VFG’s acquisihons and dispositions,
Competitive pressure in the banking industry or in VFG’s markets may increase significantly,
Changes in the interest rate environment may reduce margins,
General economic conditions, either nationally or regionally, may be less favorable than expected, resulting in,
among other things, credit quality deterioration and reduced mortgage banking revenue,
Changes may occur in banking legislation and regulation,
Our concentration in loans secured by real ;estate could increase our loan losses,
Tuarnover in key personnel would disrupt our eperations,
We may identify a material weakuess or a significant deficiency in our mternal control over financial reporting that
may adversely affect our ability too properly account for non-routine transactions,
*  We may need additional eapital in the future to continue our growth and may not be able to obtain it on terms that
are favorable,
Changes may occur in general business condllmns, and

. ® - Changes may occur in the securities marke;s
i

:
|

EXECUTIVE OVERVIEW

’ |
VFG’s earnings per diluted share grew 7.1% in 2006 versus 2005, Net revenue was $75.6 million for the year ended
December 31, 2006 as compared to $72.3 millit')n in 2005. VFG eamned $19.5 million or $1.80 per diluted share, an
increase of 7.0% over 2005 carnings of $18.2 million or $1.68 per diluted share. VFG generated approximately $22.3
million in cash flow from operating activities in 2006 It paid dividends to stockholders of $6.6 million, invested $10.8
million in capital expenditures and borrowed apprommately $25 million in long term debt, net.

Desplte adding four ﬁlll-semce financial centers additional key management positions and an environment fostering
margin compression during the year, VFG still managed to grow earnings a respectable 7% over 2005. Asset quality
has remained strong despite soft real estate markets throughout many of the regions serviced by the Company. Net
interest margin remained acceptable despite an inverted yield curve and competitive pressures encountered during the
year. Continuing improvement in noninterest!income related to retail banking, trust and brokerage services was
observed, but must improve to counter the impact of anticipated net interest margin contraction in 2007,

VFG’s focus for 2007 will include loan portfolio diversification, standardization of loan and deposit pricing metrics,
concentration on the current forty branch network for retail delivery optimization in a changing competitive landscape
and improvement of revenue diversification through increased contribution of noninterest revenue streams. We will
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likely slow de novo branch activity as we focus on the maturation of six branches ‘opened during the past cighteen months.
Another significant initiative will be aggressive focus on demand deposit penetratlion in our markets via a direct marketing
program, All of our strategic efforts are intended to grow and diversify our revenue streams, support sustained profitability
and better serve the customer.

NON-GAAP FINANCIAL MEASURES ,
. ! '

This report refers to the efficiency ratio, which is computed by dividing noninterest ejlcpense by the sum of net interest income
and noninterest income, net of gains or losses on securities, fixed assets and foreclesed assets. The efficiency ratio is not a
recognized reporting measure under Accounting Principles Generally Accepted in the United States (USGAAP). We believe
this measure provides investors with important information regarding our operatlonal efficiency. Management believes such
financial information is meaningful to the reader in understandmg operating performance, but cautions that such information
not be viewed as a substitute for USGAAP. VFG, in referring to its net income, is referring to income under Accounnng
Principles Generally Accepted in the United States. Comparison of our efficiency 1 Irlatxo with those of other companies may
not be possible, because other companies may calculate the efficiency ratio dlfferentl);'

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES : ‘

General |

The Company’s financial statements are prepared in accordance with accounting prmmplec generally accepted in the United
States (GAAP). The financial information contained within our statements is, to a &gmﬂcant extent, financial information
that is based on measures and estimates of the financial effects of transactions and events that have already occurred. A
variety of factors could affect the ultimate value that is obtained either when eammg income, recognizing an expense,
recovering an asset or relieving a liability. In addition, USGAAP itself may change '} from one previously acceptable method
to another method. Although the economics of our transactions would be the same; 'ithe timing of events that would impact
our transactions could change, 1.
Allowance for Loan Losses
i

We use historical loss factors as one factor in detenmnmg the inherent loss that! may be present in our loan portfolio.
Actual losses could differ significantly from the historical factors that we use. The Company’s affiliate banks conduct
an analysis of the loan portfolio on a regular basis. This analysis is used in assessmg the sufficiency of the allowance
for loan losses and in the determination of the necessary provision for loan losses The review process generally
begins with lenders identifying problem loans to be reviewed on an individual basm for impairment, When a loan has
been identified as impaired, a specific reserve may be established based on the bank s calculation of the loss embedded
in the individual loan. In addition to impairment testing, the banks have an elght point grading system for each non-
homogeneous loan in the portfolio. The loans meeting the criteria for 1mpa1rment are segregated from performing
loans within the portfolio. Loans are then grouped by loan type and, in the case of commercial loans, by risk rating.
Each loan type is assigned an allowance factor based on historical loss experience, economic conditions, and overall
portfolio quality including delinquency rates. This evaluation is inherently subjective as it requires estimates that are
susceptible to significant revision as more information becomes available. :

‘ |

A loan is considered impaired when, based on current information and events, it is probable that the bank will be
unable to collect the scheduled payments of principal or interest when due accordmg to the contractual terms of the
loan agreement. Factors considered by management in.determining lmpau‘ment include payment status, collateral
value, and the probability of collecting scheduled principal and interest payments when due. Loans that experience
insignificant payment de]ays and payment shortfalls generally are not classified as impaired. Management determines
the significance of payment delays and payment shortfalls on a case-by-case basm, taking into consideration all of the
circumstances surrounding the loan and the borrower, including the length of the Idelay, the reasons for the delay, the
borrower’s prior payment record, and the amount of the shortfall in relation fo the principal and interest owed.

Impairment is measured on a loan-by-loan basis for commercial and constmctmn‘loans by either the present value of
expected future cash flows discounted at the loan’s effective interest rate, the loan’s obtainable market price, or the fair
value of the collateral 1f the loan is collateral dependent Larger groups of smallenbalance homogeneous loans are
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collectively evaluated for impairment. Accordingly, the Company does not separately identify individual consumer and
- residential loans for impairment disclosures, unlms" such loans are subject to a restructuring agreement.

' ‘ !
Goodwill I
Goodwill is subject to impairment testing at least ainnually to determine whether write-downs of the recorded balances
are necessary. In this testing, the Company employs general industry practices in accordance with USGAAP. A fair
value is determined for each reporting unit using various market valuation methodologies. If the fair values of the
reporting units exceed their book values, no write-down of recorded goodwill is necessary. If the fair value of a-
reporting unit is less, an expense may be required’ on the Company’s books to write down the related goodwill to the

proper carrying value, The Company tests for impairment of goodwill in September each year, and again at any’

quarter-end if any material events occur during a quarter that may affect goodwill. Through its annual analysis as of
September 30, 2006, the Company has not identified any impairment of its goodwill. No events occurred during the
fourth quarter 2006 necessitating a re-test of goodwill impairment. No assurance can be given that future goodw111
impairment tests W1ll not result in a charge to eammgs

Income Taxes . :

' ' |
Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are detenmned using the liability (or balance sheet) method. Under this
method, the net deferred tax asset or habxhty 1s determined based on the tax effects of the temporary differences
between the book and tax bases of the various balance sheet assets and liabilities and gives current recognition to
changes in tax rates and laws. J

Stock-Based Compensation i‘

The Company has a stock-based employee compensation plan under which nonqualified stock options may be granted
periodically to certain employees. The Company’s stock options typicaily have an exercise price equal to at least the
fair value of the stock on the date of grant, and vest based on continued service with the Company for a specified
_ period, generally five years. The Company adopted SFAS 123R effective January 1, 2006 using the modified
prospective method and as such, results for prior penods have not been restated. Prior to January 1, 2006, the value of
- restricted stock awards was expensed by the Company over the restriction period, and no compensation expense was
recognized for stock option grants as all such grants had an exercise price not less than fair market value on the date of

grant. - [

SFAS 123R also requires that new awards to employem eligible for retirement prior to the award becoming fully
vested be recognized as compensation cost over the period through the date that the employee first becomes eligible to
retire and is no longer required to provide service'to eamn the award.

|
RESULTS OF OPERATIONS f
l

NET INTEREST INCOME [
The primary source of VFG’s traditional bmlkmg revenue is net interest income, which represents the difference
between interest income on earning assets and mterest expense on liabilities used to fund those assets. Earning assets
include loans, securities, and federal funds sold. Interest bearing liabilities include deposits and borrowings. To
compare the tax-exempt yields to taxable ylelds amotints are adjusted to pretax equivalents based on a 35% federal
corporate income tax rate. s
b

Net interest income is affected by changes in mtcrcst rates, volume of interest bearing assets and liabilities, and the
composition of those assets and liabilities. The “interest rate spread” and “net interest margin” are two common
statistics related to changes in net interest mcome The interest rate spread represents the difference between the yields
earned on interest earning assets and the rates paid for interest bearing liabilities. The net interest margin is defined as
the percentage of net interest income to average eamning assets. Earning assets obtained through noninterest bearing
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sources of funds such as regular demand deposits and stockholders® equity result in a net interest margin that is higher
than the interest rate spread. . ‘ ; | '

2006 Compared to 2005 ' ;

]

Tax equivalent net interest income in 2006 was $62.1 million, an increase of $3 7 million or 6.3% compared to $58.5

million in 2005. Improvements in the growth and mix of average earning assets were primary contributors to this

growth and outpaced the margin compression for the year. Average interest eanlung assets increased $95.9 rmlllon or
7.0% to $1.46 bllhon, whlle average loans increased $75.2 or 6.8% to $1.19 bﬂhon

The average interest rate spread was 3 66% in 2006, down e:ghteen basis pomts from 3. 84% in 2005, The net interest
margin was 4.25% in 2006, down four basis points from 4.29% in 2005. The! sllght decrease in the Company s net
interest margin was a result of several factors, including a modestly l1ab111ty sensitive position in a rising rate
environment, additional wholesale funding costs and a more aggressive pricing of deposits with durations of nine
months or less to minimize exposure to a potentml downward cycle in sho'rt term rates, offset partially by the
aforementioned changes in asset mix. The yield on average loans increased seventy—one basis points in 2006, reflecting
the increase in short term rates during the year, while the yield on investment secuntles increased thirty-seven basis
points for the period. Interest expense as a percentage of average eaming assets mcreased to 2.44%, up sixty-nine basis
points from 1.75% in 2005, reﬂectmg a seventy-three basis point increase in average cost of retail deposits to 2.76%,
and an eighty-three basis point increase in average total funding cost to 3.03%.

2005 Compared to 2004 _ | il
Tax eqmvalent net mterest income in 2005 was $58.5 million, an increase of $5. 9 million or 11.2% compared to $52.6
million in 2004. Improvements in the growth and mix of average earning assets coupled with net interest margin
expansion, were primary contributors to this growth. Average interest carning assets increased $62.7 million or'4.8% to
$1.36 billion, while average loans increased $121.3 or 12.2% to $1.11 billion.

The average interest rate spread was 3.84% in 2005, up thu'teen basis points from 3.71% in 2004. The net interest
margin was 4.29% in 2005, up twenty-five basis points from 4.04% in 2004'|The increase in the Company’s net
interest margin was a resuli of several factors, including changes in asset mix, a! modestly asset sensitive position in a
rising rate environment, offset partlally by additional wholesale funding costs. The yield on average loans receivable
increased forty-cight basis points in 2005, reflecting the increase in short term rates during the year, while the yield on
investment securities increased nine basis points for the period. Interest expense as a percentage of average earning
assets increased to 1.75%, up twenty-four basis points from 1.51% in 2004, reﬂectmg a twenty-five basis point
increase in average cost of retail deposits to 2.03%, and an increase in average total funding cost to 2.20%.
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The following table presents net interest income ona fully taxable equivalent bas1s interest rate spread and net interest
margin for the years ending December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004.

(1} includes nonaccrual loans

(2} income and yields are reported on a taxable equivient basis usirfzg a 35% tax rate.
(3) The tax equivalent interest adjustments included in the yieids presented above were $2.0, million, 81.6 million and $1.8 million for each
of the three years ended December 3], 2006.

|
\
l

17

2006 ) 005 2004
Average Income/ Average Average Imcome/ Average Average Inceme/ Average
Dollars in thousands Balance Expense 1 Rate Balance Expense  Rate Balance Expense  Rate
ASSETS ’ ' '
Loans receivable, net (1) (2) § 1,183,388 § 84,159 ; 7.08% § 1,113.206 § 70,908 637% § 991,911 § 58,463 5.89%
Investment securities . . X o :
Taxable 165,083 7210 | 437% 173,668 6,844 3.94% 233429 9,160 3.92%
Tax exempt (2) 85,020 5,247 | 6.17% 63,029 4,069 6.46% 66,610 4403  6.61%
Total investments - 250,103 12457 1 4.98% 236,697 10,513 4.61% 300,039 13,563  4.52%
Interest bearing deposits 2,681 74" 1 2.76% 1,256 41 326% 416 4 096%
Federa! funds sold 18,805 930 4.95% 12,968 464 3.58% 9,044 152 1.68%
. Total interest earning assets 1,459,977 97,620 | 6.69% 1,364,127 82,326 6.04% 1,301,410 72,182 5.55%
Allowance for loan losses (14,118) [ (12,644) (10,776)
Total noneaming assets 124,919 i 126,235 132,570
Total assets $ 1,570,778 " s 1547757 13 3 1423204
= = i -
LIABLILITIES AND STOCKHROLDERS EQUITY : ' ’
Interest-bearing deposits - i o
Interest checking s 170,204 § . 765 | 045% $ 192987 § 807 042% $§ 195,131 § 950  0.49%
Money market 170,892 314 1 219% 176,606 2,325 . 132% 176,386 T 1,649 0.94%
Savings 108,659 853 ' 0.79% 131,420 880 0.67% 140,925 948  0.67%
Time deposits: ! . .
Less than $100,000 393,897 15,099 : 3.83% 364,645 11,473 3.15% 370,746 10,233  2.76%
$100,000 and more 189,353 8045 . 4.25% 137,197 4923 3.59% 121,135 4079  337%
Total interest-bearing deposits 1,033,005 28496 | 2.76% 1,002,855 20,408 2.03% 1,004,323 17,859 L78%
Federal funds purchased & |
repurchase agreements 4,738 219 | 4.62% 21,18% 568 2.68% 23,801 238 1.00%
Federzl Home Loan Bank advances 61,612 2,834 1 4.60% 33,056 1351, 4.09% 12,960 801 6.18%
Subordinated debt 20,619 1,636 : 7.93% 20,619 1,260 6.11% 16,281 683 4.20%
Commercial paper 50,530 2275 | 450% 7,724 255 3.30%
Other borrowings 363 22 1 6.06% C 947 19 2.01% ' 10,277 47  0.46%
Total interest-bearing lmbl.lmes 1,170,867 35482 | 3.03% 1,086,390 23,841 2.20% 1,067,642 19628  1.34%
Demand deposits 239,332 ] 249,938 224,877
Other liabilitics 16,857 ! 9,953 8,035
Total liabilities 1,427,056 ' 1,346,281 1,300,554
Stockholders' equity - 143,722 l 131,437 122,650
Totel fiabilities and ! !
stockholders' equity ‘8§ 1,570,778 ! $ 14771,718 § 1423204
! C
Net interest income (lax equivalent) (3) $§ 62,138 $ 58465 § 52,554
e ———— e
Average interest rate spread | 3.66% 3.84% 3.71%
Interest expense as a percent |
of average eaming assets | 243% 1.75% 1.51%
— ———— _—
Net interest margin I 425% 4.29% 4.04%
] —_— —_——
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| The next table analyzes the changes in net interest income on a fully taxable equivalent basis for the periods broken

down by their rate and volume components. The change in interest due to both rate and volume has been allocated
proportionately to change due to volume versus change due to rate. !

!

Years Endeq: December 31,
2006 vs. 2005 . 2005 vs. 2004
, . Increase (Decrease) ; Increase (Decrease)
. Due to changes in: , Due to changes in:
(Dollars in thousands} _ Volume Rate Total | Volume Rate Total
Interest Income: i
[
Loans _ " $ 5015 $ 8236 § 13,251 | 8 7451 § 4994 § 12445
Securities, taxable . . (355) 721 366 ! (2,362) 46 (2,316)
Securities, tax-exempt 1,368 (190y . 1,178 '; (236) (98) (334)
Interest-bearing deposits : 40 {7 33 ll 17 20 37
Federal funds sold _ 252 214 466 .\ 86 226 312
Total Interest Earning Assets $ 6320 § 8974 $ 15294 i § 4956 $ 5188 §$ 10,144
. : - |
Interest Expense: %
Time and savings deposits: ;
Interest checking -8 97 $ 55 § (). s 8§ (135 % 43)
Money market 65) 1474 1,409 | 2 674 676
Savings , _ (17D 144 27 (68) - (68).
Time deposits ' '!
Less than $100,000 . 1,001 2,625 3,626 | (185) 1,425 1,240
$100,000 and more 2,104 1,018 3,122 566 278 844
Total time and savings deposits 2,772 5,316 8,088 t 307 2,242 2,549
Federal funds and repurchase agreements (606) 257 {349) | (29) 359 330
Federal Home Loan Bank advances 1,296 187 1,483 | 874 (324) 550
Subordinated debt . 376 376 | 215 362 577
Commercial paper | 1,896 124 2,020 | 255 - 255
Other borrowings 17 20 3 (73) 45 (28)
Total Interest Bearing Liabilities 5,341 6,280 11,621 ! 1,549 2,684 4,233
k
Net Interest Income : $ 979 § 2,694 § 3,673 '§ 3407 § 2504 § 5911




i
NONINTEREST INCOME ;
2006 Compared to 2005 i

Noninterest income increased to $15.5 million in:2006, an increase of $42 thousand or .3% compared to 2005. The
2006 results include a loss of $196 thousand on sale of securities available for sale. Included in the 2005 results were
net gains on sales of securities available for sale of $296 thousand and a net gain of $421 thousand in connection with
the sale of two branches located in Tazewell County. Retail banking fees increased to $7.0 million, an increase of $28
thousand or .4% from 2005. Increases in fees associated with new account generation and debit card activity were
offset by decreases in the volume of overdrafis.

| v - - 'R
|

Gains on sales of mortgage loans from mongage bankmg activities decreased to $2.9 million, a decrease of $222
thousand or 7.2%. Due to the higher morigage rates and a cooling of real estate markets during 2006, the Company
experienced a decline in mortgage originations in both purchase money and refinance mortgages when compared to the
robust levels noted during 2005. VFG originated $134.1 million and sold $138.6 million of secondary mortgage loans
during 2006, compared to $176.5 million ongmated and $176.1 million sold in 2005.

Commissions and fees from fiduciary and brokeragc activities assocxated w1th our trust and wealth management
activities increased to $3.9 million for 2006, an increase of $187 thousand or 5.1% over 2005. At December 31, 2006,
VEG’s trust affiliate had assets under management and brokerage assets of $597 million, compared to 8511 million at
December 31, 2005. , | .

|
Other operating income increased to $1.7 million in 2006 an increase of $587 thousand or 55.1% compared to 2005.
The largest contributors to this increase were a $489 thousand in commission revenue generated-by Virginia Financial
Title Agency (VFTA) which opened during 2006 and $231 thousand of income related to bank owned life insurance
(BOLI) offset by minor decreases in commissions 'from the sale of other banking products. Income produced by VFTA
is aggregated into the income generated by our subsndmry banks and is considered an operat:ng entity, but not a
separate reporting entity or segment.

2005 Compared to 2004 J

}
Noninterest income increased to $15.4 million in l2005 an increase of $899 thousand or 6.2% compared to 2004, Retail
banking fees decreased to $7.0 million, a decrease of $568 thousand or 7 6% from 2004. Decreased fees associated
with overdraft charges accounted for most of this decrease.

| . _
Gains on sales of mortgage loans from mortga_ge banking activities increased to $3.1 million, an increase of $627
thousand or 25.4%. The Company experienced higher levels of mortgage originations in both purchase money and
refinance mortgages during 2005. VFG originated $176.5 million and sold $176.1 million of secondary mortgage loans
during 2005, compared to $148.2 million originafed and $150.1 million sold in 2004.

Commissions and fees from fiduciary and brokerage activities associated with our trust and wealth management
activities increased to $3.7 million for 2005, an mcrease of $210 thousand or 6.1% over 2004. At December 31, 2005,
VFG’s trust affiliate had assets under management and brokerage assets of $511 million, compared to $515 million at
December 31, 2004. |

The Company realized a gain of $421 thousand'during 2005 in conjunction with the sale of two branches located in
Tazewell County, Virginia. The Company also realized a gain on sale of securities during 2005 of $296 thousand.

Other operating income amounted to $1.1 million in 2005, essentially flat with 2004.
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NONINTEREST EXPENSE ’|

The following table :présents the components of noninterest expense and the valfilance or percentage change:

: 2006 vs. 2005 f 2005 vs. 2004

In thousands) 2006 2005 % . 2005 2004 %
Compensation and employee benefits. $ 26,607 $ 25,284 5.2% 1§ 25,284 § 22,669 11.5%
Net occupancy expense _ " 3,147 2,388  9.0% 1 2888 2721 6.1%
Supplies and equipment expenses 4141 4,056 2.1% 1 4,056 4333  £4%
Amortization - intangible assets 578 643 -101% | 643 694 -7.3%
Marketing | 1,214 887 369% | 887 636 39.5%
State franchise taxes ' 9 870 11.8% f 870 599 45.2%
Data processing 1,389 1,380 00% || 1,389 1,464 -5.1%
Professional fees” = 7 . ) 823 804 2.4% ‘ R04 022 -12.8%
Telecommunications 1,006 1,017 -1.1% , 1,017 1,055 -3.6%
Other operating expense 7,040 5864 20.1% | 5,864 5923 -10%

$ 46,918 3§ 43,702 7.4% ‘8§ 43,702 3 41,016 6.5%

Noninterest expenses increased to $46.9 million in 2006, an increase of $3.2 m{illion or 7.4% over 2005. This increase

was mainly attributable to the following factors:

Additional operating, compensation and occupancy costs arising from thT opening of four additional full-service
branches. . i

- Compensatlon and benefits associated with merit increases and addmon.al1 costs associated with employee benefit

costs, particularly health and welfare plans. !
Costs associated with marketing and branding initiatives. l
Expenses related to strategic initiatives within our secondary mortgage dmswn

Increase in bank franchisc taxes associated with increased capital levels coupled with decreased qualifying
securities deductlons 1
]

Noninterest expenses mcreased to $43.7 million in 2005, an increase of $2.7 m11110n or 6.5% over 2004. This increase
was mainly attributable to the following factors: _ l

'I
Compensatlon and benefits associated with merit mcreas&s and addmonal costs assoc1ated with employee benefit
costs, particularly health and welfare plans. 'fl
Compensation and benefits associated with a $1.7 million increase in mceane accruals,
Costs associated with marketing and branding initiatives.

¢ General decreases in operational costs (data processing, professional fees telecommunications) associated with

INCOME TAXES

improved operating efficiency and sale of Tazewell branches.
Increase in bank franchise taxes associated with increased capital levels coupled with decreased qualifying
securities deductions.

I

For the year ended December 31, 2006, income taxes were $8.5 million, rmultmg in an effecﬂve tax rate of 30.2%
-~ compared to $8.4 million or 31.4% in 2005 and $6.6 million or 30.2% in 2004. The decrease in the effective tax rate for
2006 as compared to 2005 can be attributed to the tax free income generated. by the investment in bank owned life
insurance and investments in tax credits. The decrease in the effective tax rate for 2005 as compared to 2004 can be
attributed to a higher proportion of earnings from tax-exempt assets, such' as obligations of states and political
subdivisions during those years. ='

|
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ASSET QUALITY

%
1

The aIlowance for loan losses rcprcscnts an estlmate in management’s judgment, of the amount needed to absorb
losses incurred through the reporting date on cx1stmg loans in the portfolio. The following table represents VFG’s

activity in its allowance for loan losses:

December 31,

(In thousands) . T 2006 2005 2004 2003 2002
Allowance for toan losses, January l . $ 13,581 $ 11,706 $§ 9743 § 9,180 -$ 8,266
Loans Charged Off: ° r ‘ . '
Real estate - construction ! - - . 48 - 6
Real estate - mortgage .- - | 30 55 B2 180 . 200
Non-farm, Non-residential ' - 38 .30 - i
Commercial, financial and agricultural | 88 41 124 191 - 330
Consumer loans | 284 318 518 585 427
All other loans I s - - - - -
Total Loans Charged Off } 402 452 802 956 963 -
r -
. Recoveries | . i
Real estate - construction ; - 48 - - -
Real estate - mortgage | 24 4 4 1. 89
Non-farm, Non-residential I - 23 - - -
Commercial, financial and agncultural } 83" so . 83 . 11 14
Consumer loans - \ 464 190 - 1,144 217 172
All other loans L - - - - -
Total Recoveries . ‘ “. : 571 315 231 229 275
Net (Recovéries) Charge-offs ‘ (169) 137 571 27 638
Provision for Loan Losses - i , - 750 2,012 2,534 1,290 1,602
Allowance for loan losses, December 31 : $ 14,500 § 13,581 $ 11,706 $ 9,743 § 9,180
: [
Ratio of allowance for loan losses to total - ’ _ o
loans outstanding at end of year | 1.15% 1.19% 1.10% 1.06% - 1.31%
Ratio of net charge offs (recoveries) to average : '
loans outstanding during the year - (0.01%) . 0.01% 0.06% 0.09% 0.10%

The balance of the allowance for loan losses was $14.5 million as of December 31, 2006, comparcd to $13.6 million
and $11.7 million as of December 31, 2005 and 2004, respectively.
outstanding loans as of both December 31, 2006 and 2005 and 1.10% as of December 31, 2004. The allowance as a
* percentage of loans during 2006 and 2005 remained consistent and increased when compared to 2004 due to the

following:

The allowance for loan losses was 1.19% of -

e An increase in commercial real estaté concentration over the last several years. Including multifamily,
' nonresidential and junior liens, commcrc1al real estate loans which remamed stable in 2006 and grew $85.7

million in 2005, representing growth of and 16.9%.

o A real estate market that remains sofl. Commermal real estate activity experlenced a significant decline in our
markets during the second half of 2006. The number of building permits issued, median home sales prices, new
homes in inventory, number of days onlmarket housing affordability and new mortgage ongmatlons indicate
that a general cychcal decline in the rc&denual real estate market is occurring as well.

e The growing popularity of non- tradzt:onal mortgage products. While the Company’s affiliate banks do not
originate non-traditional mortgages within their own portfolios, we-do have the risk associated with borrowers
who have them. The allowance analysis has considered this and other factors in the determination of soft

factors.
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Net (recoveries) charge-offs were ($169 thousand) during 2006, compared :to $137 thousand during 2005 and $571

thousand during 2004. The percentage of net (recoveries) charge-offs to average loans was (0.01%) for 2006, 0.01%

for 2005, and 0.06% for 2004, reflecting a slightly improved level of (recovexy) charge-off experience.
The following tablc.summanzes the allocation of the allowance for loan losses|by loan type:

| | : - : December 31, Co
(In thousands) 2006 2005 !l 2004 2003 2002
Allocation of allowance for possible . ' ! :
loan losses, end of year -

Real estate - construction 5 2426 $ 923 3. 684 § 567 § - 319
Real estate - mortgage 7,519 6,498 Aq 7,702 5425 - 4,759
-Commercial, financial and agricultural , 3,435 3,314 982 408 2,603
Consumer Loans , L 595 930 839 639 710
All Other Loans , ' 17 53 51 50 47
Unallocated ) 508 1,863 | 1,448 2,654 742
Off balance sheet items - - ' - - -
Total allowance for loan losses 3 14,500 % 13,581 $'1 11,706 % 9,743 § 9,180
Ratio of loans to total year-end loans _ [
Real estate - construction . 16.30% 10.15% . 11.02% 10,22% 8.13%
Real estate - mortgage 71.82% 79.13% 1 7644% 75.63% 73.61%
Commercial, financial and agricultural 8.61% 6.84% 8.03% B.24% 9.14%
Consumer Loans 2.71% L358% 4 4.18% 5.43% 7.80%
All Other Loans - 0.56% 031% | 0.32% 0.47% 1.32%
100.00% 100.00% it 100.00% 100.00% 100.00%

!

The increase in the allocation to the real estate — construction category mirrors the growth noted in this category of the
loan portfolio during 2006. It now represents 16.3% of total loans compared to 10.2% of total loans in 2005. The largest
allowance allocation is to the real estate-mortgage loan portfolio, which reprcscﬂts approximately 51.9% of the allowance
balance at December 31, 2006. The increase in 2004 was primarily the result of commercxa] real estate loan growth, which
normally carries a higher risk rating and allowance allocation than 1-4 famll mortgages. The real estate — mortgage
category represented 76.4% of total loans outstanding at year end, of whjchllapproximately 55% represented a non-
homogeneous portfolio consisting of loans collateralized by commercial real estate

The following table presents information concerning the aggregate amount of non—perfom‘ling assets:

, . i December 31,
(In thousands) . 2006 2005 2004 .| 2003 2002
Non-accrual loans ;|
Real Estate Construction $ 60 $ - 3 -y$ 132 8 42
Real Estate Mortgage 1,934 1,203 2,289 1 2,276 853
Commercial, Financial and Agricultural 544 288 59 ’ 84 19
Consumer Loans 461 113 204 185 26
Unallocated - - _ - 7' - -
Off balance sheet items - - - - -
Troubled debt restructurings - 154 1,451 | 4,525 6,547
Other property owned 38 75 5. 136 577 .
Total non-performing assets $ 3037 -§ 1,833 $ 4,008 :1$7,338 §8,0064
Loans past due 90 days ;
accruing interest $ - 8 - 3 _ls 25 $ ‘104
Nonperforming assets to total l|
assets ' 0.19% 0.12% . 028% . 053% 0.72%
Non-performing assets to year-end 1
loans and other property owned 0.25% 0.16% 0.38% ;I 0.80% 1.15%

!t
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" 4 Investment Securities

I
I

. - . . - . [ ' .. i
If interest on nonaccrual loans and troubled. debt  restructurings: had ‘been’ accrued, such income would have
approximated $181 thousand, $91 thousand $118, i$108 thousand and $37 thousand for each of the five years ended
December 31, 2006, respectively. .

l
}

Non-performing assets consist of VFG's non-accrlual loans, troubled-debt restructurings, and other property owned.

Loans are gencrally placed on non-accrual status When the collection of principal and interest is ninety days or more .
past due, or earlier, if coliection is uncertain based| on an evaluation of the net realizable value of the collateral and the -

financial strength of the borrower. For those loans which are carried on non-accrual status, interest is recognized on a
cash basis. At December 31, 2006, total non-performmg assets totaled $3.0 million, an increase of $1.2 million from
2005. For 2008, total nonperforming assets were $1.8 million, a decrease of $2.2 million from 2004. The increase in
2006 is attributed to sever al small relationships that are well collateralized. The decrease in 2005 is attributable to a
reduction in restructured loans of $1.3 million. AlI remaining restructured loans are performing as agreed and, in the
opinion of management, are adequately reserved. Non-accmal loans consist of predominately all smgle—fa.tmly
mortgage loans that are well collaterahzed : :

FINANCIAL CONDITION

e e

|
|
|
]
s
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- The following table summarizes the carrying values of investment securities:

(Dollars in thousands) " -~~~ _ w6 ! 2008 2004
T Avallablefor ~  Heldto - . Available for . Held to Avallable for Held to
SIS P UNURP RIS . | | Mammy e Sale . Maturity Sale - Maturity
U. S. Treasury : 3 'S s 2505 $ - s 7,196  § -
U. S. Government agencies .~ 110,078 © oo . 8sm71 - . 116,938 -
. State and municipals -, , 98,135 3.328‘ . 81,836 4,287 71,816 5,849
Corporate bonds ‘ 2,506 : 6,062 - 9317 : -
Coliatcralized mortgage obhgauons 1,183 - - 3,270 ) - 4,459 ) -
- Mongage backed secarities w s 45345 - 55821 » e © 68,880 -
Equity securities L i 3,511 . - 1,659 . - 1,565 . -
Other e - 55 - 575 - 836 -
Total investment securities $§ 260813 § 3& $ 236745 3 4,287 $ 281007 § 5,849

%
!
|
|
)
-
|
|
]
;
|
J
l

23




The following table shows the maturities of available for sale debt and equ:tywsecunnes at amortized cost and market
value as of December 31, 2006 and approximate weighted average yields of such securities. Yields on state and
political subdivision securities are shown on a tax equivalent basis, assummg a 35% federal income tax rate. VFG

attempts to maintain diversity in its portfolio, maintain durations that are conmstcnt with its asset/liability management
and hold a mgmﬁcant allocation of securities in states and political subdms:ons ithat provide tax benefits.

W cighted Welghted -
Book Market | Average Average

 (Dollars in thousands) Value - Value- Maturity TE Yield
Federal Agencies , Co RS
Within one year - _ $ 54375. 8 54,177 1] 45years 4.67%
After one year to five years 56,537 55,901 it 2.48 years 4.29%
Total . 110,912 110,078 /| 149 years  4.48%
Collatcrahzed Mortgage Obl igations ‘ :
After ten years © % 1210 $ 1,183 123.32 years  3.98%
Total : 1,210 1,183  "2332years  3.98%
Mortgage Backed Securities ' ) '
After one year to five years -8 9,003 § 8791 1 335years 4.09%
. After five ycars to ten years 32,121 31,241 | 680 years 4.16%
' After ten years 5,283 5,313 119.92 years  5.64%
Total 46,407 45,345 1| 762 years  432%
State and Municipals !
Within oneyear - $ 3315 8 3310 | .S2years 557%
After one year to five years 39,651 39,950 1326years  6.01%
After five yearsto ten years - - 42,249 42361, '[731years 5.68%
After ten years _ 12,190 12,514 ;12.48 years  6.54%
Total ) 97,405 98,135 6.08 years -5.92%
Corporate Bonds : . :
Within one year ' $ 1,003 & 1,004 29 years 6.16% -
After one year to five years 1,500 ‘1,502 11207 years  5.27%
Total 2,503 2506 1136years 5.62%.
Total Fixed Income Securities - | i
Within one year $ 58,693 3 58491 | Ad6ycars 4.75%
After one year to five years . 106,691 106,144 112.84 years  4.93%
After five years to ten years 74,370 73,602 1{7.09 years  5.02%
After ten years . 18,683 19,010 15.28 years  6.12%
Total 258,437 257,247 1442 years  5.00%
Equity Securities 2,929 3,511 I
Other Securities 55 55 i
Total Securities $ 261421 $260,813 {
i

There is no issuer of securities in which the aggregate book value of that iss"ﬁer, other than securities of the U.S.
Treasury and U.S. Government agencies, exceeds 10% of stockholders’ equity. _;E

Loan Portfolio -'

At December 31, 2006, loans, net of unearned income and the allowance forlloan losses, totaled $1 20 billion, an
increase of $73.6 million or 6.5% from $1.13 billion in 2005. The commerclai real estate portfoho, which is a
component of the real estate — mortgage portfolio, amounted to $577.2 million at December 31, 2006, and represents
47.4% of the total portfolio. At December 31, 2006, off balance sheet unused loan commitments and standby letters of
credit amounted to $386.2 million, compared to $413.9 million at December 31‘ 2005. These commitments may be

secured or unsecured. On December 31, 2006, VFG had no concentration of loans to any one industry in excess of 10%
of its loan portfolio.

4
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The following table summarizes the loan receivab;lc portfolio by loan type:

l «
| December 31,

{In thousands) 2006 2005 2004 2003 2002
Real estate - construction $ 198400 § 115944 § 116,888 § 94372 § 57,032
Real estate - mortgage 873,911 904,115 811,197 698,107 516,512
Commercial, financial and agricultural 104,709 78,110 85,256 76,075 64,146
Consumer loans 33,030 40,876 44,379 50,163 54,738
All other loans .[ 6,768 3,486 . 3,448 4,353 9,233
Total loans before deduction of _ I . o

unearned income 1,216,818 1,142,531 1,061,168 923,070 - 701,661
Plus: Deferred Costs (Fees) | 814 545 407 -~ (381) - (682)
Total loans before allowance for B . ‘

loan losses - 1,217,632 1,143,076 - 1,061,575 922,689 700,979
Less: allowance for loan losses (14,500} {13,581) (11,706) (9,743 - (9,180)
Net loans $ 1,203,132 § 1,129495 § 1,049869 § 912946 § 691,799

- The following tables set forth the contractual maturity of the loan portfolio as of December 31, 2006

: After one
: |  Oneyear butlessthan  After five
(In thousands) _ . | or less five years years Total
Real estate - construction % 124549 8 50,151 § 23,700 § 198,400
Real estate - mortgage ‘ : 113,419 176,979 583,513 873,911
Commercial, financial and agricultural ! T 59,075 30,128 15,506 104,709
Consumer loans i 5,458 19,963 7,609 33,030
All other loans | 152 381 6,235 6,768
Total loans (1) ' . § 302653 $ 277,602 $ 636,563 § 1,216,818

}
: S
(1) Excluding loans held for sale and'before deduction of unearned income.

After one
but less than  After five
five years years Total

For maturities over one year: ,
Fixed rates $ 256,714 § 283,586 § 540,300

x
i
I
}
|
|
Variable rates . _ ; 20,388 352,977 373,865
|
!
{
f
I

Total $ 277,602 $ 636563 $ 914,165

Deposits

Deposits at December 31, 2006 amounted to $1 32 billion, an increase of $62.8 rmlhon or 5.0% from $1 .26 billion in
2005. For 2006, demand and savings deposits decrcased by $31.2 million, and time deposits increased $94.0 million,
with $12.8 million of the increase coming from brokered CD deposits. For 2005, demand and savings deposits
decreased by $22.8 million, while time deposxts increased $21.2 million. The overall cost of deposit funds increased to
2.76% in 2006, compared to 2. 03% in 2005 and 1.78% in 2004, reflecting higher rate enwronments in both 2006 and

2005.
[

|
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The following table; illustrates average outstanding deposits and rates paid:

' . 2006 ‘ 2005 2004

" (In thousands) | -+ Amount - Rate. - Amount || Rate Amount Rate
Noninterest beanngdemand deposﬂs 8 .239.332 - § . 249938 - 85 224877 .-
Interesf—beanng deposlts . . ‘ . il Lo . .

Interest checkmg . , 170,204 0.45% . 192,987 .. 042% . 195131 - 049%%
Moncymarket L ’ . 170,892 2.19%. 176, 606 1.32% 176,386 0.94%
Savmgs o o - 108,659 - 0.79% 131 420 ‘ 0.67% 140925 , . 0.67%
-Txmcgdcposxts B : : T || R A
Less than $100 000 . 393,897 - 3.83% . 364,645 3.15% 370,746 . 2.?6%
$100 000 and more 189,353 4.25% 137, 197 3.59% - 121,135 3.3T%
Total nllterest—beanng deposits - ‘ 1,033.005 - 2.76% 1,002,855 2.03% 1,004,323 1.78%
Total average deposits S $ 1,272,337 $ 1,252,793 $ 1,229,200 .
. . . - Do } .
Maturities of time dcpos1ts of $100,000 and over: S : i J
S I . (In thausandv) i
B : . AtDecember 31,2006 ‘ ]
I Within threemonths  § 31 ]84‘
; Three to six months . 36,277
Coy ~ Six to twelve months 87,5391
g Over twelve months 49,5801 '
e . 3 .204,580HI
Borrowiings a : .

In 2006 the Company concentrated on’ promotmg the COInmC[‘(:lal paper product to large commercial customers and
consequently reduced securities sold under agreements to repurchase by $15t9 million from December 31, 2005, to
Decembcr 31, 2006. The increase in commercial paper of $34.2 million or 139 5%, during 2006 not only eliminated
the reh:mce on securities sold under agreements to repurchase, but in combmatlon with a $25 million net increase in
Federal :Home Loan Bank borrowings, also prowded a funding source for balance sheet growth throughout the current
year. :

The foH{meg table shows certain information regarding the Company’s conunl:rc:a] paper:-

] I ] | L AtorfortheyearendngecemberBl,

~

f
2006 T 2005 °
. Commercml paper: { . S _ o
Average balance outstanding B 50,530 $ 1724
' Maxnmum amount outstandingat , * : T
" any month-end during the period _ 68,784 . . 24,480,
. Balance outstandmg at end of period o 58,632 - - | .- 24480 -
‘ Average interest rate durmg the period 450% . 3.30%.
‘ ‘We1g,hted averagc interest rateat - 482% . . 3.39%
end of period . L - B {
ERRS
P

;
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Capital Adequacy ;
The management of capital in a regulated financial services industry must properly balance retun on equity to
stockholders while maintaining sufficient capital /levels and related risk-based capital ratios to satisfy regulatory
requirements. Additionally, capital management nmst also consider acquisition opportunities that may exist, and the

resulting accounting treatment. VFG’s capital managent strategies have been developed to provide attractive rates of
returns to stockholders, while maintaining its “weﬂ-capltahzed” position at each of the banking subsidiaries.

The primary source of additional capital to VFG 1s earnings retention, which represents net income less dividends
declared. During 2006 VFG retained $12.9 rmllxon, or 66.0% of its net income. Stockholders’ equity increased by
$14.5 million, reflecting comprehensive income of $1.3 million related primarily to unrealized gains on securities
available-for-sale during the period. B

f
i

VFG and its banking affiliates are subject to various regulatory capital requirements administered by the federal
banking agencies. Failure to meet minimum capital requirements can initiate certain mandatory and possibly
additional discretionary actions by regulators that, if undertaken, could have a dircct material effect on VFG and the
affiliate banks’ financial statements. Under capltal adequacy guidelines and the regulatory framework for prompt
corrective action under FDICIA, VFG and its bankmg affiliates must meet specific capital guidelines that involve
- quantitative measures of their assets, liabilities and certain off-balance sheet items as calculated under regulatory
accounting practices. The capital amounts and reclassifications are also subject to qualitative judgments by the
regulators about components, risk weightings, and other factors. '

Quantitative measures established by regulation td ensure capital adequacy require VFG and its banking affiliates to
maintain minimum amounts and ratios of total and Tier 1 capital to average assets. As of December 31, 2006, and
2005 VFG and the subsidiary banks met all minimum capital adequacy requirements to which they are subject and are
categorized as “well capitalized.” There are no conditions or events since the notification that management beheves
have changed the subsidiary banks’ category.

|

|
LIQUIDITY |
) . . .
Liquidity is identified as the ability to generate or écquﬁc sufficient amounts of cash when needed and at a reasonable
cost to accommodate withdrawals, payments of debt, and increased loan demand. These events may occur daily or at
other short-term intervals in the normal operation of the business. Experience helps management predict time cycles in
the amount of cash required. In assessing liquidity, management gives consideration to relevant factors including
stability of deposits, quality of assets, economic conditions in the market served, concentrations of business and
industry, competition, and VFG’s overall financial condition. VFG’s bank affiliates have available a combined $247
million line of credit with the Federal Home Loan Bank of Atlanta, unused lines of credit totaling $92.4 million with
nonaffiliated banks and access to the Federal Reserve discount window to support liquidity as conditions dictate.
The liguidity of the parent Company also rcprésents an important aspect of liquidity management. The parent .
Company’s cash outflows consist of overhead assoclated with corporate expenses, executive management, finance,
marketing, loan and deposit operations, information technology, human resources, audit, -compliance and credit
administration functions. It also includes outﬂow:s associated with dividends to shareholders. The main sources of
funding for the parent Company are the management fees and dividends it receives from its banking and trust
subsidiaries, nonrated commercial paper issued by the Company, a working line of credit with a correspondent bank,
and availability of the trust preferred security market as deemed necessary. During 2006, the banking subsidiaries ‘and
the non-bank subsidiary paid $13.0 million in management fees and transferred $12.5 million dividends to VFG. As of
January 1, 2007, the aggregate amount of add1t10na1 unrestricted funds, which could be transferred from the banking
subsidiaries to the VFG without prior regulatory approval totaled $42.1 million or 27.9% of the consolidated net assets.
The parent Company generated approximately $8.5 million in cash flow from operating activities in 2006. It paid
dividends to stockholders of $6.6 million, invested $600 thousand in fixed assets and borrowed $34.2 million under its
commercial paper program which it invested in short term investment instruments.

f
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Contraclrual Obligations . 1

The impact of our contractual obligations as of December 31 2006 on hqmdlty and cash flow in future periods is as
follows: _ ||

Contractual Obligations . . Payme:nt!'ilI Due by Period
. One year ; More than |

(In thousands) _ , Total . or less 1-3 years . 3-5 years 5 years
Certificates of Deposit , $ 614796 § 428845 § 143 791. § 42,122 § 38
Subordinated Debt 20,619 - - 20,619
FHLB Borrowings 65,000 10,000 25 000 10,000 20,000 -
Operating Leases 3,407 606 | 880 ~ 371 1,550
Total o $ 703,822 § 439451 § 169,671 .3 52493 % 42,207
Other Commitments Commitmient Expiration by Period

' ' ' One year i More than
{In thousands) Total or less 1-3 years . 3-5 years 5 years
Commitments to extend credit $ 370575 § 227321 § 35671 $ 12,135 § 95,448
Standby letters of credit . + 15,635 12,906 112,729 - -
Mortgage loans sold with potential recourse 50,648 50,648

| - - -
$ 436,858 $_290,875 “$ 38,400 $ 12,135 $ 95,448

-

In the judgment of management VFG maintains the ablllty to generate, sufﬁcmnt amounts of cash to cover normal
requirements and any additional needs which may arise, within real:stlc linitations.
|

Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements

As of December 31, 2006, the Company has not participated in any material lunconsohdated entities or financial
partnerships, such as entitics often referred to as structured finance or special purpose entities. VFG does have
significant commitments to fund loans in the ordinary course of business. i

At December 31, 2006 ancl 2005 the followmg ﬁnancml instruments were outstandmg whose contract amounts
represent credif risk: . ‘ 1

2006 | - 2005
. . ] ) | ’
Commitments to extend credit _ § 370,575 § 397341
Standby letters of credit 15,634 16,602
Mortgage loans sold with potential recourse - _ . 50,648 - 53,776

Commitments to extend credit are agreements to lend to a customer as long as tﬁcre is no violation of any condition
established in the contract. Commitments generally have fixed expiration dates di"other termination clauses and may
require payment of a fee. The commitments for equity lines of credit may 1expn'e without being drawn upon.
Therefore, the total commitment amounts do not necessarily represent future cash requirements. The amount of

collateral obtained, if lt is deemed neccssary by. the Company, is bascd on managcment’s credit evaluation of the
customer. : |

Unfunded commitments under commercial lines of Credlt revolving credit lines and overdraft protection agreements
are commitments for possible future extensions of credit to existing customers.j These lines of credit are usually

uncollateralized and do not always contain a specified maturity date and may not be drawn upon to the total extent to
which the Company is committed. _ _ g

v
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Standby letters of credit are conditional commitments issued by the Company to guarantee the performance of a
customer to a third party. The credit risk involved in issuing letters of credit is essentially the same as that involved in
extending loan facilities to customers. The Company generally holds collateral supporting those commitments, if
deemed necessary. The Company, through its ban.lqng subsidiaries, originates loans for sale to secondary market
investors subject to contractually specified and limited recourse provisions. In 2006, the Company originated $134
million and sold $139 million to investors, compared to $177 million originated and $176 million sold in 2005. Most
contracts with investors contain certain recourse language which may vary from 90 days up to twelve months. The
Company may have an obligation to repurchase a loan if the mortgagor has defaulted early in the loan term. Mortgages
subject to recourse are collateralized by.single family residences, have loan-to-value ratios of 80% or less, or have
private mortgage insurance or are insured or guaranteed by an agency of the United States government. At December
31, 2006, the Company had locked-rate commitments to originate mortgage loans amounting to approximately $10.8
million and loans held for sale of $7.6 million. The Company has entered into commitments, on a best-effort basis to
sell loans of approximately $18.4 million. Risks arise from the possible inability of counterparties to meet the terms of
their contracts. The Company does not expect an)g counterparty to fail to meet its obligations,

RECENT ACCOUNTING PRONOUNCEMENTS

In February 2006, FASB Issued Statement No. 155 (SFAS 155), “Accounting for Certain Hybrid Financial
Instruments” which is effective for fiscal years beginning after September 15, 2006. This Statement amends FASB
Statements No. 133, Accounting for Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities, and No. 140, Accounting for
Transfers and Servicing of Financial Assets and Extinguishments of Liabilities. This Statement resolves issues
. addressed in Statement 133 Implementation Issue No. D1, “Application of Statement 133 to Beneficial Interests in
Securitized Financial Assets .”

The Company does not expect the adoption of Statement 155 at the beginning of 2007 to have a material impact on the
consolidated financial statements. !

In March 2006, the Financial Accounting Standards Board issued Statement of Financial Accounting Standard No.
156, "Accounting for Servicing of Financial Assets an amendment of FASB Statement 140" (Statement 156).
Statement 156 amends Statement 140 with respect to separately recognized servicing assets and liabilities. Statement
156 requires an entity to recognize a servicing asset or liability each time it undertakes an obligation to service a
financial asset by entering into a servicing contract and requires all servicing assets and liabilities to be initially
measured at fair value, if practicable. Statement 156 also permits entities to subsequently measure servicing assets and
liabilities using an amortization method or fair value measurement method. Under the amortization method, servicing
assets and liabilities are amortized in proportion to and over the estimated period of servicing. Under the fair value
measurement method, servicing assets are measured at fair value at each reportmg date and changes in fair value are
reported in net income for the period the change occurs.

Adoption of Statement {56 is required as of the _begmmng of fiscal years beginning subsequent to September 15, 2006.
Farlier adoption is permitted as of the beginning of an entity's fiscal year, provided the entity has not yet issued
financial statements, including interim financial statements. The Company does not expect the adoption of Statement
156 at the beginning of 2007 to have a matenal 1mpact on the consolidated ﬁnancm] statements.

In June 2006, the Financial Accounting Standards Board issued FASB Interpretation No. 48 “Accounting for
Uncertainty in Income Taxes an interpretation of FASB Statement No. 109 (as amended)” (FIN 48). FIN 48 clarifies
the accounting for uncertainty in income taxes recognized in an enterprise's financial statements in accordance with
FASB Statement No. 109, “Accounting for Income Taxes™. The Interpretation prescribes a recognition threshold and
measurement attribute for the financial statement recognition and measurement of a tax position taken or expected to
be taken in a tax return. FIN 48 also prowdes guidance on derecognition, classification, interest and penalties,
accounting in interim periods, disclosure, and transition.

Because the Company is not aware of any mate'rial uncertain tax positions, it does not expect the adoption of FIN 48 to
have a material impact on the consolidated financial statements.

*
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In September 2006, FASB Issued Statement No. 157 (SFAS 157), “Fair Value %Measurements” which is effective for
fiscal years beginning afier November 15, 2007 and for interim periods within those years. This statement defines fair
value, establishes a framework for measuring fair value and expands the related dlSclosure requirements. The adoption
of SFAS 157 is not expected to have a material impact on the Company’s consolidated financial statements.

In September 2006, the Securities and Exchange Commission issued Staff Acgountmg Bulletin No. 108 (SAB 108),
which provides gmdanee on the consideration of the effects of prior year misstaternents in quantifying current year
misstatements for the purpose of a matenahty assessment. The techniques’: imost commonly used in practice to
accumulate and quantify misstatements are generally referred to as the “ro]lover” and “iron cunam approaches.

Because the Company is not aware of any material misstatement, it does not. expect the adoption of SAB 108 to have a
material impact on the consolidated financial statements. oL -

i {
Item 7A. QUANTITATIVE ANi) QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURE ABOUT MARKET RISK
INTEREST RATE SENSITIVITY * | :

1

Financial mstntutmns can be exposed to several market risks that may impact the value or future earnings capacity of an
organization. These risks involve interest rate risk, foreign currency exchange risk,, commodlty price risk and equity market
price risk. VFG’s primary market risk is interest rate risk. Interest rate risk is mherent because as a financial institution,
VFG derives.a significant amount of its operating revenue from “purchasing” funds (customer deposits and borrowings) at
various térms and rates. These funds are then invested into earning assets (loans,‘lnvesnnents etc.) at various terms and
rates. This risk is further discussed below. I

Equity market risk is not a significant risk to VFG as equity investments on a cost basm compnse less than 1% of corporate
assets. VEFG does not have any exposure to foreign currency exchange risk or commodxty price risk.
Interest rate risk is the -exposure to fluctuations in VFG’s future earnings (earnings at; Irlsln:) and value (economic value at risk)
resulting from changes in interest rates. This exposure results from differences between the amounts of inferest earning
assets and interest bearing liabilities that reprice within a specified time penod as a resuit of scheduled maturities and
repayment and contractual interest rate changes . l

!

The pnmary objective of VFG’s asset/]xabﬂlty management process is to ma:mmzel currént and future net interest income
within acceptable levels of interest rate risk while satisfying liquidity and capital reqmrements Management recognizes that
a certain amount of interest rate risk is inherent and appropriate. Thus the goal jof interest rate risk management is to
maintain a balance between risk and reward such that net interest income is maximized while risk is maintained at a level
tolerable to the board of directors. ‘!

|
I

' ]
The Company assumes interest rate risk (the risk that general interest rate levels|will change) as a result of its normal
operations. As a result, the fair values of the Company's financial instruments will change when interest rate levels change
and that change may be cither favorable or unfavorable to the Company. Managemelllt attempts to match maturities of assets
and liabilities to the extent believed necessary to minimize interest rate risk. However borrowers with fixed rate obligations
are less likely to prepay in a rising rate environment and more likely to prepay in. a falling rate environment. Conversely,
depositors who are receiving fixed rates are more likely to withdraw funds before maturity in a rising rate environment and
less likely to do so in a falling rate environment. Management monitors rates and| maturities of assets and liabilities and
atternpts to minimize interest rate risk by adjusting terms of new loans and deposits and by investing in securities with terms
that mitigate the Company's overall interest rate risk. i

~ |
The Company entefs into commitments to originate loans whereby the interest rate on the loan is determined prior 1o funding
(rate lock commitments). Rate lock commitments on mortgage loans that are mtended to be sold are considered to be
derivatives. Time elapsing between issuance of a loan commitment and closing and sale of the loan gencrally ranges from 30
to 120 days. The Company protects itself from changes in interest rates through the use of best efforts forward delivery
contracts, whereby the Company commits to sell a loan at the time the borrower coinmits to an interest rate with the intent
that the buyer has assumed interest rate risk on the loan. Asa result, the Company isinot exposed to losses nor will it realize
significant gains related to its rate lock commitments due to changes in interest rates. |
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Management endeavors to control the cxposures to changes in interest rates by understanding, reviewing and making
decisions based on its risk position. The corporate asscb’hablhty committee is responsible for these decisions. VFG primarily
uses the securities portfolios and FHLB advances to manage its interest rate risk position. Additionally, pricing, promotion”
and product development activities are directedi in an effort to emphasize the loan and deposit term or repricing
characteristics that best meet current interest rate risk objectives. At present, VFG does not use off-balance sheet instruments
to hedge against interest rate risk. The committee operates under management policies defining guidelines and limits on the
level of risk. These policies are approved by the Boards of Directors of the Company and bank subsidiaries. VFG uses
stmulation analysis 1o assess earnings at risk and Economic Value of Equity analysis to assess value at risk. These methods
allow management to regularly monitor both the /direction and magnitude of VFG’s interest rate risk . exposure. These
modeling techniques involve assumptions and estimates that inherently cannot be measured with complete precision. Key
assumptions in the analyses include maturity and repricing characteristics of both assets and liabilities, prepayments on
amortizing assets, other imbedded options, non-matunty deposit sensitivity and loan and deposit pncmg These assumptions
are inherently uncertain due to the timing, magmtl}de and frequency of rate changes and changes in market conditions and
management strategies, among other factors. However, the analyses are useful in quantifying risk and provide a relative
gauge of VFG’s interest rate risk position over l:lme| O

|
Earnings at Risk : . :
Simulation analysis evaluates the effect of upwarél and downward changes in market interest rates on future net interest
income. The analysis involves changing the interest rates used in dcterrmmng net interest income over the next twelve
months. The resulting percentage change in net mterest income in various rate scenarios is an indication of VFG’s shorter-
term interest rate risk. The analysis utilizes a }stanc” balance sheet approach. The measurement date balance sheet
composition (or mix) is maintained over the simulation time period with maturing and repayment dollars being rolled back
into like instruments for new terms at current rnq'rket rates. Additional assumptions are applied to modify volumes and
pricing under the various rate scenarios. These include prepayment assumptions on mortgage assets, the sensitivity of non-
maturity deposit rates, and other factors deemed significant. : '

The simulation analysis results are presented in thcl table below. . These results, as of December 31, 2006, indicate that VFG
would expect net interest income to decrease over,the next twelve months by 1.1% assuming an immediate upward shift in
market interest rates of 200 basis points and to decrease by 3.8% if rates shifted downward in the same manner. This profile
reflects a moderate interest rate risk position and is wcll within the guidelines set by policy.
I
1-Year Net Interest Inctl)me Simulation (In thousands) _ :
-200 bp shock ; . (82,168) .-3.76%

+200 bp shock ($606)  -1.05% -

|

[
Economic Value of Equity |
i
The Economic Value of Equlty {(EVE) analysis prowdes information on the risk mherent in the balance sheet that might not
be taken into account in the simulation analysis dué to the shorter time horizon used in that analysis. The EVE of the balance
sheet is defined as the discounted present value of 'expcctgd asset cash flows minus the discounted present value of expected
liability cash flows. The analysis involves changing the interest rates used in determining the expected cash flows and in
discounting the cash flows. The resulting percentage change in EVE in various rate scenarios is an indication of the longer
term repricing risk and options embedded in the balance sheet.

The EVE analysis results are presented in the table below. These résults as of December 31, 2006 indicate that the °
EVE would increase 0.6% assuming an 1mmed1ate upward shift in market interest rates of 200 basis points and
decrease 8.0% if rates shifted downward in the same manner. The risk position of VFG is within the guidelines set by
policy. . : . i
Static Economic Value of Equity Change (In thousands)
-200 bp shock I ($17,565) -8.02%
t

+200 bp shock $£1,362 0.62%
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Item 8. F[NANC@ STATEMENTS AND SUPPLEMENTARY DATA
REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

|
The Shareholders and Directors of
Virginia Financial Group, Inc. and subsidiaries :
A o e . ' . I B
. We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheet of Virginia |Financial Group, Inc. (a Virginia
Corporation) and subsidiaries as of December 31, 2006 and the related consohdated statements of income, changes in
stockholders’ equity, and cash flows for the year ended December 31, 2006 \These financial statements are the

responsibility of the Company s management. Our responsibility is to express an opmlon on these financial statements

based on our audit. | 1l

| .
We conducted our audit i in accordance with the standards of the Public Company 1|\ccount1ng Oversight Board (United
States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes exammmg, on a test basis, evidence
supportmg the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting
principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as cvaluatmg the overall financial statement
presentation. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our op1mon!l
| .

In our opinion, the consohdated financial staternents referred to above presenh fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of Virginia Financial Group at December 31, 2006 and the results of its operations and its cash flows
for the year ended December 31, 2006, in conformlty with accounting pnncxples generally accepted in the United
States of Arncnca 2

As discussed in Note 13, to the financial statements, the Company adopted Flmlmcml Accounting Standards Board
. Statement No 123(R) on January 1, 2006, Share-Based Payments (SFAS 123R) m 2006. Also, as discussed in Note
14, to the consohdated financial statements, the Company adopted Financial Accountmg Standards Board Statement
No. 158, Employer’s Accounting for Defined Benefit Pension and Other Postretirement Plans, An amendment of FASB
Statements No. 87, 88, 106 and 132(R} at December 31, 2006. ,
We have aIlso awdncd in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accountmg Oversight Board (Umted
States), the effectiveness of Virginia Financial Group’s internal control over ﬁna}lclal reporting as of December 31,
2006, based on criteria established in Intermal Control — Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of
Sponsormg|0rgam2at|ons of the Treadway Commission (COSO), and our report 'dated March 2, 2007 expressed an
unqualified'opinion on management’s assessment of the effectiveness of the Company s internal control over financial
reportmg and an unquahﬁed opinion on the eﬁ'ectwen&ss of the Company’s mternal contro! over ﬁnanc1al reporting.

GE_A,\:."\“ ' /(\Aioero-ror_; LLP :

Raleigh, North Carolina o
March 2, 2007

o | -
. | i
. |

1
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To the Shareholders and Directors
Virginia Financial Group, Inc. and Affiliates

\
I
I
| ' : : ’ ; .
\ .
Culpeper, Virginia [

We have audited the accompanying consohdatcid balance sheets of Virginia Financial Gmup, Inc. and subsidiaries as of
December 31, 2005 and 2004, and the related consohdatcd statements of income, changes in stockholders' equity, and cash flows for
each of the years in the three-year penod ended December 31, 2005. We also have auditéd management's asscssment, included in
the accompanying Management’s Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting appearing under Item 9A, that Virginia
Financial Group, Inc. and subsidiaries maintained effective internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2005, based
on criteria established in fnternal Control— Inregrated Framework issued by the Committee ‘of Sponsoring Organizations of the
Treadway Commission (COSO). Virginia Financial Group, Inc. and subsidiaries’ management is responsible for these financial
statements, for maintaining effective internal control over financial reporting, and for its assessment of the effectiveness of internal
control over financial reporting. Our responsﬂanhty is to cxpress an opinion on these financial statements, an opinion on
management's assessment, and an opinion on the eﬁ'qchvene_ss of Virginia Financial Group, Inc. and subsidiaries’ internal control
over financial reporting based on our audits. \

[ o

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board {United States).
Those standards require that we plan and perform theé audits to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements
are free of material misstatement and whether effective internal control over financial reporting was maintained in all material
respects. Our audit of financial statements included examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in
the financial statements, assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, and evaluating the
overall financial statement presentation. Qur audit of internal control over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding
of internal coatrol over financial reporting, evaluatmg management’s assessment, testing and evaluatmg the design and operating
effectiveness of internal control, and performing such other procedures as we conmsidered necessary in the circumstances. We
believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for <:)ur opinions.

‘ | : v

A company's intenal control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the
reliability of financial reporting and the preparauon of financial statements for external purposes in-accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles, A company's mternal control over financial reporting includes those policies. and procedures that
(1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of
the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of
financial statements in accordance with gencrally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company
are being made only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable
assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or dJsposmon of the company's assets that could
have a material effect on the financial statements.

! k o

Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect misstatements. Also,
projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that controls may become inadequate because
of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compli:ance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

|
In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial -
position of Virginia Financial Group, Inc. and subsidiaries as of December 31, 2005 and 2004, and the results of their operations
and their cash flows for each of the years in the threo—ycar period ended December 31, 2005 in conformity with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America. Also in our opinion, management’s assessment that Virginia
Financial Group, Inc. and subsidiaries maintained eﬁ'ectwe internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2005, is
fairly stated, in all material respects, based on criteria established in Internal Control—Integrated: Framework issued by the
Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission (COSQ). Furthermore, in our opinion, Virginia Financial
Group, Inc. and subsidiaries maintained, in all material respects, effective internal control over financial reporting as of December
31, 2005, based on criteria established in Intemal Control—Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring

Organizations of the Treadway Commission (COSO)

Winchester, Virginia
February 16, 2006
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VIRGINIA FINANCIAL GROUP, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

Consolidated Balance Sheets . : o |
December 31, 2006 and 2005 ’
(Dollars in Thousands) IR
: | 'l 2006 2005
Asscts . 1. . .
Cash and due from banks | : 0§ 1 48747 § 33681
Federal funds sold S 18590 9,103
Interest-bearing deposits in banks ' ! 298 5,232
Cash and cash equivalents N 57635 ‘ 48,016
Investment securities (fair value; 2006, $264,152; ill ]

!2005 $241,139) ‘ ;' 264,141 241,032
Mortgage loans held for sale Y 7,640 9,223
Loans receivable, net of allowance for loan losses, 2006, $14,500; i

2005, $13,581) 11,203,132 1,129,495
Pr'lsmlscs and equipment, net R | 35,853 33,675 .
Accrued interest receivable : ' 1 8,197 6,583
Deferred income tax asset 15,446 5,944
Core deposit intangibles, net : . 3,871 4,449
Goodwill ‘ i 13,896 13,896
Bank owned life insurance ' 10,231 ' -
Other assets . il 15,947 12,871

" Total assets . : $ 1,625989 $ 1,505,184

Liabilities |

Deposits: :
Noninterest-bearing $ 1239672 - § 249,775
Interest-bearing 1 ,078.609 1,005,734
Total deposits 1,318,281 - 1,255,509

Federal funds purchased and securities sold under ;‘

agreements to repurchase _ [ 15,890
Federal Home Loan Bank advances - 65 000 ' 40,000
Subordinated debt 120,619 20,619
Commercial paper 1 58,632 24,480
Other borrowings - : ] 561 842
Accrued interest payable 1 4274 C 2,515
Other liabilities I 7,970 9,224

! Total liabilities 1,475,337 1,369,079

Stockholders‘ Equity , :E
Prelferred stock; no par value; 5,000,000 shares authorized; S

no shares issued and outstanding; J - _ -
Common stock; $1 par value; 25,000,000 shares authorized; i

2006 10,784,303 shares issued and outstanding;

2005 10,759,101 shares issued and outstanding; 110,784 10,759
Additional paid-in capital 33,970 33,298
Retained earnings ' 1| 106,924 94,061
Accurmulated other comprehensive loss, net o (1,026) (2,013)

| Total stockholders' equity 150,652 136,105

Total liabilities and stockholders' equity _ $ 1,625980 § 1,505,184

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statem'é!jnts.

A
|
!
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VIRGINIA FINANCIAL GROUP, INC. AND! SUBSIDIARIES

Consolidated Statements of Income
For the Three Years Ended December 31, 2006
(Dollars in Thousands, except per share data)

f
k
:
|
|
|
| 2006 2005 2004
Interest Income ! :
Loans, including fees : $ 84003 § 70712 $ 58232
Federal funds sold and deposits in other banks 1,004 505 156
Investment securities P
Taxable } 6,724 6,447 8,770
Tax-exempt i 3,410 2,645 2,854
Dividends : 486 397 390
Total interest income ! 95627 80,106 70,402
Interest Expense E :
Deposits | 28,496 20,408 17,859
Federal funds repurchased and securities sold
under agreements to repurchase | 219 568 238
Federal Home Loan Bank advances [ 2,834 1,351 - 801
Subordinated debt ' 1,636 1,260 683
Commerical paper \i 2,275 255 -
Other borrowings | 22 19 47
Total interest expense L 35,482 23,861 19,628
Net interest income ' 60,145 56,845 50,774
Provision for loan losses ! 750 2,012 2,534
Net interest income afier provision for iloam losses 59,395 54,833 48,240
Noninterest Income :
Retail banking fees ' 6,982 6,954 7,522
Commissions and fees from fiduciary activities 3,108 . 2,954 2,804
Brokerage fee income | 756 723 663
Gains (losses) on sale of premises and equipment 274 (61) 6
Gains (losses) on securities available for sale (196) 296 3
Gains (losses) on sale of foreclosed assets | 40 - 20
Gain on sale of branches | - 421 -
Mortgage banking-related fees ' 2,869 3,091 2,464
Income from bank owned life insurance | 231 - -
Other operating income ! 1,421 1,065 1,102
l

Total noninterest income $ 15485 $ 15,443 § 14,544

The accompanying notes are an integral part of th%se consolidated financial statements.
|
I
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VIRGINIA FINANCIAL GROUP, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

Consolidated Statements of Income (continued) - :
For the Three Years Ended December 31, 2006 |
(Dollars in Thousands, except per share data)

2006 2005 2004
Non-interest Expense ‘

Compensation and employce benefits , $ 26,607 $ 257284 $ 22,669
Net occupancy ‘ ' 3,147 2,888 2,721
Supplies and equipment 4141 4,056 4,333
Amortization-intangible assets 1578 643 694
Marketing © 1214 387 636
State franchise taxes 1973 870 599
Data processing 1}389 1,389 1,464
Professional fees 11823 304 922
Telccommunications 11006 1,017 . 1,055
Oth:cr operating expenses 7.040 5,864 5,923

‘Total noninterest expense $ 46918 $ 43702 $ 41016

' * |

i[ncome before income taxes - $ 21!962 $ 26574 § 21,768
Incgme tax expense 8,465 8,358 6,565

'Net income § 19,497 § 8216 $ 15,203

: : g

Earnings per share, basic $ {181 $§ - 169 § 1.42
Eamings per share, diluted $ 180§ 168 § 1.41

The accomp;anying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

¥
|
i
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VIRGINIA FINANCIAL GROUP, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
|

Consolidated Statements of Changes in Stockholders’ Equity _ T .
For the Three Years Ended December 31, 2006 :

Minimum pension liability adjustment {net of 1ax of $47)

1
|
(Dollars in Thousands) !
}
i Accomulated
: Other
i Additional . Compie- Compre- :
} Common Paid-In Retained hensive hensive oo
. Stock Capital Earnings _ Tocome {Loss) Income Total
Balance, December 31, 2003 ;¥ 10,729 § 32613 § 72255 § 4,233 § 119330
Comprehensive income: | ] A
Net income | 15,203 ' $ 15,203 15,203
Other comprchensive loss, oct of tax: i . |
Unrealized holding losses arising ) | )
during the period (net of tax of $1,217) f - - - - (2,261) -
Reclassification adjustment {net of tax, $1) - - . - @ .
Minimum pension liability adjustment (nct of tax of $178) ' . - - . (331) . -
Other comprebensive loss . ! - - - 2, 594) (2,594) (2,594)
Total comprebensive income l - - - 12 609 -
Cash dividends (3.52 per share) | - - (5,589 Yo (5,589}
Stock-based compensation expense (10,287 shmm) , i) 191 - - m
Exercise of stock options (2,634 shares) 3 35 - - 38
Balance, December 31, 2004 ! s 10,742 § 32,839 § 81,869 § 1,639 $ 127,089
Comprehensive income: | ’
Net income | 18,216 $ 18,216 18,215
Other comprehensive loss, net of tax: | -
Unrealized holding [osses arising |
during the period (net of tax of §1,816) | - - - _ - (3,373) - -
Reclassification adjustroent (net of tax, $104) | - . - - - (192) -
|
|

1) X :
" . - 3, esz) (3,652) (3.652)

Other comprehensive loss
Total comprebensive income - - - 3 14564
Cash dividends (.56 per share) - . (6,024) . (6,024)
Stock-based compensation expense (5,352 shares) ] 326 - - 32
Exercise of stock options (10,500 shares) f 11 133 - - : 144
Balance, December 31, 2005 , 3 10,759 $ 33298 5§ 94061 $ (2,013} 3 136,105
Comprehensive incoms: ! )
" Net income | 19,497 $ 19,497 19,457
Other comprebensive income, net of tax: .
Unrealized holding gains arising ' ,
during the period (net of tax of $714) { - - - .- 1,326 -
Reclassification adjustment (net of tax, $69) : - - . L (127)
Other comprehensive income ! - - - 1,199 1,199 1,199
Total comprehensive income - - - - $ 20,696 -
Adjustment to initially apply FASB ' .-
Statement No, 158 (net of tax of $114) . | ’ ] (212) (212)
Cash dividends ($.61 per share) - - 6634 - (6,634)
Stock-based compensation expense (9,979 shares) | 10 410 - - 420
Exercise of stock options (15,223 shares) | 15 262 - - —_—r
Balance, December 31, 2006 ;8 10,784 § 33970 $ 106924 $ (1,026) 3 150,652
i

The 2ccompanying notes are &n intcgral pant of these consolidated financial statements.
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VIRGINIA FlNANCIIAL GROUP, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES:

Consolidated Statenjents of Cash Flows
For the Three Years Ended December 31, 2006

,vf,k‘,.‘_..-._
@

(Dollars in Thousands) '; .
' 2006 :l : 2005 2004
Cash Flows from Qperating Actmt:es . ! -
Net income . 8 19 497 $ - 18216 . 15,203
Ad_juSth{‘ltS to reconclle net income to net cash )
provided by operaung activities: l
Depreciation 2,856 2,965 3,066
Amortization of intangible assets 578 643 694
Provision forloan losses 750 2,012 2,534
Impairment of foreclosed assets - ]1’ 15 61
Deferred tax benefit 34y - (851) (918)
Employee benefit plan expense 264}' 265 212
Stock-based compensation expense 420 332- 201
(Gam) loss on foreclosed assets i (40) - 20
(Gain) loss on sale of premises and equipment 274 61 (6)
Loss {gain) on sale of securities available for sale . 196 (296) (3)
Gain on sale of mortgage loans (2,869) (3,091) (2,464)
Gain on sale of branches - 421) -

e Proce[eds from sale of mortgage loans 138,568 176,088 150,094
Origination of mortgage loans for sale” (1341 16) (176,505) (148,171)
Amortization of securities premiums and

accretion of discounts, net ' . 1% 525 719
lncome on bank owned life insurance (231} - -
Chanycs in assets and liabilities: '

(1ncrcase) decrease in accrued interest receivable (1 614) (B99) 198

(Incrcase) decrease in other assets (1 623) ’ 587 226

Incmasc (decrease) in accrued interest payable 1 759 . 434 (103)

(Decrcase) increase in other liabilities {1, 844) o 2,421 (611)

* Net cash provided by operating activities - 3 22,255 3 22,501 20,952
1.
Cash Flows/from Investing Activities ;
Proceeds from maturities and principal payments of securities :
available for sale 3 60,826' 5 83,056 - 86,361

Proceeds i;rom sales and calls of securities available for sale 30,684, 4,116 36,536

Purchase ('rf securities available for sale (114,472) (49,056) (54,954)

Net increase in loans (74,510) - (90,729) (140,713)

Proceeds from sale of premises and equipment 6, 000‘ 46 3

Purchase of premises and equipment {10, 760} (9, 200) (3,616)

Proceeds from sale of foreclosed assets 200; 50 906

Purchase of Bank Owned Life Insurance (10 00(?) :

Cash paid in branch sales, net ! (1 1,742) -

Net cash used in investing activities . $ (112,032) $ (73,459) {75,477}

The accomp:;mying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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VIRGINIA FINANCIAL GROUP, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows tcontinued)
For the Three Years Ended December 31, 2006

(Dollars in Thousands) % X .
: 2006 2005 2004
Cash Flows from Financing Activities .
Net (decrease) increase in demand, money market and savings dcposns $ (3t,243) § (8,374) $ 31,005
Net increase in certificates of deposit . , 94,015 28,720 - - 15,385
Net decrease in federal funds purchased and securities
sold under agreements to repurchase i (15,890) (5,265) {12,000}
Issuance of subordinated debt 1' - - 20,619
Proceeds from Federal Home Loan Bank advances 81,000 35,000 5,000
Principal payments on Federal Home Loan Bank advances ‘ {56,000) (9,060) (80)
Net increase in commercial paper : ' 34,152 24,780 -
Net decrease in other borrowings » (281) (273) (5,711)
Proceeds from exercise of stock options , 277 144 38
Cash dividends paid Sl . (6,634) (6,024) (5,589)
Net cash provided by financing activities ! 5 99,396 $ 59,648 3 48,667
Increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents : ¥ - 9619 S 8.650 b {5,858)
[ .
Cash and Cash Equivalents I
Beginning _ : 48,016 39,326 45,178
Ending ‘ $ 57635 8 48016 39,320

Supplemental Disclosures of Cash Flow Information .

Cash payments for: ! _
$ 33,723 5 24,256 $ 19,731

Interest , :
Income taxes | $ 8,914 3 0,151 $ 7,525
: I .
Supplemental Schedule of Noncash Investing Activities

Foreclosed assets acquired in settlement of loans | 5 123" § 135 $ 39
Unrealized gain (loss) on securities available for sale b3 1,845 3 (5,485) $ (3,481)
Stock based compensation expense l $ 420 b 332 3 201
Minimum pension liability adjustment ' 3 211 $ (134) $ (509
Adjustment to initially apply FASB K : .

Statement No. 158 ’ ; $ (537) . § - 3 -

. Details of Disposition of branches :

Fair value of assets sold ; 5 - 3 (9,643) % -
Fair value of liabilities transferred | - 22,040 -
Write-off of core deposit intangibles 1 ' - (465) -
Write-off of goodwill : - (138) -
Write-off of loan prcm:um | - ‘ Qaisy . -
Transactions costs : . - (165} -

Cash paid [ 3 - 3 11,514 3 -
Less cash transferred ! c- 228 - -
Net cash paid for sale { 3 - $ 11,742 $ -

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
[
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VlRGINIA FINANCIAL GROUP, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES |
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements |
(Dollars in| Thousands, except share data) . ’ '
Note 1. Significant Accounting Policies :

| - '

Nature of Operaﬁons and Consolidation :
| " ’

Virginia Financial Group, Inc. (the “Company”) is a Virginia multl-bank holding Cornpany headquartered in Culpeper,
Virginia. The Company owns Second Bank & Trust and its subsidiary, Sécond Semce Company; Virginia Heartland
Bank and its subsidiary, Virginia Heartland Service Corporation; Planters Bank & Trust Company of Virginia and its
subsidiary, Planters Insurance Agency, Inc.; Virginia Commonwealth Trust Company and VFG Limited Liability
Trust. VFG, through its affiliates, also owns a 70% interest in VFG Title, LLC. The consolidated statements include
the accounis of the Company and its wholly-owned subsidiaries. All significant inter-company accounts have been
eliminated. i FASB Interpretation No. 46 (R) requires that the Company no longer. eliminate through consolidation the
equity invéstment in VFG Limited Liability Trust by the parent company, Vlrg1ma Financial Group, Inc., which
approxlmated $619,000 at December 31, 2006. The subordinated debt to the trust is reﬂected as a liability on the
Company’s balance sheet. l .

VFG combined Virginia Heartland Bank (Fredericksburg) into its Second Bank & Trust (Culpeper) affiliate on
February 16, 2007. The two banks are geographically contiguous, share mcreasmgly sumlar market dynamics and offer
the opportuimty to create efficiencies and management depth. ,

The Compz';ny, through its member banks, provides a full array of banking serviceis through forty-one retail offices in
Central and Southwest Virginia. Among such services are those traditionally offered by banks including commercial
and consumer demand and time deposit accounts, mortgage, commercial and cgnsmner loans. The Company also
provides a network of automated transaction locations,. phone banking and a transactlonal internet banking product.
. Virginia Commonwealth Trust Company provides comprehenswe wealth management financial and estate-planmng
services t.hrough each of it’s oommumty banks. ~

: - Ly

Risks and Uncertainties |

I
In its normal course of business, the Company encounters two significant types of risk: economic and regulatory.
There are three main components of economic risk: interest rate risk, credit riskiand market risk. The Company is
_subject to mtercst rate risk to the degree that its interest-bearing liabilities mature or reprice more rapidly or on a
different baSlS than its interest-carning assets. Credit risk is the risk of default on the Company s loan portfolio that
results from the borrowers’ inability or unwillingness to make contractually reqmred payments. Market risk reflects
changes in the value of collateral underlying loans rece1vab1e, securities and the !valuauon of real estate held by the

Company. . B

|
The determmatlon of the allowance for loan losses and the valuation of real estate are based on estimates that are
partlcularly susceptible to significant changes in the economic environment and market conditions. Management
believes ttmt as of December 31, 2006, the allowance for loan losses and the valuauon of real estatc are adequate
based on mfonnatlon currently availa’ole A worsening or protracted economic decline or substantial increase in
interest rates would increase the likelihood of losses due to credit and market nsks and could create the need for

substantial increases in the allowance for loan losses. i
The Company is subject to the regulations of various regulatory agencies, which can change sxgmﬁcantly from year to
year, In add1t1on the Company undergoes periodic examinations by regu]ator)q agencies, which may subject it to
further changes based on the regulators’ judgments about information available to them at the time of their
examinations. - : §
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VIRGINIA FINANCIAL GROUP, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements |
(Dollars in Thousands, except share data)
Basis of Presentation - . :

- . r . ,
The accounting and reporting policies of the Company conform to accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America and to accepted practlces within the banking mdustry The following is a descnptlon of the
more significant of those policies and pracnces . :
- |
Cash and Cash Equivalents o

t . .
. | * o N

For purposes of the consolidated statements of ‘cash flows, cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand, amounts
due from banks, and federal funds sold. Generally, federal funds are purchased and sold for one day penods

Use of Estlmates : o }

. - oo : ‘

In preparing consolidated financial 'statements‘ in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America, management is required to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts
of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities as of the date of the balance sheet and
reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those
estimates. Material estimates that are particularly susceptible to significant change in the near tenm relate to the
determination of the allowance for loan losses, the valuation of foreclosed real estate and deferred tax assets.

Investment Securities : r

{ .
Debt securities that management has the positive intent and ability to hold to maturity are classified as “held to
maturity” and recorded at amortized cost. Securities not classified as held to maturity, including equity securities with
readily determinable fair values, are classified as “available for sale” and recorded at fair value, with unrealized gains
and losses excluded from earnings and reported i in other comprehensive income. The initial classification of securities
is determined at the date of purchase. ; ’

I
Purchase premiums and discounts are recognized in interest income using the interest method over the terms of the
securities. Declines in the fair value of held to maturity and available for sale securities below their cost that are
deemed to be.other than temporary are reflected in earnings as realized losses. In estimating other-than-temporary
impairment losses, management considers (1) the length of time and the extent to which the fair value has been less
than cost, (2) the financial condition and near' term. prospects of the issuer, and (3) the intent and ability of the
Company to retain its investment in the issuer for a period of time sufficient to allow for any anticipated increase in
fair value. Gains and losses on the sale of securmes are recorded on the trade date and are determined using the
specific identification method. '

|
The Company, through its banking sub31d1anes !1s a member of the Federal Reserve Bank and the Federal Home Loan
Bank and is required to hold stock in each mstltutlon These equity securities are restricted from trading and are
recorded in other assets at a cost of $8.1 nulhon and $6 6 million at December 31, 2006 and 2005 respectively. These
are considered cost basis securities. { : -
Loans '

: : = .
The Company, -through its banking subsidiariesl ‘grants mortgage, commercial and consumer loans to customers. A
substantial portion of the loan portfolio is represented by mortgage loans. The ability of the Company’s debtors to

- honor their contracts is dependent upon the real estate and general economic conditions in the Company’s market area.

‘
l
|
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VIRGINIA FINANCIAL GROUP, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES ' i
Notes to Clonsolidated Financial Statements v
(Dollars i[ll Thousands, except share data) ";
Loans thati management has the intent and ability to hold for the foreseeable"future or until maturity or pay-off
generally are reported at their outstanding unpaid principal balances adjusted for, charge-offs, the allowance for loan
losses and’ any deferred fees or costs on originated loans. Interest income is accrued on the unpaid principal balance.

Loan origination fees, net of certain direct origination costs, are deferred and rccogmzed as an adjustment of the
related loan yield using the interest method. These amounts are generally bcmg amort1zed over the contractual life of

the loan.
| 3

I |
The accrual of interest on mortgage and commercial loans is discontinued at the time the loan is 90 days delinquent

unless the credit is well-secured and in process of collection. Installment loans and other personal loans are typically
charged off no later than 180 days past due. In all cases, loans are placed on nonaccrual or charged-off at an earlier
date if collection of principal or interest is considered doubtful. A :

1

|

All interest accrued but not collected for loans that are placed on nonaccrual or charged-off is reversed against interest
income. The interest on these loans is accounted for on the cash-basis or cost-recovery method, until qualifying for return
to accrual. Loans are refurned to accrual status when all the principal and interest amounts contractually due are brought
current and future payments are reasonably assured. A l' ' :

|
Allowance for Loan Losses i

‘ ‘ '

The allowance for loan losses is established as losses are estimated to have occurred through a provision for loan
losses charged to earnings. Loan balances are charged against the a]lowance when management believes the
uncollectlblhty of a loan balance is confirmed. Subsequent recovenes, if any, are credlted to the allowance.

i
The Compqmy’s affiliate Banks conduct an analysis of the loan portfolio on a regular basis. This analysis is used in
assessing the sufficiency of the allowance for loan losses and in the determination of the necessary provision for loan
losses. Thc review process generally begins with lenders identifying problern loans to be reviewed on an individual
basis for mnpalrment When a loan has been identified as impaired, then a spec:lﬁc‘reserve may be established based on
the Banks’ calculation of the loss embedded in the individual loan. In addition to'unpzurment testing, the Banks have
an eight point grading system for each non-homogeneous loan in the portfolio." The loans meeting the criteria for
Jmpaument are segregated from performing loans within the portfollo Loans are then grouped by loan type and, in the
case of commercial loans, by risk rating. Each loan type is assigned an allowance factor based on historical loss
experience, economic conditions, and the overall portfolio quality including delmquency rates. An unallocated
component is maintained to cover uncertainties that could affect management’s &stmmte of probable losses, reflecting
the imprecision inherent in the underlying assumptions used in these methodologies. The total of specific reserves
required for impaired classified loans, calculated reserves by loan category and the unallocated reserve are then
compared to the recorded allowance for loan losses. This is the methodology used to determine the sufficiency of the
allowance for loan losses and the amount of the provision for loan losses. l

. A loan is considered impaired when, based on current information and events, it is probable that the Company will be
unable to collect the scheduled payments of principal or interest when due according to the contractual terms of the
loan agreement. Factors considered by management in determining 1mpa1rmcnt include payment status, collateral
value, and the probability of collecting scheduled principal and interest paymcnts when due. Loans that experience
m31grnﬁcant payment delays and payment shortfalls generally are not classified as ilmpalred ‘Management determines
the mgmﬁcdnce of payment delays and payment shortfalls on a case-by-case basis! taking into consideration all of the
clrcumstances surrounding the loan and the borrower, including the length of the delay, the reasons for the delay, the
borrower’s prior payment record, and the amount of the shortfall in relation to the principal and interest owed.

Impairment is measured on a loan-by-loan basis for commercial and construction’ loans by either the present value of
expected future cash flows discounted at the loan’s effective interest rate, the loan’ s obtainable market price, or the fair
value of the collateral if the loan is collateral dependent. |

b
t
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VIRGINIA FINANCIAL GROUP, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
(Dollars in Thousands, except share data) |

I
Larger groups of smaller balance homogeneous loans are collectively evaluated for impairment. Accordingly, the
Company does not separately identify individual consumer and residential loans for impairment disclosures, unless
such loans are subject to a restructuring agrecment

o

Loans Held For Sale

|
Loans originated and intended for sale in the secondary market are carried at the lower of aggregate cost or fair value,
as determined by aggregate outstanding commiitments from investors or current investor yield requirements. Net
unrealized losses are recognized through a valuation allowance by charges to income.
Mortgage loans held for sale are generally sold with the mortgage servicing rights released by the Company. Gains or
losses on sales of mortgage loans are recognized based on the difference between the selling price and the carrying
value of the related mortgage loans sold. ,
The Company accounts for the transfer of financial assets in accordance with SFAS No. 140 “Accounting for Transfers
and Servicing of Financial Assets and Extinguishments of Liabilities”. The standard is based on consistent application
of a financial-components approach that recognizes the financial and servicing assets it controls and the liabilities it
has incurred, derecognizes financial assets when control has been surrendered and derecognizes liabilities when
extinguished. The standard provides consistent guldehnes for distinguishing transfers of financial assets from transfers
that are secured borrowings !
The Company enters into commitments to origi!nate loans whereby the interest rate on the loan is’ determined prior to
funding (rate lock commitments). Rate lock! commitments on mortgage loans that are intended to be sold are
considered to be derivatives. Time elapsing between issuance of a loan commitment and closing and sale of the loan
generally ranges from 30 to 120 days. The Company protects itself from changes in interest rates through the use of
best efforts forward delivery contracts, whereby the Company commits to sell a loan at the time the borrower commits
to an interest rate with the intent that the buyer has assumed interest rate risk on the loan. As a result, the Company is
not exposed to losses nor will it realize significant gains related to its rate lock commitments due to changes in interest
rates. ' |
The market value of rate lock commitments e:md best efforts contracts is not readily ascertainable with precision
because rate lock commitments and best efforts contracts are not actively traded in stand-alone markets. The Company
determines the fair value of rate lock commitments and best efforts contracts by measuring the change in the value of
the underlying asset while taking into considersition the probability that the rate lock commitments will close. Due to
high correlation between rate lock commitments and best efforts contracts, no significant gains or losses have occurred
on the rate lock commitments. !

!

|

Premises and Equipment !
Land is carried at cost. Premises and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and amortization.
Premises and equipment are depreciated over their estimated useful lives ranging from three years to thirty-nine years;
leasehold improvements are amortized over the lives of the respective leases or the estimated useful life of the
~ leasehold improvement, whichever is less. Software is amortized over three years. Depreciation and amortization are
recorded on the straight-line method. |
j
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The Company accounts for impairment of long lived assets in accordance w1th| SFAS No. 144 “Accounting for the
Impaument of Disposal of Long-Lived Assets”. The.standard requires recpgmhon and’ measurement for the
mlpalnnent of long lived assets to be held and used or to be disposed of by sale. ] The Company had no impaired long
lived assets at December 31, 2006 and 2005. . ' :

i
Bank Ow1|1ed Life Insurance (BOLI) ;

The Company has purchased bank owned life insurance. BOLI involves the purchasmg of life insurance by the
Company on a chosen group of employees, The proceeds are used to help defray employee benefit costs. The Company.
is the owner and beneficiary of the policies. The Company originally invested $10 0 million in BOLI in 2006. BOLI is
. recorded cpn the consolidated balance sheets at its cash surrender value and changes in the cash surrender value are
recorded in nomnterest income. BOLI income is tax-exempt. 1

|

Goodwill and Intangible Assets

Goodwill !and 1dent1ﬁed intangible assets with indefinite lives are not subject tolamortlzatlon_ They are subject to an
annual assessment for i 1mpa1rment or more often if events or circumstances mdlcate there may be impairment. This test
involves assngmng tanglble assets and liabilities, identified intangible assets and goodwill to reporting units and
‘ comparmg the fair value of each reporting unit to its carrying amount. If the fair vaIue is less than the carrying amount,
a further tcst is requ1red to measure impairment. Based on the results of these tests the Company concluded that none
of its recorded goodw111 was rmpalred

|
Addmonally, acqurredtlntanglble assets (such as core deposit intangibles) are separately recognized and amortized over
their useful life if the benefit of the asset can be sold, transferred, licensed, rented, or exchanged. Intangible assets
associated with branch acquisition transactions continue to be amortized over the estimated useful life of the deposits.
The cost of purchased deposit relationships and other intangible assets, based ,on independent valuation, are being
amortized over their estimated lives not to exceed fifteen years. Amortization expense charged to operations was $578
thousand in 2006, $643 thousand in 2005 and $694 thousand in 2004. !
Income Taxes |
I
Deferred income tax slissets and liabilities are determined using the liability (or, balance sheet) method Under this
method, the net deferred tax asset or 11ab111ty is determined based on the tax effects of the temporary differences
between the book and tax bases of the various balance sheet assets and 11ab111t1es and gives current recognition to

changes i m tax rates and laws. : _ ,
i , | : i
- |

Retiremeht Plans

l
The Company has a noncontributory, defined benefit pension plan covering certam of its employees meeting certain
age and semce requirements. The plan has not been offered to new employees after June, 2002. The Company’s
funding pohcy is to make the maximum contribution permitted by the Employee Retirement Income Security Act. In
2006, thelCompany adopted Statement No. 158, (“SFAS No. 158”) “Employer s Accounting for Defined Benefit
Pension and Other Postretirement Plans — An amendment of FASB Statements No 87, 88, 106, and 132(R)”. The new
standard requires an employer to recognize the overfunded or underfunded status of a defined benefit postretirement
plan as arll asset or liability in its statement of financial position and to recogmze through comprehensive income
changes i in that funded status in the year in which the changes occur. The ltablhty recognized in the current year’s
balance sheet was $401 thousand and is included in other liabilities in the accomp.mymg consolidated balance sheets.

!
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
(Dollars in Thousands, except share data) i

The Company also has a contribution retirement|plan which covers the majonty of its full-time salaned employees for
all years presented. Contributions are at the discretion of the Board of Directors.

b
Stpck-Bused Compensation i :
The Company has a stock-based employee com;;ensation plan under which nonqualified stock options may be granted .
periodically to certain employees. The Company’s stock options typically have an exercise price equal to at least the
fair value of the stock on the date of grant, and vest based on continued service with the Company for a specified
period, generally five years.. The Company adopted SFAS '123R effective January 1, 2006 using the modified
prospective method and as such, results for prior penods have not been restated. Prior to January 1, 2006, the value of
restricted stock awards was expensed by the Company over the restriction period, and no compensation expense was
recognized for stock option grants as all such grants had an exercise price not less than fair market value on the date of
grat - _ ;
SFAS 123R also requires that new awards to tlzmployees eligible for retirement prior to the award becoming fully
vested be recognized as compensation cost over the period through the date that the employee first becomes ehglble to
_ retire and is no longer requlred to provide scrwce to earn the award.

I
During 2005 and 2004, the Company applied the intrinsic value method prescribed in APB Opuuon 25, Accounting for
Stock Issued to Employees, and related mterpretat:ons No stock-based employee compensation cost is reflected in
-results of operations, as all options granted under the plan had an exercise price equal to the market value of the
underlying common stock on the date of the. grant The following table illustrates the effect on.net income and
earnings per share if the Company had applied the fair value recognition provisions of FASB Statement No 123,
Accounting for Stock Based Compensation, to stock-bascd compensauon B :

E T 2008 2004
Net income, as reported | - Tt $18216  $15203
Additional expense had the C'Jorporanon ad0pted SFAS
No. 123 (220) (73)

Pro forma net income -

$17,99 $15,130

|

Earnings per share; '

Basic - as reported . : _ $ 1.69 $ 142

Basic - pro forma 1 : ' § 1.68 $ 141
r
|
t
\
\

$§ 1.68 § 141
- $ 166 $ 140

Diluted - as reported
Diluted - pro forma- .
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|
]

The fair value of each option grant is estimated on the date of the grant using the Black Scholes option-pricing model
with the followmg welghted average assumptions: l
' J

: Year Ended December 31
; . . 2006 2005 | 2004
. N
Dividend yield 2.4% 2 4:% 2.4%
| Expected life 6.5 yrs 10 yrs 10 yrs
: Expected volatility : 28.1% 26. 6% 30.4%
Risk-free interest rate 4.6% 4, 2% 4.4%

Earnings Per Share !

Basic earmngs per share represent income available to common stockholders d1v1ded by the weighted-average number
of common shares outstanding during the period. Diluted earnings per share reflects additional common shares that
would have been outstanding if dilutive potential common stock had been issued,|as well as any adjustment to income
that would result from the assumed issuance. Potential common shares that may be issued by the Company relate
solely to outstanding stock 0pt10ns and restricted stock and are determined using the treasury method.

Dividend Reinvestment Plan ‘ l

The Company has in effect a Dividend Reinvestment Plan, which provides an automattc conversion of dividends into
common stock for enrolled stockholders. It is based on the stock’s fair market value on each dividend record date, and

allows for voluntary contributions to purchase stock. - E

Trust Assets and Revenue

Securities and other property held by the Virginia Commonwealth Trust Company in a fiduciary or agency capacity are
not assets of the Company and are not included in the accompanying consohdatod ﬁnanc:al statements. Operating
revenues and expenses of the Trust Company are included under their respective cap’nons in the accompanying
consohdatod financial statements of income and are recorded on the accrual basis.

Foreclosed Assets ' '
g |
!
Real estate acquired through, or in lieu of, foreclosure are held for sale and are. lmtlally recorded at fair value at the
date of foreclosure, establishing a new cost basis. Subsequent to foreclosure, valulatlons are periodically performed by
management and the assets are carried at the lower of the carrying amount or fair value less cost to sell. Revenues and
expenses from operatlons and changes in the valuation are included in other operatmg expenses.

i

Advertising i

The Company follows the policy of charging the costs of advertising to expense !as incurred. Advertlsmg expense of
$1 .2 million, $887 thousand, and $636 thousand were incurred in 2006, 2005 and 2004 respectively.
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I,

Segment Information |

. I .
SFAS No. 131, "Disclosures about Segments of an Enterprise and Related Information" establishes standards for the
way public business enterprises report Mfométion about operating segments in annual financial statements and
requires that those enterprises report selected information about operating segments in interim financial reports issued
to shareholders. It also establishes standards for 'related disclosure about products and services, geographic areas, and
major customers. Operating segments are componcnts of an enterprise about which separate financial information is .
available that is evaluated regularly by the chief operating decision maker. in deciding how to allocate resources and
assess performance. The statement also requires that public enterprises report a measure of segment profit or loss,
certain specific revenue and expense items and segment assets. It also requires that information be reported about
revenues derived from the enterprises’ products or services, or about the countries in which the entcrpnses eam
'revenues and hold assets,. and about major customers, regardless of whether the information is used in making
operating decisions.. :
l , . .
Management has determined that the ComparIy has one reportable segment, "Community Banking." All of the
Company’s activities are interrelated, and each activity is dependent and assessed based on how each of the activities of
the Company supports the others. For example, commercial lending is dependent upon the ability of the Company to -
fund itself with retail deposits and other borrowings and to manage interest rate and credit risk. This situation is also
similar for consumer and residential mortgage lendmg Accordingly, all s1gmficant operating decisions are based upon
analysis of the Company as one operating segment or unit,
|

The Company has also identified several opcratmg segments. These operating segments within the Company's
operations do not have similar characteristics to the community banking operations and do not meet the quantitative
thresholds requiring separate disclosure. Thcse nonreportable segments include Virginia Commonwealth Trust
Company, our mortgage division, a title company, and the parent. i

Reclassifications o

. ‘ . _ I .
Certain reclassifications have been made to prior[ period balances to conform to the current year presentation.

Recent Accounting Pronouncements |

In February 2006, FASB Issued Statement 1}\10 155 (SFAS 155), “Accountmg for Certain Hybrid Financial
Instruments” which is effective for fiscal years: begmmng after September 15, 2006. This Statement amends FASB
Statements No. 133, Accounting for Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities, and No. 140, Accounting for
Transfers and Servicing of Financial Assets and Extinguishments of Liabilities. This Statement resolves issues
addressed in Statement 133 Implementation Issue No. D1, “Application of Statement 133 to Beneficial Interests in
Securitized Financial Assets .” i :

I
The Company does not expect the adoptlon of Statement 155 at the beginning of 2007 to have a material impact on the
consolidated financial statements. r
In March 2006, the Financial Accounting Standards Board issued Statement of Financial Accounting Standard No.
156, "Accounting for Servicing of Financial tAssets an amendment of FASB Statement 140" (Staternent 156)..
Statement 156 amends Statement 140 with respect to separately recognized servicing assets and liabilities. Statement
156 requires an entity to recognize a servmmg asset or liability each time it undertakes an obligation to service a
financial asset by entering into a servicing contract and requires all servicing assets and liabilities to be initially
measured at fair value, if practicable. Statement’ 156 also permits entities to subsequently measure servicing assets and
liabilities using an amortization method or fair value measurement method. Under the amortization method, servicing
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assets and liabilities are amortized in proportion to and over the estimated penod of semcmg “Under the fair value
- measurement method, servicing assets are measured at fair value at each reportmg date and changes in fair value are
reported in net income for the period the change oceurs. , ’|

Adoptlon of Statement 156 is requu‘ed as of the begmnmg of fiscal years begmnmg subsequent fo. September 15, 2006
Earlier adoptlon is permitted as of the beginning of an entity’s fiscal year, prohnded the entity has not yet issued
financial statements, including interim financial statements. The Company does not expect the adoption of Statement
156 at the beginning of 2007 to have a material impact on the consolidated ﬂnanclal statements.

In June 2006 the Financial Accounting Standards Board issued FASB Intelpretatlon No. 48 “Accounting for
Uncertainty in Income Taxes an interpretation of FASB Statement No. 109 (as amended)” (FIN 48). FIN 48 clarifies
the accounting for uncertainty in income taxes recognized in an enterprise's ﬁnaﬂmal statements in accordance with
FASB Statcment No. 109, “Accounting for Income Taxes”. The Interpretation prescnbes a recognition threshold and
.measurement attribute for the financial statement recognition and measurement ofla tax position taken or expected to
be taken in a tax return. FIN 48 also provides guidance on derecognition, cla351ﬁcat10n, interest and penalties,
accounting in interim pericds, disclosure, and transition.

Because the Company i 1s not aware of any material uncertain tax positions, it does not expect the adoption of FlN 48 to
have a matenal impact on the consolidated financial statements :
|l

In September 2006, FASB Issued Statement No. 157 (SFAS 157), “Fair Value Measurements” which is effective for
fiscal years beginning after November 15, 2007 and for interim periods within those years. This statement defines fair
value, estabhshes a framework for measuring fair value and expands the related dlsclosure requirements. The adoption
of SFAS 157 is not expected to have a material impact on the Company’s eonsolldated financial statements

In September 2006, the Securities and Exchange Commission issued ‘Staff Accountmg Bulletin No. 108 (SAB 108),
which prowdes guidance on the consideration of the effects of prior year msstatements in quantlfymg current year
misstatements for the purpose of a materiality assessment. The techniques most commonly. used in practice to
accumulate’ and quantify misstatements are generally referred to as the “rollover” and “iron curtam” approaches.

Because the Company is not aware of any material misstatement, it does not expect the adoption of SAB 108 to have a
material 1mpact on the consolidated financial statements. |

!
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Note 2. Disposition of Branches
|
On February 16, 2005, the Company through 1ts subsidiary, Planters Bank & Trust Company of Virginia, sold two
branches located in Tazewell County, Vlrgxma to the Bank of Tazewell County, an affiliate of National Bankshares,
Inc. headquartered in Blacksburg, Vu-guna .
| .
The sale included the assumption of certain d}:posit accounts ‘and purchase of selected loans, fixed assets and real
estate as follows: . H
‘ 4 : ..
Premium received on deposits transferred 7 . $ 1,304
Liabilities transferred (at fair value):

- Deposit accounts : ! $ 22001
Other liabilities : | ' 39
Total liabilities transferred | $ 22040
Assets sold (at fair value): ;
Cash ‘ | $ 228
Loans | | 8,844
Real estate and personal property k 311
Other assets ' _ ' 32
Total assets sold_ : ' 9,415
Net liabilities transferred ! : $ 11,321
Premium received on deposits trzmsfen[ed $ 1,304
Less: Write-off of core deposit mtanglbles ' 465
Write-off of goodwill ' f | 138
Write-off of loan premium ! - : 115
Transaction costs | 165
Net Gain on Sale -~ 1 | $ 421

Note 3. Restrictions on Cash [

To comply with Federal Reserve Regulations, the subsidiary banks are required to maintain certain average reserve
‘balances. The daily average reserve requircmenlt was $400 thousand for both December 31, 2006 and 2005.

|

|
f
|
|
|
|
|

|
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- .7.,'___- -

Note 4. Investment Sgcurities !

|

'
'
i
i

The amomzed cost and fair value of the secuntxes bemg held to matunty, with gross unrealized gains and losses, as of
December 31, 2006 and 2005, are as follows: : ] ‘

g

2006 , o
_ Gross © °  Gross ' i
. Amortized Unrealized Unrealized 5! Fair
~ Cost Gains (Losses) if Value
i o E
State and municipal ~ § - 3328 % 11 3 - % 3,339
| 2005 |
Gross Gross | o
Amortized Unrealized .  Unrealized I} Fair
Cost Gains (Losses) { Valune
State and rhunicipal . $ 4287 '$ - 107 $ -8 4,394

1 0
\ .
i

The amortized cost and fair value of the securities bcmg held to maturity as ofliDecember 31, 2006, by contractual
maturity, are shown below.” Expected maturities may differ from contractual maturities becausc issuers may have the right
to call or prepay obligations without any penalties. '

' 2006

: Amortized Fairi[

| . Cost Value!
Due in one year or less o $ 678 % §' 680
Due after one year through five years 2,650 2,659
Total : - ' 3 3328 % 3,339
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Amortized cost and fair value of securities available for sale, with gross unrealized gains and losses as of December 31,
2006 and 2005 are as follows ;

{
i
'
}
f

2006
! .Gross  _ Gross
Amortized Unrealized Unrealized Fair
Cost Gains (Losses) Value

! . .
U. S. Treasury $ | $ .8 -8 -
U. S. Government agencies 1 10, 912 - 77 (91D 110,078
State and municipals 197,405 1,146 (416) - 98,135
Corporate bonds - ‘ 12,503 . 10 @) 2,506
Collateralized mortgage obligations ' 1,210 ‘ Lo 27 1,183
Mortgage backed securities l46,407 T 37 (1,099) 45,345
Equity securities 1 2,929 _ 631 . (49) 3,511
Other ) | 55 - - _ 55

Total - £._261421 & ___ 1901 $ (2500 £ 260813

! _ B .

r 2005

| Gross Gross

Amortized Unrealized - . Unrealized Fair
Cost Gains - - {Losses) Value

U. S. Treasury $ 12498 § . 7 8 - $ 2,505
U. S. Government agencies l8’7 534 31 (2,548) 85,017
State and municipals k + 80,627 1,561 (352) - 81,836
Corporate bonds ! 6,022 . 45 ... - (5) 6,062
Collateralized mortgage obligations I 3,314 3 RCY)) 3,270
Mortgage backed securities 157,233 99 ' (1,511) 55,821
Equity securities } 1,396 - 342 (79) 1,659
Other 575 . - - 575

|

Total $ 239,199 § 2,088 % (4,542) $ 236,745

The book value of securities pledged to secure deposits and for other purposes amounted to $66.4 million and $59.9
million at December 31, 2006 and 2005, respectlvely

}
|
|
!
|
!
|
r
|
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The amortlzed cost and fair value of the securities available for sale as of Decembcr 31, 2006, by contractual maturity,
are shown below. Expected maturities may differ from contractual maturities because issuers may have the right to
call or prepay obligations without any penalties.

- 2006 -

Amortized 1 Fair

: . Cost | Value
Due int one year or less $ 58,693 § 58,491
Duie after one year through five years 97,688 ‘ 97,353
Due after five years through ten years 42,249 42,361
Due after ten years o 13,400 13,697
Equity securities 2,929 : 3,511
Mortgage—backed secuntles 46,407 ' 45,345
Other : . 55 ’; 55

Total $ 261,421  $i 260,813 .

Proceeds from sales and calls of securities available for sale were $30.7 million, $4 1 million, and $36.5 million for the
years ended December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004, respectively. Gross gains of $33 thousand $319 thousand, and $235

thousand and gross loss&s of 3232 thousand, $23 thousand, and $232 thousand were realized on these sales during
2006, 2005 and 2004, respectively. The tax provision (benefit) applicable to these net realized gains (losses) amounted

to $(68) thousand, $104 thousand, and $1 thousand, respectively. There were nolsales of securities held to maturity
during 2006, 2005 or 2004. !

; § . |
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(Dollars in Thousands, except share data) I . : Ce
i .
Information pertaining to securities with gross unrealized losses at December 31, 2006, and 2005 aggregated by
investment category and length of time that indi\:'idual securities have been in' a continuous loss position follows.

+

Description of Securities Less than 12 mouths  Unrealized 12 months ormore  Unrealzed  Totll  Unrealized
Fair Value ! Loss Fair Value Loss  FairValue  Loss
2006 | o S . \
U.S. Government Agencies § “e2 $- 106 S TS 805 5. 6B § ol
Mortgage backed securities 3,666 13 35,258 1086 3894 1,099
State and mumicipals 3029 182 049 . B4 ML 416
Corporate bonds : - - 40 . 7. 90 . 7
Collateralized mortgage obligations - - - 1,183 27 . 1,i83 i
Subtotal debt securites B 301 80N 2159 167911 % 2460
Equity securtties . b - ‘ 54 49 544 49
Total temporarll impaired securifies”~ § B0 S 301§ 89615 § 2208 § 168455 § 2508
. T ; .
i
|
2005 | | . o .
U.S. Government Agencies $ . 193w § 192§ 5698 2356 § 63008 § 2548
Morgage backed securifes . 16313 402 N9 L9 49284 1511
State and municipals M9 6 . - 34 105 28687 . 3%
Corporate bonds - : , %91 5 ' - - o s
Collateralized mortgage obligations 12910 47 - . 200 ¢ 4
Subtotal debt securities 64,446 892 80434 I 480 448
Equity securities P - 514 79 514 79
Total temporardy impaired secwries ~ § 64446 § 82§ B0S48 § 3650 § 145394 § - 454

|
There are a total of 172 securities that have unreahzed losses ‘as of December 31, 2006, 32 U.S. Agency securities, 39
U.S. Agency MBS securitics, 97 municipal secunues one CMO, one corporate security and two preferred stock
securities. . There were a total of 129 securities that had unrealized losses as of December 31, 2005, 30 U.S. Treasuries
or agency securities, 35 U.S. Agency MBS securmes 60 mumc1pal securities, two CMO, one corporate security and
one preferred stock security. The debt secuntles are obligations of entities that are excellent credit risks. The
impairment as noted is the result of interest rate market conditions and does not reflect on the ability of the issuers to
repay the debt obligations. The preferred stock category represents ownership in preferred stock of the Federal Home
Loan Mortgage Corporation (Freddie Mac). Freddie Mac’s credit rating did not change during 2006 or 2005 as
measured by Moody’s and S&P. The nnpaument is the result of interest rate market conditions and there is a high
probability of full recovery of investment, The fixed income nature of this investment causes significant movement in
value in relation to the fixed income market. However there is no change in the dividend stream or credit quality as a
result. The Company maintains the ability and 1Intent to hold such securities for the foreseeable future.
‘ ) |

[
!
!
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Note 5. Loans

A smmnafy of the balances of loans follows:

i

December. 31,
: 2006 L2005
Real estate loans: : Li
Construction and land development $ 198,400 8l 115,944
Farmland 20,269 4 10,119
1-4 family residential : 276,488 | 300,600
“Multifamily, nonresidential and junior liens 571,154 ‘ 593,396
Loans to farmers (except those
secured by real estate) 1624 1,897
Commercial and industrial loans |
{except those secured by real estate) 103,085 i 76,213
Consumer installment loans - 32,528 i 38,678
Deposit overdrafts . T502 ; 2,198
All other'loans ‘ 6,768 ? 3,486
Total loans - - $ 1216818 $| 1,142,531
| Net deferred loan costs 814 L 545
| Allowance for loan losses (14,500) (13,581)
Net loans ' ' $ 1203132 §.i 1,129495
‘ Note 6. Allowance for Loan Losses ;

Chang&s in the allowance for loan losses for the years ended December 31, 2006 2005 and 2004 were as follows:

2004|

2006 2005
Balance, beginning $ 13,581 $§ 11,706 § -9, ’3!43
Provisions for loan losses 750 2,012 2, 534
Loans charged off (402) (452) (802)
Recoveries 571 315 231
Net recoveries (charge-offs) 169 (137) (571)
Balance, ending $§ 14500 § 13581 $ 11,706

!
!
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[

Information about impaired loans as of and for the years ended December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004, is as follows

2006 2005 . 2004
Impaired loans for which an - o
allowance has been provided - $ g,gso $ 1,710 $ 3,410

, .
Impaired loans for whichno g ‘ ‘
allowance has been provided 6,098 3,705 - 4,905
Total impaired loans 3 9,048 $ 5,415 $ 8315

Allowance provided for Y '
impaired loans, included in
the allowance for loan losses_ $

750§ 684 8 1,166

|
I
|
|
Average balance in impairedloans  § - - 9269 © $ 5670 § 9379

[
Interest income recognized !
on impaired loans $ 511 3 47§ 574 _
Interest income recognized on a I A
‘cash basis on impaired loans 5 | 501 $ 339 $ 594

|

Because the Company does not separately identify individual consumer and residential loans for impairment disclosures, -
unless such loans are subject to a restructuring agreement some nonaccrual loans are not reviewed for impairment.
Nonaccrual loans excluded from the impaired loan dmclosure under FASB 114 amounted to $1.6 million, $953 thousand, and
$1.4 million at December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004 respectively. If interest on these loans had been accrued, such income
would have approximated $181 thousand, $91 thousand and $118 thousand for each of the three years ended December 31,

.
There were no loans past due greater than 90 days and still accruing interest for each of the t.hree years ended December 31,
2006.

|
Note 7. Goodwill and Core Deposnt Intanglbles

At December 31, 2006 and 2005 goodwill totaled $13.9 million. The gross carrying amounts and accumulated
amortization of core deposit intangibles as of December 31, 2006 and 2005 are as follows:

Deti:ember 31, 2006 December 31, 2005

Gross . Gross
Carrying Accumulated Carrying Accumulated
Amount Amortization Amount  Amortization
I | '
Core deposit intangibles _§ 6642 3 {(2855) % 6,642 $ (2,193)
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The following table setIs forth the actual and estimated pre-tax amortization expcnse';of core deposit intangibles:

Amortization Expense for the Year Ended December 31:

Estimated Amortization Expense for the Year Ended December 31:

2006 $ 577
2007 $ 642
2008 ' 642
2009 642
2010 642
2011 642

Note 8. Premises and Equipment

1

|
|
|
|
|
|
l

A summary of the cost and accumulated depreciation and amortization of bank premlsw, equlpment and software follows:

Land

Buildings and leasehold improvements
Furniture, equipment and software
Construction in progress

- Less accumulated depreciation and amortization

ba

_léiugaﬂullhﬁiulldgsi. 2006 _  __2005
N

Indefinitc | $ 8315 $12,041
Lease tenm - 39 years 24,961 22,263
3-7years 27,268 25,683
a1 4341 943
' $ 64,885 $60,930
29.032_ 27.255

(1) Construction in progress is not depreciated until placed in service,

Depreciation and amortization expense amounted to $2.9 million in 2006, $3.0 million in 2005, and $3.1 million in 2004.

Note 9. Deposits

| $ 35853 $33.675
1
|

4

The aggregate amount of time deposits in denominations of $100,000 or more at December 31, 2006 and 2005 was

$204.6 million and $157.9 million, respectively.

At December 31, 2006, the scheduled maturities of time deposits were as follows:

2007
2008
2009
2010
2011

There after

$ 428,845
106,957
36,834
34,017

8,105

38

3_61a1%

Brokered certificates of deposit totaled $12.8 million at December 31, 2006.
deposit held at December 31, 2005.

56
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Note 10. Federal Home Loan Bank Advances '

The Company has advances outstanding with thc Federal Home Loan Bank of Atlanta of $65 million at December 31,
2006 maturing through 2016. At December 31,12006 and 2005, the interest rates on this debt ranged from 3.91% to
6.69% and from 1.96% to 6.69%, respectively. The weighted average interest rate at December 31, 2006 and 2005 was
4.79% and 4.15%, respectively. The average balance outstanding during 2006 and 2005 was $61. 6 miltion and $32.8
million, respectively. The advance structures cmployed by the Company include $25 million in convertible credits,
$20 million in PRIME-based credits, $15 million in expanded/fixed rate credits and $5 million in adjustable rate
credits. Bach structure requires either quarterly interest payments, or monthly interest payments. The convertible
advances include one that is callable in the event that three-month LIBOR reaches 8.5%, and three that are callable
quarterly. : :
The banking subsidiaries have available a combined $247 million ine of credit with the Federal Home Loan Bank of
Atlanta. Advances on the line are secured by alblanket lien on the loan p-ortfohos of Second Bank & Trust, Virginia
Heartland Bank and Planters Bank & Trust Company of Virginia. The blanket lien covers 1 to 4 family dwelling loans,
multifamily loans, home equity loans, and commercial real estate loans. As of December 31, 2006, loans pledged as
collateral totaled $522 million and consisted of 1 to 4 family, multifamily, home equny and commercml real estate
loans. |

The contractual maturities of the advances are as follows:

Note 11. Subordinated Debt

! 2006
Due in 2007 | $10,000
Due in 2008 ! 25,000
Due in 2010 | 10,000
Due in 2016 i 20,000
Total | © $65000
l
[
l

During the first quarter of 2004, VFG Limited Llablhty Trust, a wholly—owned subsidiary of the Company, was formed

. for the purpose of issuing redeemable Capital Secuntxes (commonly referred to as Subordinated debt). On March 18,

2004, $20 million of Subordinated debt was issued through a private transaction. The Trust issued $619 thousand in
common equity to the Company. The securities have a LIBOR-indexed floating rate of interest which adjusts, and is
payable, quarterly. The interest rate at Decethbcr 31, 2006 was 8.10%. The securitiecs may be redeemed at par
beginning in June, 2009 and each quarterly anmversary of such date until the securities mature on June 17, 2034. The
principal asset of the Trust is $20.6 million of the Virginia Financial Group’s junior subordinated debt securities with
the like maturities and like interest rates to the Cllapltal Securities. :

The Subordinated debt may be included in Tier'1 capital of the Company for regulatory capital adequacy determination
purposes up to 25% of Tier I capital after its inclusion. The portion of the Subordinated debt not considered as Tier I
capital may be included in Tier II capltal { .

I

The obligations of the Company with respect to the issuance of the capital securities constitute a full and uncondmonal
guarantee by the Company of the Trust’s obhgatlons with respect to the capital securities. '

!
Subject to certain exceptions and limitations, the Company may clect from time to time to defer interest payments on
the junior subordinated debt securities, which would result in a deferral of distribution payments on the related capital

securities.
|
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Note 12. Commercial Paper and Other Borrowings

The Company has a line of credit agreement ‘with a correspondent bank for general working capital needs. The
$15 million line is unsecured, calls for variable interest payments and is payable on demand. There were no balances
outstandmg at December 31, 2006 and 2005, respect:vely |

;
Federal funds purchased gencra]ly mature within one to four days from the transactlon date. . There were no balances
outstanding at December 31, 2006 and 2005, respectively.

Securities sold under agreements to repurchase, which are classified as secured borrowings, generally mature within
one to four days from the transaction date. Securities sold under agreements to, repurchase are reflected at the amount
of cash received in connection with the transaction. Additional collateral may be required based on the fair value of the
underlying secumles The balance outstanding at December 31, 2006 andl 2005 was none and $15 9 million,
respectively. ' :

The average balance outstanding of other borrowings did not exceed 30 perccnt%pf stockholder’s equity during the year
ended December 31, 2006. ~ ' :

One of the Company’s 'subsidiary bank’s has an agreement with the Federal Rcscrve Bank of Richmond where the
bank can borrow funds deposited by its customers. This agreement calls for variable interest and is payable on
demand. U.S. Government securities are pledged as collateral. The targeted- threshold maximum amount available
under this agreement is $6.0 million. The balance outstanding at December 311 2006 and 2005 was $561.0 thousand
and $841.8 thousand, respectlve\y

The Company, through its subsidiary banks, has uncollateralized, unuséd lmes of credit totaling $92.4 million with
nonaffiliated banks at Dccembcr 31, 2006.

In 2005 the Company initiated a commercial paper program whereby' customcrs of the affiliate banks can invest in
unrated cominercial paper of VFG. Terms include a daily maturity and floating ralte of i mterest

The following table sﬁows certain information regarding the Company’s commercial paper: '

At or for the year ending December 31,

. 2006. | 2005
Commercial paper: _ _ . i
Average balance outstanding : $ . 50,530 $ 1 7,724
Maximum amount outstanding at ' 1 '
any month-end during the period 68,784 = 24,480
Balance outstanding at end of period 58,632 | 24,480
Average interest rate during the period 450% . ; 3.30%
Weighted average interest rate at ‘ f
end of period - i _ 4.82% ! 31.39%
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E
Note 13. Stock-Based Compensation |
.
Under the Company’s incentive stock option plén the Company may grant optlons to purchase common stock to 1ts
directors, officers and employees of up to 750,000 newly issued shares of the Company’s common stock. The plan
requires that options be granted at an exercise price equal to at least 100% of the fair market value of the common
stock on the date of the grant. Such options vestiover a five-year period and will expire in no more than ten years after
the date of grant. The Company adopted SFAS 123R effective January 1, 2006 using the modified prospective method
and as such, results for prior periods have not Been restated. Prior to January 1, 2006, the value of restricted stock
awards was expensed by the Company over theirestriction period, and no compensation expense was recognized for
stock option grants as all such grants had an exer?ise price not less than fair market value on the date of grant.

: Lo .
Effective January 1, 2006, the Company has adopted FASB Statement No. 123 (R), “Share-Based Payment”.
Statement 123 (R) requires that compensation icost relating to share-based payment transactions be recognized in
financial statements. The cost is measmwed based . on the fair value of the equlty or liability instruments issued.

Statement 123 (R) covers a wide range of share-based compensation arrangements including share options, restricted
share plans, performance-based awards, share appreciation rights, and employee share purchase plans.

. i )
Statement 123 (R) replaces FASB Statement No. 123, “Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation” and supersedes

_APB Opinion No. 25, “Accounting For Stock Issued to Employees”. Statement 123, established as preferable a fair-

value-based method of accounting for share-based payment transactions with employees. However, that Statement
permitted entities the option of continuing to apply the guidance in Opinion 25, as long as the footnotes to financial
statements disclosed what net income would have been had the preferable fair-value-based method been used.
|

Because the Company adopted Statement 123 (R) using the modified prospective transition method, prior periods have
not been restated. Under this method, the Company is required to record compensation expense for all awards granted
after the date of adoption and for the unvested portion of previously granted awards that remain outstanding as of the
beginning of the period of adoption. The Company measured share-based compensation cost using the Black-Scholes
option pricing model for stock option grants prior to January 1, 2006 and anticipates using this pricing mode for future
grants. Forfeitures did not affect the calculated e:xpense based upon historical activities of option grantees.

" At December 31, 2006, the Company has one stock-based employee compensation plan. Share-based compensation of

$420 thousand in the aggregate was recognized for the year ended December 31, 2006, which related to the unvested
portion of options to acquire shares of Company common stock and restricted shares granted prior to January 1, 2006.
Reported net income, adjusting for share-based compensation that would have been recogmzed in the adoption of
Statement 123 (R) did not change the way that the Company has accounted for stock awards in prior periods and
therefore no such change is reflected in the pro forma table below. The Company expenses the fair value of stock
awards determined at the grant date on a stra:ght—hne basis over the vesting period of the award.

f

|

:
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e ke wm e

For the year ended December 31, 2006 the Company recognized $210 thousand i in' 'compensation expense related to the
vesting of stock options. A summary of the stock option plan at December 31l' 2006, 2005 and 2004 and changes

during the years ended on those dates is as follows:

80

activity during the year
' Weighted-Average , .
Number Grant-Date Total Intrinsic
Nonvested Shares of Shares Fair Value 1 Value
Nonvested at January 1, 2006 26,644 $ 22.66 g 640
Granted - : 13,180 25.81 {l -
Vested i 7,612 - 22.82 | 197
Forfeited 2,154 22.25 it -
Nonvested at Decembci‘ 31, 2006 30,058 $ 24.03 $ 841
4|
|

. 2006 2005 2004
- _ ~ Woeighted | Weighted _ Weighted
. Number Average Number | Average Number Average
i of Exercise of 't Exercise - of Exercise
'. Shares " Price Shares i\ Price Shares Price
Cutstanding at begmmng of year 149,150 $ 1741 128,443 b 14.73 118,518 $ 13.55
Granted . 66,646 27.05 31,180 2733 16,876 22.99
Forfeited .- (3,457) 22.81 - - (3,000) 21.25
Expired (1,200) 21.33 - - - -
Exercised (16,523) 10.63 (10,473) 13.77 (3,951) 9.73
Outstanding at end of year 193,616 $ 21.17 149,150 3 17.41 128,443 3 14.73
Exercisable at end of year 103,272 105,822 : 85,271
Weighied-average fair value per
option of options granted during !
the year 3 7.48 $ 7.47 .' 3 8.09

The aggregate intrinsic value of the options outstanding as of December 31, 2066 was $1.4 million. The aggregate
-intrinsic value represents the total pre-tax intrinsic value (the difference between Lhe Company’s closing stock price on
the last trading day of the year ended December 31, 2006 and the exercise price, multlphed by the number of options
outstanding). The aggregate intrinsic value of the options currently exercisable as of December 31, 2006 was $1.2
million. The weighted average remaining contractuat life is 5.3 years for exemlsablc options at December 31, 2006.

As of December 31, 2006, there was $552 thousand of total unrecognized compensanon expense related to nonvested
options, respectively, Wthh will be recognized over a weighted-average period of appronmatcly 3.9 years.

The following table summanzcs nonv&stecl rcstncted shares outstandmg as of Dcccmbcr 31, 2006 and the related

The actual tax benefit rcahzcd for the tax deductions from option exercises under the Plan for the twelve months ended
December 31, 2006 was $33 thousand. The impact of thesc cash receipts is mcluded in financing activities in the
accompanying consolidated statements of cash flows. :
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The incentive stock option plan also allows for the issuance of restricted share awards. Restricted stock awards are
independent of option grants and are generally Sub_] ect to forfeiture if employment terminates prior to the release of the
restrictions, generally three to five years from ‘the date of grant. Restricted stock has dividend rights equal to the
cumulative cash dividend accrued during the restriction period, which are paid upon expiration of the restriction and
issuance of the shares. Restricted shares do not have the voting rights of common stock until the restriction expires and
the shares are issued. The Company expenses the cost of the restricted stock awards, determined to be the fair value of
the shares at the date of grant, ratably over the 'period of the restriction. Compensation expense associated with stich
awards amounted to $210 thousand, $332 thousand and $201 thousand for each of the three years ended December 31,
2006, respectively. The Company had 30,058 shares of restricted stock awarded and nonvested at December 31, 2006
with a total unrecognized compensation expense of $553 thousand, which will be recognized over a welghted-average
period of approximately 1.9 years.

1
Note 14. Employee Benefit Plans !
The Company and its banking subsidiaries rxminfain several tax qualified and non-qualified employee benefit plans for
employees, which are described below. i
: I .
The Company has a noncontributory pension plan which conforms to the Employee Retirement Income Security Act of
1974 (ERISA). The amount of benefits payable under the plan is determined by an employee's period of credited
service. The amount of normal retirement benefit will be determined based on a Pension Equity Credit formula. The
employee receives credits based on their age and years of service. The plan provides for early retirement for
participants with five years of service and the attainment of age 55. A participant who terminates employment with 2 or
more years of service will be entitled to a benefit. The benefits are payable in single or joint/survivor annuities as well

~asa lump sum paymcnt upon retirement or scparatlon of service.

The Company adopted SFAS 158 effective as of the year endmg December 31, 2006 regardmg the recognition of the
funded status of the benefit plan. The new standard requires an employer to recognize the overfunded or underfunded
status of a defined benefit postretirement plan (other than a multiemployer plan) as an asset or liability in its statement
of financial position and to recognize changes;in that funded status in the year in which the changes occur through
comprehensive income of a business entity. The standard also requires an employer to measure plan assets and benefit
obligations as of the date of the employer’s fiscal year-end statement of financial position for fiscal years ending after
December 15, 2008, and shall not be applied retrospectively.
The incremental effect of applying SFAS No. 158 on individual line items in the Consolidated Balance Sheets is as
follows (In Thousands)
Before S After
Application of : Application of
Statement 158  Adjustments  Statement 158

Prepaid for pension benefits  § 129 b (129) § -
Deferred income taxes 151 ! 188 339
Intangible asset 7 | . (7 : -
Total assets 1,625937 | 52 1,625,989
. i
Other liabilities oI 401 401
Total liabilities 1,474,936 : 401 1,475,337
1
Accumulated other r
comprehensive income {(677) } (349) {1,026)
Total stockholders' equity 151,000 (349) 150,652
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Utilizing a measurement date of October 1, 2006 for the 2006 plan year, information about the plan follows:

Change in Benefit Obligation
Benefit obligation, beginning
Service cost '
Interest cost

Actuarial (gain) loss

Benefits paid

Benefit obligation, ending

Change in Plan Assets

Fair value of plan assets, beginning
Actal return on plan assets
Employer contributions

Benefits paid

Fair value of plan assets, ending

Funded status

Unrecognized net actuarial gain

Unrecognized prior service cost

{Accrued liability) prepaid benefit cost included in balance sheet
Accumulated benefit obligation :

Amount Recognized in Consolidated Balance Sheets
Prepaid benefit cost

Funded status liability

Accrued benefit liability

Deferred tax asset

Intangible asset

Accumulated other comprehensive income, net

Net amount recognized S

Information for pension plans with-an accumulated
benefit obligation in excess of plan assets
Projected benefit obligation
Accumulated benefit obligation
Fair value of plan assets
Increase in minimum liability included in
other comprehensive income

Components of Net Periodic Benefit Cost

Service cost

Interest cost

Expected return on plan assets

Amortization of prior service cost t
Amortization of net obligation at transition
Recognized net actuarial gain

Net periodic benefit cost

-

62

¥

2006 2005
$ 9\4,389 $ 4,407
1 170 179
il 245 260
| (259) 69
i+ (174) (526)
§ 14371 8§ 4,389
|
$ 42,992 . % 3,199
1265 222
887 97
4 (174) (526)
$ 3970 0§ 2992
li :
$ fi(401) $ (1,397)
i 963 1,304
6 39
$ 1568 - % . (54)
$ '3,689 % 3,674
|
S8 T S (54)
{(401) -
- (682)
'} 339 225°
I 39
'l 630 . 418
$  "568 $  (59)
|
$ 4371 $ 4389
3,689 3,674
3,970 2,992
AR 102
2006 | 2005 2004
$ 1701 S 178 § 19
245 . 260 270
(249), (266) (304)
32 | 32 32
66 | 61 18
$ 26471 8 265 $§ 212

I
|

|
i
i
|
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Amounts recognized in other comprehensive i mcome during the year ended December 31, 2006 are as follows:

Net actuarial loss \ [' § 626
Net obligation at transition | -
Prior service cost | ' 4
Accumulated other comprehensive income | $ 630
: ‘ —_———
i

i
Weighted-Average Assumptions for BeneFt Obligation as of October 1,

: 2006 2005
Discount Rate 6.00% 5.75%
Expected Return on Plan Assets 8.50% 8.50%
Rate of Compensation Increase | 4.00% 4.00%

2006 2005
DlSGOllnt Rate 5.75% 6.00%
Expected Return on Plan Assets 8.50% 8.50%
Rate of Compensatlon Increase 4.00% . 4.00%

[
;
r
i
|
[
|
|
_'Weighted-Average Assumptions for Net ?eﬁomc Benefit as of October 1,
|
I
!
!
I
!

The Company selects the expected long-term rate-of-return-on-assets assumptlon in consultation with their investment
advisors and actuary. This rate is intended to reflect the average rate of eamnings expected to be earned on the funds
invested or to be invested to provide plan beneﬁts Historical performance is reviewed—especially with respect to real
rates of return (net of inflation)—for the major asset classes held or anticipated to be held by the trust, and for the trust
itself. Undue weight is not given to recent experience—that may not continue over the measurement period—with
higher significance placed on current forecasts <;)_f future long-term economic conditions.

Becaunse assets are held in a qualified trust, a_irticipated returns are not reduced for taxes. Further—solely for this
purpose—the plan is assumed to continue in! force and not terminate during the period during which assets are
invested. However, consideration is given to the potential impact of current and future investment policy, cash flow
into and out of the trust, and expenses (both investment and non-investment) typically pald from plan assets (to the
extent such expenses are not explicitly estlmated within periodic cost).

The plan’s weighted average asset allocations at December 31, 2006, and December 31, 2005, by asset category are as
follows: |
l ‘

Plan Assets at December 31
Asset Category . 2096 2005
“Money Markets and Equivalents 20.7% 10.6%
Equity Securities , 69.4% 82.7%
Debt Securities : 1 9.9% 6.7%
Total ‘ g 100.0% 100.0%
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VIRGINIA FINANCIAL GROUP, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES |
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements '
(Dollars in Thousands, except share data)

The investment policy and strategies for the plan assets can best be described as a capital growth and with current cash
income strategy. The target allocation for equities is 75% of the total poﬁfoho through the use of large and mid
capitalization companies. The remaining asset allocation is to fixed income mvestments and money market funds. The
portfolio is diversified by limiting the holdmg in any one equity issue to no more than 5% of total equities and one
industry to no more than 25%. All fixed income investments are rated as mvestment grade with the majority of the
assets in corporate issues. The assets are managed by the Company’s wholly~owned trust Corporation, Virginia
Commonwealth Trust Corporation. The portfoho does not-include any position in Vlrguna Financial Group, Inc

The Company antlclpat% that the contribution level for 2007 wnll rematn at a comparable level to that realized in 2006

]

Estimated future benefit payments, which reflect expected future service, as appropriate, are as follows:

i

2007 ' $ 260 |
. 2008 ' 254
2009 281 .
2010 284
2011 394 .
- 2012-2016 . _2.788 |
- $ 4261 t
The estimated components of net penodm pension cost for fiscal year ended December 31, 2007 are as follows:
Service cost . ' $ 177
Interest cost _ | 255
Expected return on plan assets ’ 1 (292)
Amortization of Unrecognized: _ E
Net obligation at transition . .
Prior service cost  + . . : 32
Net loss b R : 41
Net periodic benefit cost ' _ $ 213

Defined Contribution Plans : : If

The Company has a bontn'bution retirement plan covering certain employees:| Contributions amounted to $887
thousand, $625 thousand, and $682 thousand for the three years ended December 3'1 2006, reSpectlvcly

The Company has a 401 (k) Savings Plan eligible to all employees with matchin'g contributions equal to 100% of the
first 3% and 50% of the next 2% of salary reduction contributions made by the emp10yee The Company contributed a
matching contribution of $631 thousand, $600 thousand, and $599 thousand for the three years ended December 31,
2006, respectively. .l

Directors’ Deferred Plan :

The Company has a non-qualified Directors Deferred Compensation Plan. This plan allows for the deferral of pre-tax
income associated with payment of director fees. Directors may elect to defer all or a portion of their annual directors
fees. Monthly board fees are contributed directly to a trust with various investmient options, and are held until such
time the director is entitled to receive a distribution.

i o
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VIRGINIA FINANCIAL GROUP, INC. AND S:UBSIDIARIES
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements '
(Dollars in Thousands, except share data) :
!
Deferred Compensation Plan
The Company also has a non-qualified Executive Deferred Compensatlon Plan for key employees. Pursuant to the
plan, the President and any other employees selected by the Board of Directors may defer receipt of a certain amount
of pre-tax income and cash incentive compensation for a period of no less than three years or until retirement, subject
to termination of employment or certain other events, including an imminent change in control. - The Board may make
contributions at its discretion. The balance in this plan is recorded in both other assets and other liabilities on the
Company’s consolidated balance shect. The deferred compensation charged to expense totaled $50 thousand, $48
thousand, and $22 thousand for the three years cnclled December 31, 2006, respectively.
Bonus Plan L a
The Company has an incentive bonus plan under which employees receive compensation directly related to affiliate
and Company profitability and budget performance. Compensation under the plan is calculated under pre-determined
guidelines set by the Board of Directors. The balance in this plan is recorded in other liabilities on the Company’s
consolidated balance sheet. The amount charged to operations was $1.3 million, $2.3 rmlhon and $520 thousand for
the three years ended December 31, 2006, respectlvcly .
Supplemental Retirement Plan '
The Company has supplemental retirements agreements with former executive officers of banks previously acquired,
which provide benefits payable over fifteen years. The present value of the estimated liability under the agreements is
being accrued using a discount rate of 10% and 7.5%, respectively, ratably over the remaining years to the date of
eligibility for benefits. The deferred compensation expense charged to expense totaled $97 thousand, $64 thousand,
and $49 thousand for the three years ended December 31, 2006, respectively.

l

Note 15. Income Taxes :

The components of the net deferred tax asset, included in the Consolidated Balance Sheets, are as follows:
- i .

| December 31,
‘ : 2006 2005
Deferred tax assets: E

Allowance for loan losses S 5,075 $ 4,753
Nonaccrual loan interest 28 137
Deferred compensation' 1,320 1,138
Securities available for sale 213 < - 859
Pension liability 339 225
Core deposit mtanglble . 221 174
Accrued stock compensation - 184 . -
Other * - 124

! 3 7,380 $ 7,410

Deferred tax liabilities:

Accrued pension asset | 3 199 5 -
Premises and equipmerit 547 576
FHLB stock dividend & 59 59
Goodwill 1 ‘ 1,054 730
Other ' 75 101

' $ 1,934 $ 1,466
Net deferred tax asset 3 5,446 b 5,944

|
|
|
|
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VIRGINIA F[NANCIAL GROUP, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES . :
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements ' : *
(Dollars in Thousands, except share data) }

{
Income tax expense charged to operations for the years ended December 31, 2006 2005 and 2004 consists of the
followmg .

g o 2006 l2005 . L2004
Current tax expense v - % 8499 § | 9209 § 7,483
Deferred tax (benefit) : (34)- L (851) (918)
: e I 8465 § I 83 T 6,565

Income tax expense d1ffers from the amount of income tax determined by applying the U.S. federal income tax rate to
pretax income duc to the following:

.
1

| 2006 . 2005 | 2004
; : Amount  Rate Amount |Rate Amount  Rate
Computed "expected" tax expense . $ 9,818 .. 350% $. 9,301 . 350% & 7,619  35.0%
Increase (decrease) in income taxes | ' i
. resulting from: ! | T
Tax-cxempt interest income, net (1,131) -4.0% (949) ‘ -3.6% (1,066)  -4.9%
Other 222) - B 12 ;

§ 8465 302% $ 8358 314% $ 6,565 30.1%

Note 16. Related Parlty Transactions

In the ordinary course of business, the Banks grant loans to principal ofﬁccrs, dire;:tors and affiliates of the Company.

Aggregate loan transactions with related pariiés were as follows; 1

; o . 2006 | 2005

! | . 1 ‘
Beginning balance  ©§  22530| $ 27,685
‘New loans ‘ S 34836, 28,556
Repayments ' (38,711 (33,711)
Ending balance $ 18655 - - $ 22,530

" Total related party dcposﬂ:s held at the VFG bank affiliates were $13.7 million and $7 9 million at December 31, 2006
and 2005, rmpcctwely
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements | ‘
(Dollars in Thousands, except share data) !

I
l

The following shows the weighted average numbcr of shares used in computing earnings per share.and the effect on
weighted average number of shares of diluted potcnual common stock. Potential dilutive common stock had no effect
on income available to common stockholders. | - |

4

Note 17. Earnings Per Share

2006 | 2005 .00 -
Weighted | Weighted Weighted
Average Per Share Average Per Share Average Per Share
Shares Amount Shares Amount . Shares Amount

Basic earmnings per share 10770969 § | 181 10752041 § 169 10737861 § 142

f
Effect of dilutive securities: f ’ )
Restricted stock - ' 32,110 - . 28,284 - 18,362 -
Stock options 40,277 i 0l . 43,615 - .01 46,403 01

Diluted earnings per share 10,843,356 $ ! 1.80 ~ 10823940 § 1.68 10!802!626 $ 1.41

. | . to -
Stock options representing 95,376, 21,348 and 9,425 shares at December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004, respectively, were
not included in the calculation of earnings per sh'hre as their effect would have been anti-dilutive,
| .

1
Note 18. Stock Split and Par Value Change |

r
On September 6, 2006, the Company paid a three-for-two stock split in the form of a 50% stock dividend.
Shareholders of record at the close of busmess‘on August 14, 2006 received one additional share of the Company’s
common stock for every two shares held on that date. On August 24, 2006, the Comipany’s Articles of Incorporation
were amended to decrease the par value of the Company’s common stock from $5 per share to $1 per share. All
references in the accompanying consolidated financial statements and notes thereto to the number of common shares
and per share amounts for all pcnods presented ?ave been restated to reflect the three-for-two stock split.

-Note 19, Comlmtments and Contlngent Lmehtles

The Company has noncancellable leases covem g certain premises and eqmpmcnt

Total rent expense applicable to operating leases was $596 thousand, $569 thousand and $553 thousand for 2006, 2005
and 2004, respectively, and was included in occupancy expense.

; _
The following is a schedule by year of future mlmmum lease requirements requn‘ed under the long-term noncancellable |

lease agreements:

l
2007 | $ 606
2008 | 517
2009 | o _ 363
2010 r S 211 |
2011 , ; 160 |
Thereafter I 1,550
Total | $ . 3,407
y
|

67



VIRGINIA FINANCIAL GROUP, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES . 1
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statcments :
(Dollars in Thousands, except share data) }

There are no material proceedings to Whlch the Company or any of our submdlan&s ar¢ a party or by which, to the
Company’s knowledge, we, or any subsidiaries, are threatened. All legal proceedmgs presently pending or threatened against
the Company or. our subsidiaries involve routine litigation incidental to the business of the Company or the subsidiary
involved and are not material in respect to the amount in controversy. |

P i
In the normal course of business there are outstanding various commitments and contingent liabilitics, which arc not reflected

in the accompanying ‘financial statements. Management does not anticipate an):' material losses as a result of these

transactions, . . . ;

See Note 21 with respect to financial instruments with off-balance sheet risk. f

|
Note 20. Restrictions on Transfers to Parent |
i
Federal and state banking regulations place certain restrictions on dividends pa:d and loans or advences made by the
subsidiary banks to the Company. The total amount of dmdends whjch may be pald at any date is generally lumted toa
portion of retained carmngs as defined. - S e

During 2006, the bankmg subsidiaries and the non-bank subs:dlanes paid $12.5 m11110n in dividends to the Company Asof
Janvary 1, 2007, the aggregate amount of additional unrestricted funds, which could be transferred from the banking

subsidiaries to the Parent Company without prior regulatory approval totaled $42.1 mnlhon or 27.9% of the consolidated net
assets. ‘

. In addition, dividends paid by the sub31dlary banks to the Company would be prohibited if the effect thereof would cause the
subsndiary banks’ capltal to be reduced below apphcable minimum capital requuements

Note 21. Financial Instruments w1th Off-Balance—Sheet Risk |

i
The Company, through its banking subsuhanm is party to credit related financial mstmments with off-balance-sheet risk in
the normal course of business to meet the financing needs of its customers. These ﬁnancml instruments include commitments
to extend credit and standby letters of credit. These instruments involve, to varymg degrees, elements of credit risk and
interest rate risk in excess of the amount recognized in the balance sheet. The contract amount of those instruments reflects
the extent of involvement the Company has in particular classes of financial mslmments -

The Company’s exposure to credit loss in the event of nonperformance by the other party to the financial instrument for
commitments to extend credit and standby letters of credit is represented by the contractual amount of those instruments. The

Company uses the same credit policies in making commitments and conditional obl:gauons as it does for on-balance-sheet
instruments. 7 . (|

1
H

At December 31,2006 and 2005 the following financial instruments were outstandmg whose contract amounts represent

credit risk:
2006 2005
II
Commitments to extend credit $ 370, 575 $ 397,341
Standby letters of credit _ 15, 634 16,602
" Mortgage loans sold with potential recourse 50, 648 - 53,7176

Commitments to extend credit are agreements to lend to a customer as long as there is no violation of any condition
established in the contract. Commitments generally have fixed expiration dates or olher termination clauses and may require
payment of a fec. The commitments for equity lines of credit may expire without bemg drawn upon. Therefore, the total
commitment amounts do not necessarily represent future cash requirements. The. amount of collateral obtained, if 1t is
deemed necessary by the Company, i is based on management’s credit evaluation of the ‘customer.
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VIRGINIA FINANCIAL GROUP, INC. AND SIUBSIDIARIES
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements |
(Dollars in Thousands, except share data) :
|
Unfunded commitments under commercial lines of credit, revolving credit lines and overdraft protection agreements
are commitments for possible future extensions ,of credit to existing customers. These lines of credit are usually
uncollateralized and do not always contain a specnﬁed maturity date and may not be drawn upon to the total extent to

which the Company is committed.

!
Standby letters of credit are conditional commitments issued by the Company to guarantee the performance of a:

customer to a third party. The credit risk mvolved in issuing letters of credit is essentially the same as that involved in
extending loan facilities to customers. The Cornpany generally holds collateral supporting those commitments, if
decemed necessary. The Company, through its banking subsidiaries, originates loans for sale to secondary market

‘investors subject to contractually specified and lnmtcd recourse provisions. In 2006, the Company originated $134
. million and sold $139 million to investors, cornpared to $177 million originated and $176 million sold in 2005. Most

contracts with investors contain certain recoursc:language which may vary from 90 days up to twelve months. The
Company may have an obligation to repurchase a loan if the mortgagor has defaulted early in the loan term. Mortgages
subject to recourse are’ collateralized by single family residences, have loan-to-value ratios of 80% or less, or have
private mortgage insurance or are insured or guarémteed by an agency of the United States government. At December
31, 2006, the Company had locked-rate commitments to originate mortgage loans amounting to approximately $10.8
million and loans held for sale of $7.6 million. The Company has entered into commitments, on a best-effort basis to
sell loans of approximately $18.4 million. Risks arise from the possible inability of counterparties to meet the terms of
their contracts. The Company does not expect any counterparty to fail to meet its obligations.
l

The Company maintains cash accounts in othericommerclal banks. The amount on deposit at December 31, 2006
exceeded the insurance limits of the Federal Depos:t Insurance Corporation by $242 thousand.

?
Note 22. Fair Value of Financial Instruments and Interest Rate Risk

The fair value of a financial instrument is the current amount that would be exchanged between willing parties, other
than in a forced liquidation. Fair value is best determined based upon quoted market prices. However, in many
instances, there are no quoted market prices for the Company’s various financial instruments. In cases where quoted
market prices are not available, fair values are based on estimates using present value or other valuation techmques

|
Those techniques are significantly affected by the assumptmns used, including the discount rate and estimates of future
cash flows. Accordingly, the fair value estimates may not be realized in an immediate settlement of the instrument.
Accordingly, the aggregate fair value amounts presented may not necessarily represent the underlying fair value of the
Company. |

I
The following methods and assumptions were used to estimate the fair value of each class of financial instruments for
which it is practicable to estimate that value: : :

[

f
Cash and Short-Term Investments i

For those short-term instruments, the carrying arn?u.nt is a reasonable estimate of fair value.

Investment Securities [

For securities and marketable equily securities held for investment purposes, fair valu&c are based on quoted market
prices or dealer quotes. For other securities held'as investments, fair value equals quoted market price, if available. If
a quoted market price is not available, fair value is estimated using quoted market prices for similar securities.
Restricted stock is carried at cost. |

t

!

Loans Held for Sale '
Loans originated or intended for sale in the sccondary market are carried at the lower of cost or estimated fair value in
the aggregate. Net unrealized losses, if any, are recognized through a valuation allowance by charges to income,
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VIRGINIA FINANCIAL GROUP, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES'
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

(Dollars in Thousands, except share data) .
Loans :
For variable-rate loans that re-price frequently and with no significant changes in credit risk, fair values are based on
carrying values. The fair values for other loans were estimated using dlscounted cash flow analyses, using interest
rates currently bemg offered.
Deposit Liabilities ' ‘
The fair value of demand deposits, savings accounts, and certain money market deposits is the amount payable on
demand at the reporting date. The fair value of fixed-maturity cemﬁcates of deposit is estimated using the rates
currently offered for deposits of similar remaining maturities.

Short-Term Borrowmgs
The carrying amounts of federal funds purchased, borrowmgs under repurchase agreements, and other short-term
borrowings maturmg ‘within 90 days approximate their fair values. Fair values of other short-term borrowings are
estimated using discounted cash flow analyses on the Company’s current mcremental borrowing rates for similar types
of borrowmg arrangements, :

Commercial Paper / Other Borrowings |
The carrying amounts of commercial paper and other borrowings maturing w1th1n 90 days approximate their fair
values. Fair values of commercial paper and other borrowings are estimated usmg discounted cash flow analyses on
the Company’s cu:rent incremental borrowing rates for similar types of borrowmg arrangements.

J
Federal Home Loan Bank Advances ; -
The fair values of the Company’s Federal Home Loan Bank advances are estlmated using discounted cash flow
analyses based on the Company’s current incremental borrowing rates for sumlar.typ&s of borrowing arrangements.

Subordinated Debt !

The values of the Company’s subordinated debt is variable rate instruments that reprice ﬁ'equently, therefore, carrying
value is assumed to appmxtmate fair value.

Accrued Interest

The carrying amounts of accrued interest approximate fair value. :
Off-Balance-Sheet Financial Instruments i
The fair value of commitments to extend credit is estimated using the fees currently charged to enter into similar
agreements, taking into account the remaining terms of the agreements andiithe present creditworthiness of the
counterparties, For fixed-rate loan commitments, fair value also considers thel difference between current levels of

interest rates and the committed rates. -
N - I‘ ‘

i
The fair value of stand-by letters of credit is based on fees currently charged for s1m11ar agreernents or on the estimated
cost to terminate them or otherwise settle the obligations with the counterparties at the reporting date.

At December 31, 2006, and 2005, the fair value of loan commitments and stand-by letters of credit was immaterial.
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(Dollars in Thousands, except share data) !
. ;

|
The estimated fair values of the Company’s financial instruments are as follows:

. 2006, .. 2005
Carrying Fair Canrying Fair
Amount Valne 7 Amount Value =

Financial assets:

Cash and short-term investments i 3 57,635 $ 57,635 $ 48,016 . §$ 48,016

Securities 264,141 . 264,152 241,032 241,139
Loans held for sale 7.640 " 7,640 9,223 ° 9,223
Loans, net 1,203,132 1,187,290 1,129,495 1,117,476

Financial liabilities:
Deposits
Federal funds purchased and
securities sold under agreements

$ 1318281 § 1,312,005 § 1,255509 § 1,248,327

I
|
!
|
!
|
i
|
[
1
. |
Interest receivable ' | 8,197 - 8,197 6,583 6,583
‘ .
i
1
[ - - 15,890 15,890

to repurchase - it
Federal Home Loan Bank advances 65,000 65,065 40,000 39,878
Trust preferred capital notes 20,619 20,615 ZO,Gi 9 20,619
Other borrowings 59,193 . 59,193 25,322 25,322

t
|
-
Interest payable : l 4274 . 4,274 2,515 2,515
Note 23. Regulatory Matters I

The Company (on a consolidated basis) and the subsidiary banks are subject to various regulatory capital reqmrements
administered by the federal banking agencies, *Faﬂure to meet. minimum capital requirements can initiate certain
mandatory and possibly additional discretionary actions by regulators that, if undertaken, could have a direct material
effect on the Company's and subsidiary banks’ financial statements. Under capital adequacy guidelines and the
regulatory framework for prompt corrective action under FDICIA, the Company and the subsidiary banks must meet
specific capital guidelines that involve quantitative measures of their assets, liabilities, and certain off-balance-sheet
items as calculated under regulatory accounting practices. The capital amounts and classification are also subject to
qualitative judgments by the regulators about components, risk weightings, and other factors. Prompt corrective action
provisions are not applicable to bank holding'cox?panies. ' .

Quantitative measures established by regulationlto ensure capital adequacy require the Company and the subsidiary
banks to maintain minimum amounts and ratios (sct forth in the table below) of total and Tier 1 capital (as defined in
the regulations) to risk-weighted assets (as deﬁned) and of Tier 1 capital (as defined) to average assets (as defined).
Management believes, as of December 31, 2006 and 2005, that the Cornpany and subsidiary banks met all capltal
adequacy requirements to which they are subject!

As of December 31, 2006, the most recent notification from the Federal Reserve Bank and the Federal Deposit
Insurance Corporatlon categorized the subs:dlary banks as well capitalized under the regulatory framework for prompt -
corrective action. To be categorized as well capltahzed the institutions must maintain minimum total risk-based, Tier 1
risk-based, and Tier 1 leverage ratios as set forth in the following tables. There are no conditions or events since the
notification that management believes have changed the institutions’ category.

[
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VIRGINIA FINANCIAL GROUP, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
(Dollars in Thousands, except share data)

Minimum To Be Well
Capitalized Under. .
. Minimum Prompt Corrective
Actual _Capital Requirement Action Provisions
onnt Ratio ount ! Ratio Amount Ratio
, |
As of December 31, 2006: !
Total Capital (to Risk Weighted Assets): o . i
Consolidated ‘ © $ 168419 . 1244% $ 108,289 | 8.00% N/A N/A
Second Bank & Trust $ 47330 1448% $ 26,155 || 8.00% $ 32,694 10.00%
'Virginia Heartland Bank $ 28693 1165% $ 19,709 | 800% $ 24,636 10.00%
Planters Bank & Trust . % 88171 1150% $ 61310 || 8.00% $ 76,638 10.00%

Tier 1 Capital (to Risk-Weighted Assets): ;

“Consolidated $ 153,658 1135% $ 54,145 || 4.00% N/A NA
Second Bank & Trust $ 44235 1353% $ 13,078 | 4.00% $ 19616 6.00%
Virginia Heartland Bank $ 26107 1060% $ 9854 1| 400% $ 14,782 6.00%
Planters Bank & Trust $ 79353 1035% $ 30655 | 4.00% §$ 45983 6.00%

Tier 1 Capital (to Avcragc Assets):
‘Consolidated _§ 153,658 9.65% $ 63,694 400%  NA -N/A
Second Bank & Trust $ 44235 1025% $ 17,259 400% $ 21,574 5.00%
Virginia Heartland Bank ‘$ 26,107 895% $ 11,662 400% $ 14,577 " 5.00%
Planters Bank & Trust $ 79353 . .944% $ 33,638 400% $ ' 42,048 . 500%
As of December 31, 2005;
Total Capital (to Risk Wexghted Assets): ) t .
. Consolidated g $ 153,227 12.18% $ 100,633 || 8.00% NA N/A
Second Bank & Trust $ 45217 1256% $ 28,795 || 800% $ 3599 10.00%
Virginia Heartland Bank $ 26032 1098% § 18975 | 800% $ 23719 10.00%
Planters Bank & Trust $§ 75869 11.50% $ 52,756 | 800% $ 65945 10.00%
Tier 1 Capital (to Risk chghted Asgets): |
Consolidated : $ 139,528  11.09% § 50316 || 4.00% N/A NA
Second Bank & Trust ' $§ 41300 1147% $ 14398 | 4.00% $ 21,596 6.00%
" Virginia Heartland Bank - $ 23,559 993% $ 9488 | 400% $ 14231 6.00%
Planters Bank & Trust . $§° 68678 1041% $ 26378 sl 4.00% $ 39,567 6.00%
Tier 1 Capital (to Avcrage Asscta) : t - N .
Consolidated : $ 139,528 932% $ 59,893 | 4.00% N/A N/A

. Second Bank & Trust, $ 41,300 9.00% $ 18364 | 4.00% $ 23,005 5.00%
Virginia Heartland Bank $ 23,559 849% 8§ 11,100 | 400% $ 13875 5.00%
Planters Bank & Trust § 68978 . 896% § I 400% §$ 38305 5.00%

|
i
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, VIRGINIA FINANCIAL GROUP, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES S
| Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements »

Note 24 Parent Company Only Fmancnal Statements '

. Assets

Cash andi due from banks

~ Securities available for sale
- Investment in subsidiaries
Premises and equipment, net

Income taxes receivable
Accrued interest receivable
Bank owned life insurance
Deferred income tax asset
Other assets

" Total assets

- Liabilities

Subordinated debt’
Commercial paper
Other liabilities -

Total liabilities -

Stockholders' Equity

" Preferred stock

Comimon stock

.- Additional paid-in capital

Retained earnings

!

|
N
N
|

|

VIRGINIA FINANCIAL GROUP INC.

(Parent Company Only)

Balance Sheets

!
7 Deccmber 31, 2006 and 2005

Accumulated other comprehenswe loss net
Total stockholders' equity l

Total liabilitips and stockhcl)ldéi's' equity

7

;
l
|

2006 . 2005
12,500 '$ . 21,791
42,173 . T174
167,575 » . 151,043 -
1,663 1,997
311 .22
- 533 .30 .
3,730 I
575 555
5,116 t 3583 .
234,176 §  186,195...
20,619 .. $ 20,619
58,632 . . 24,480
4273 © 4,991
83,524 - $§ 50,090
- $ -
10,784 - 10,759
. 33,970 33,298
106,924 94,061
(1,026) (2,013)
150,652  $ 136,105
234176 $ 186,195
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VIRGINIA FINANéML GROUP, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES -
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

. (Dollars in Thousandéﬁ)
| | .
f VIRGINIA FINANCIAL GROUP, INC.
, l (Parent Company Only) - ‘
l |
Statements of Income , i
! Years Ended December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004|
j |
L it
|
i 2006 2005 2004
Income | . V
Dividends from subsidiaries $ 12,500 $ 2750 oo
Interest on investments ‘ .
" Taxable § 2,099 421 112
Nontaxable -} 33 4 12 . -
Dividends ; 30 18 30
Management fee i income 13,016 9,461 - 1,520
(Loss) gain on salc of securities (18) 296 (232)
*. Miscellaneous income ' ‘ 219 - 145 111
Total income § 27,879 $ 13,103 7,541
Expenses i .
Compensation and :employeg benefits : $ 9127 . $ ' 6,893 _ 4,8.8'1
- Supplies and equipment - 1,544 1,441 1,724
- Professional fees | 585 604 643
Director fees [ 265 257 275
Interest : 3911 i 1,516 - 723
Other operating expenses . 2,419 7 1,906 1,551
Total expenses:, : $ 17851 | $ 12617 9,797
. i .
‘Income (loss) before income tax benefit and - ] ) . , o
undistributed equity in subsidiaries $ 10,028 || $ 486 (2,256) .
P . . '
" Income tax beneﬁt? 917 776 ° . 885
|
Income (loss) before undistributed equlty , : T
in subsidiaries| $ 10945 || $ 1262 (1,371)
! . _
Undistributed eqLity in subsidiaries © 8,552 16,954 16,574
| : S
‘Netincome $ 19,497 $ 18216 15,203.
b
:'é. e
i
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VIRGINIA FINAN CIAL GROUP, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements l
(Dollars in Thousands) | '

VIRGINIA FINANCIAL GROUP, INC.

(Pa'rent Company Oniy)

e T Statements of Cash Flows

Years Ended December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004

12,500

‘ 2006 2005 2004
Cash Flows from Operatmg Actwities : B :
Nét income Co $ 19,497 18,216, $ 15203
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash . - { ‘ st '
provided by operating activities:
' Depreciation : o ’ 854 986" 1,084
- Deferred tax benefit (24 a3 (1
~ Employee benefit plan expense ) 80 80 .39
_ Stock-based compensation expense | 5420 32 .0 - 201
(Gain) loss on sale of securities available for sale - C(206). 0 232
Amortization of security premiums and ) o . - B
accretion of discounts, net | {278) - {36) (57)
Undistributed eamings of subsidiaries | (8,552) (16,954) (16,574)
Income on bank owned life insurance (85) C- e o=
" (Increase) decrease in taxes receivable (289) 68 i16.
Increase in accrued interest receivable (503) 6) (24)
Increase in other assets (1,535) (463) (85) -
(Decrease) increase in other liabilities (1,124) 1,100 168
Net cash provided by operating activities ‘ 8 ‘8,461 2,888 - % 232
" Cash Flows from Investmg Activities ‘ S
“Proceeds from sales of securities available for sale |- ' $ . 1,582 . % 1,323
- Proceeds from maturities and prmc1pal pa}-ments of secunues . _ o v
.. available for sale . 15,000 . ) -
Purchasc of securities avaxlable for sale © . (49,382) (976) - (1237 .
Purchase of premises and equipment - | (594) (1,043) .- (376)
T Pmceedsﬁnmsaleofprcmls&eandeqmpment ; 74 ., TR E
Proceeds from sale foreclosed assets 1 - - - 534
Purchase of foreclosed assets ' v - - - (547)
Purchase of bank owned life insvrance : (3,645) - e
Capital contributed to subsidiary - (7,000) - (3,000)
Net cash used in investing activities | $  (45:547) (430 $  (9,303)
" Cash Flows from Financing Activities I 5 ‘
Net increase in commercial paper ] _ $ 34,152 24,480 '$ -
Net decrease in other borrowings ‘ - - (6,500)-
Issuance of subordinated debt - u - - 20,619
Proceeds from exercise of stock options - 277 144 38
-Cash dividends paid (6,634) (6,024) {5,589)
Net cash provided by financing activities $ 27,795 18,600 $ 8,568 .
{Decrease) increase in cash and cash equivalents I B $ (9,291) 21,051 $ (503)
- Cash and Cash Equivalents
Beginning . 21,791 . 740 1,243
Ending $ 21,791 §-

740
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VIRGINIA FINANCIAL GROUP, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements S
(Dollars in Thousands)

Note 25. Unaudited Interim Financisl Infdrmaﬁon

The results of operations for each of the quarters dutmg the two years ended December 31, 2006 and-
2005 are summarized below: - Do : ,|
: . . N 2006

; Quarter Ended
March 31, June 30,! September 30, December 31,

|

Interest income R $ 22173 $ 23464 5 . 24751 § 25239
Interest expense ) 7,308 8,222 9,582 10,370
Net interest income ) A 14,865 15,242 15,169 - 14,869
Provision for loan losses . 510 100 ' - 140
Total net interest income after provision 14,355 15,1}?}2 15,169 14,729
Non interest income 3,726 3,879 3,898 3,982
Non interest expense ‘ 11,647 11,455 1,759 12,057
Income before income taxes ’ . 6,434 1,566 7,308 6,654
Provision for income taxes ' 1,971 2,326 2,239 1,929
‘Net incorne : 14,463 5,240 5069 4,725
Net incormne per share : E , ; - : '
basic 0.41 0.49 047 - 0.44
diluted , 0.41 048 047 0.44
! 1 2008
. _ Quarter Ended '
. o K March 31, June 30,5 J September 30, December 31,
Interest income $ 18584 § 19, sos $ 20,697 $ 21,920
Interest expense - . 5,398 5, 718 6,040 6,705
Net interest income ) 13,186 13 7;3"1 14,657, 15,215
Provision for loan losses 546 546 ' 503 417
Total net interest income after provision 12,640 13,241 14,154 14,798
Non interest income 3,694 4, 085 3,870 3,794
Non interest expense : 10,534 10, 801 11,094 11,273
Income before income taxes 5,800 6, 525 . 6,930 o 1319
Provision for income taxes 1,787 2, 054 - 2211 2,306
‘" Net income : 4,013 4, - 4,719 5,013
Net income per share S ' .
 basic 0.37 0.42 0.44 047
t

diluted . - 037 041 0.43 0.46
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Item 9. CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUNTANTS ON- ACCOUNTING
AND FINANCIAL DISCLOSURE ] '

|
I
|
i

Not applicable.

Item 9A. CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES | -

|
Disclosure Controls and Procedures. The Company, under the supervision and with the participation of
the Company’s management, including the Company s Chief Executive Officer and the Chief Financial
. Officer, has evaluated the effectiveness of the Company’s disclosure controls and procedures as of the
end of the period covered by this report. Based on that evaluation, the Chief Executive Officer and the
Chief Financial Officer have concluded that as of December 31, 2006 the Company’s disclosure controls
and procedures were effective to ensure that information required to be disclosed by the Company in
reports that it files or submits under the! Securities Exchange Act of 1934 is recorded, processed,
summarized and reported within the time penods specified in Securities and Exchange Commission rules
and regulations ‘and that such mformation is accumulated and communicated to the Company’s’
management, including the Company’s Ciuef Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, -as
appropriate to allow timely decisions regarding required disclosure. Because of the inherent limitations in
all control systems, no evaluation of controls can provide absolute assurance that the Company’s
disclosure controls and procedures will detect or uncover every situation involving the failure of persons
within the Company or its subsidiary to disclose material information otherwise required to be set forth
in the Company’s periodic reports. l

Management's Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting. Management of the Company is
responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate internal control over financial reporting as defined
in Rule 13a-15(f) under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934. The Company’s internal control over
financial reporting is designed to provide reasonable assurance to the Company’s management and board
of directors regarding the reliability of ﬁnancxal reporting and the preparation of financial statements for
external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principals.

}
Because of its inherent limitations, mternal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect
misstatements. Therefore, even those systems determined to be effective can provide only reasonable

assurance with respect to financial statement preparation and presentation.

: \
Management assessed the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control over financial reporting as of
December 31, 2006. In making this asseesment management used the criteria set forth by the Committee
.. of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission (*COSQO”} in Internal Control — Integrated
Framework. Based on our assessment, we believe that, as of December 31, 2006, the Company’s internal
. control over financial reporting was effective based on those criteria.
Management’s assessment of the effectlveness of internal control over financial reporting as of
December 31, 2006 has been audited by Grant Thornton, L.L.P., the independent registered publtc
accounting fnm who also audited the Company’s consolidated financial statements included in this
Annual Report on Form 10-K. Grant Thomton, LLP’s attestation report on management’s assessment of
the Company’s internal control over financial reporting follows this report.

|

|
|
|
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_ i
REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNT(]N G FIRM
i
The Shareholders and Directors of il
Virginia Financial Group, Inc. and subsidiaries

We have audited management's assessment, included in the accompanying Management s Report on Internal Control
Over Financial Reporting, that Virginia Financial Group, Inc. (a Virginia Corporatlon) and subsidiaries maintained

_ effective internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2006, based on criteria established in /nternai

Control—Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring!: Orgamzatlons of the Treadway
Commission (COSO). Virginia Financial Group’s management is responsible’ for maintaining effective internal
control over financial reporting and for its assessment of the effectiveness of mtema} control over financial reporting.
Our regponsibility is to express an opinion on management's assessment and an opxmon on the effectiveness of the
company’s mlemal control over financial reporting basod on our audit. i

We conducted our.audit in-accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board
(United States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtam reasonable assurance about -
whether effective internal control over financial reporting was maintained in all matenal respects. Our audit included
obtaining an understanding of internal control over financial reporting, evaluatmg maenagement's assessment, testing
and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control, and pe:;formmg such other procedures as
we considered necessary in the clrcmnstances We believe that our audit prowdes a reasonable basis for our
opinions.

A company's internal control over financial reporting is a process designed‘ to provide reasonable assurance
regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statcments for external purposes in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company’s mtemal control over financial reporting
includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of rccords that, in reasonable detail,
accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable
assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of fmanc1al statements in accordance with
generally accepted accounting pnncxplm and that receipts and expendituzes of l.he company are being made only in
accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the comparny; and (3) provide reasonable assurance

. regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acqulsmon, use, or d18posmon of the company’s assets that

could have a material effect on the ﬁnancml statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect misstatements.
Also, projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that controls may become

inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance w1th the policies or procedures may

deteriorate.

|
‘

In our opinion, management's assessment that Vu’gmm Financial Group, Inc. mmntamod effective internal control
over financial reporting as of December 31, 2006, is fairly stated, in all matenal respects, based on criteria
established in Internal Control—Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the
Treadway Commission (COS0). Also in our opinion, Virginia Financial Group, Inc. maintained, in all material
respects, effective internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2006 based on criteria established in
Internal Control—Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsormg Orgamzatlons of the Treadway
Commission (COSO). :

We also have audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accountmg Oversight Board {United
States), the consolidated balance sheet of Virginia Financial Group, Inc. and its] subs:dmnos as of December 31,
2006, and the related consolidated statements of income, shareholders’ equity, and cash flows for the year ended
December 31, 2006 and our report dated March 2, 2007 expressed an unquahﬁed opinion con those financial
statements,

;
|
3
'
4

GEA'\DT \-\OEMTON) \—-\’p

Raleigh, North Caroliza 1‘
March 2, 2007 :
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. I I '
Changes in Internal Control Over Financial Reporting. -

_ F | '
There has been no change in VFG’s intemnal control over financial reporting during the fiscal quarter

ended December 31, 2006 that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, VFG’s
internal control over ﬁnanclal reportmg

.
Item 9B. OTHER INFORMATION
Not applicabie. _ E

I' PART III
Item 10, DIRECTORS AND EXECUTIVE OFFICERS OF THE REG!SM-

The information with respect to the directors of the Company is contained in the Company s 2007 Proxy
Statement under the caption, “Eléction of Dlrectors” and is incorporated herein by reference. The

information regarding the Section 16(a) reportmg requirements of the directors and executive officers is ™
contained in the 2007 Proxy Statement under the caption, “Section 16(a) Beneficial Ownershlp Reporting -

Compliance,” and is incorporated herein by reference. The information concerning executive officers of
the Company is included in Part 1 of this Form 10-K under the caption, “Executive Officers of the
Registrant.” Information with respect to the Company s Audit and Compliance Committee and its audit
committee financial expert are contained m the Company’s 2007 Proxy Statement under the caption
“Corporate Governance and Board Matters,” |and is incorporated herein by reference. :
| )

VFG has adopted a code of ethics for its principal executive officer and chief financial officer as well es
a Directors Code of Professional Conducti for its directors. These documents can be found under

.corporate “Govcmance Documcnts” at www,yfgi.net. Stockholders may request a free printed copy of

each from;

Virginia Financial Group, Inc.,
Attention: Investor Relations
102 S. Main Street .
Culpeper, Virginia 22701

Audit and Comphance Commlttee Flnanmal Expert

The Board. of Directors has determined that Jan S. Hoover, Vice Chairperson of the Aidit and
Compliance Committee, is a financial expert and is independent undcr the rules of the Exchange Act and
NASDAQ Stock Market, Inc, as currently in effect

|
Item 11. EXECUTIVE COMPENSAEON

Information rega:dmg executive and darector compensation is set forth under the caption “Executlve
Compensauon in the 2007 Proxy Statement and is incorporated herein by reference.
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Ttem 12. SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL O_WNERS AND

MANAGEMENT AND RELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS :
J
Information regardmg secunty interest of certain beneficial owners and management is set forth under the
caption “Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management” in the Proxy Statement,
and is incorporated herein by reference. The information in the 2007 Proxy Statemnent under the caption
“Securities Authorized for Issuance under Equity Compensation Plans” is mcorporated herein by reference.

Item 13. CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANSACTIONS '
|

Information regarding certain relationships and related transactions" is set forth under “Certain

Relationships and Related Transactlons” in the 2007 Proxy Statcment,f and is incorporated herein by
reference. . . . i

Item 14, PRIN CIPAL ACCOUNTANT FEES AND SERVICES '

Infonnatlon regarding principal auditor fees and services is set forth undert I “Principal Accountant Fees and
Services™ in the 2007 Proxy Statement, and is incorporated herein by reference
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PARTIV

Item 15. EXII[B.ITS AND FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULES
= . , :

The following documents are filed as part of; this report:

-

(al(l) Financial Statements, _A |

The financial statements are

e

filed as part of this report under Item 8 — “Financial

Statements and Supplemental Data.”

i

(b)(2) Finaucial Statement Schedules_

All schedules are omitted slrgcc they are not required, are not applicable, or the required
information is shown in the consolidated financial statements or notes thereto.

(a)(3) Exhiblts

f
,I

The following exhibits are either ﬁled{ as part of this Report or are incorporated herein by

reference:

Exhibit No,

Exhibit No.

“Exhibit No.
Exhibit No.
.Exhibit No.
Exhibit No.

Exhibit No.

" Exhibit No.

Exhibit No.

31

32

10.3* |

10.4*

10.5*

10.6*

10.7*.

10.8*

10.9*

Articles of I[ncorporation.

Bylaws, mcorporated by refercnoe to Exhibit 3.2 to l"orm 8-K filed on
J anuary 30, |2002

Virginia Fmanmal Group, Inc. Stock Incentive Plan, dated January 18,

. 2002, 1ncorporated by reference to Exhibit 99 0 to Form S-8 filed on
- February 26, 2002.

| : ,
Employmcﬂt Agreement dated March 7, 2005 between Virginia

.Financial Group, Inc. and O. R. Barham, Jr., incorporated by reference '
to Exhibit 10.4 to Form 10K filed on March 15, 2005.

" Employment Agreement dated March 7, 2005 between Virginia

F_inancial Group, Inc. and Jeffrey W. Farrar, incorporated by reference to

- Exhibit 10.|5 to Form 10K filed on March 15, 2005.

'Employment Agreement, datccl June 30, 2005, between Virginia

Financial Group, Inc. and Litz H. Van Dyke, incorporated by reference
to Exhibit 10 1 to Form 8-K filed on July 1, 2005.

I
Employment Agreement, dated March 7, 2007, between Vtrgmla
Financial ﬁroup, Inc. and James T. Huerth.

Employment Agreement, dated March 7, 2007, betwccn Vtrglnla
Financial Group, Inc. and Richard L. Saunders.

Non-Qualiﬁed Directors Deferred Compensation Plan, incorporated by
reference to' Exhibit 10.7 to Form 10K filed on March 14, 2006.
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Exhibit No. 10.10*
!

Exhibit No. 10.11
Exhibit No. 10.12
Exhibit No. 10.13
Exhibit No. 11

Exhibit No. 21
Exhibit No. 23.1
Exhibit No, 23.2

Exhibit No. 31.1
. Exhibit No. 31.2

Exhibit No. 32

' Annual Compensation

|
Non-Qualified Executive Deferred Compi:nsatlon Plan, incorporated by
reference to Exhlblt 10.8 to Form 10K ﬁled on March 14, 2006.

Virginia Financial Group, Inc. Execunve,klncentive Plan dated March I,
2005, incorporated by reference to Exhlblt 10.11 to Form 10K filed on -
March 15, 2003.

| .
Schedule of Virginia Financial Group, ,1nc Non—Employee Directors’
!

Schedule of 2007 Base Salaries for Named Executive Qfficers of Virginia

Financial Group, Inc.

Computation of per share earnings, mcorp(!,vrated by reference to note 1 of
the consolidated financial statements mcorporated by reference herein.

Subsidianies of Registrant.
Consent of Independent Auditors. X
Consent of Independent Auditors. l

Certification of Chief Executive Officer pﬁlrsuant to Rule 13a-14(a) of the
Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended.

Certification of Chief Financial Officer pursuant to Rule 13a-14(a) of the
Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amend’;?d.

Certification of Chief Executive Officerj and Chief Financial Officer
pursuant to 18 U.S.C. 1350, as adopted - pursuant to Section 906 of the
Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002. |

* Denotes management contract.

1
|

Signatures

- Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15{d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant has
" duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned thereunto duly authonized.

Virginia Fmancia] Group, Inc.
Culpeper, Virginia

/s/ Q.R. Barham, Jr,

Virginia Financial Group, fne.i|
Culpeper, Virginia ’l

/sl Jeffrey W, Farrar |

O.R. Barham, Jr.

Jeffrey W. Farrar

President and Chief Executive Officer Executive Vice President and- Prmc:pal Accounting Officer

Date: March 14, 2007

Date: March 14, 2007
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{s/ Taylor E. Gore

Signature

Taylor E. Gore

* fsf Lee S. Baker

Lee S. Baker

/s/ Fred D, Bowers

Fred D. Bowers

/s/_E. Page Butler

E. Page Butler

-Is/_Gregory L. Fisher

* Gregory L. Fisher

/s/ 'ChﬁsfopherM. Hallberg - -

Christopher M. Hallberg

/s/ Jan S. Hoover .

- Jan S. Hoover

s

/s/ ‘Martin F. Lighisey

Martin F. Lightsey

/s/ P. William Moore, Jr.

P. William Moore, JIr. =

Chairman of the
Board of Directors

9]
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Capacity

Director

" Director

Director

Director

Director
Director

Director

D:ite

March1 4, 2007
.Mi-ﬂ‘ch:m,‘zdd'? 2
Mémh'.p.;’ 2007
March 14, 2007
March .14,-2 007
Niarc; 1.4;2067 |
March 14,-26 07

March.14, .200;7

March 14, 2007 .




Date

March 14, 2007

March 14, 2007

ature

- Si

4

ish

H. Wayne
H. Wayne Parrish

Director

Ir.

F.Wilh

Thomas F. Williams, Jr.

/
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CERTIFICATIONS
I, O.R. Barham, Jr., certify that:
1.

2,

Date: March 14, 2007

&
|
:
E Exhibit 31.1
|
I
l

I
I have reviewed this annual report on Form 10;-K of Virginia Financial Group, Inc.;

Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a
material fact necessary to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements
were made, not misleading with respect to the penod covered by this report

Based on my knowledge the financial statements and other financial mformauon included in this report, fairly
present in all material respects the financial condmon, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as
of, and for, the periods presented in this repor't

. |
The registrant’s other certifying officer and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls
and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rulm 13a-15(¢) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial
reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 133 15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and have:

(a) Designed such disclosure controls and pr!ocedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be
designed under our supervision, to ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its
consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities, particularly during the period
in which this report is being prepared

(b) Designed such internal control over fmanc:al reporling, or caused such internal control over ﬁnanc:al
réporting to be designed under our supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of

financial reporting and the preparation of financial statcments for external purposes in accordance with

generally accepted accounting principles;

{¢) Evaluated the effectiveness of the reglstrant s disclosure controls and procedures and presented ‘in this
report our conclusions about the effectxveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the
period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and :

I
(d) Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that occurred
" during the registrant’s most recent ﬁscal quarter (the registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an
annual report) that has materially aﬁ'ected or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the registrant’s
. internal control over ﬁmmcml repomng ?ud

The registrant’s other cerufymg officer and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal
control over financigl reporting, to the reglstnmt s auditors and the audit committee of the registrant’s board of
directors (or persons performing the equlvalelllt functions): -

. : r

(a) All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over
financial reporting which are reasonably}hkely to adversely affect the reglstrant’s ability to record, process,
summarize and report financial information; and

(b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a sugmﬁcant .

role in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting,

/s/ O. R. Barham, Jr.

O.R. Barham, Jr.
President & Chief Executive Officer
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; Exhibit 31.2
I, Jeffrey W. Farrar, certify that:

1. Thave reviekvcd this annual report on Form 10-K of Virginia Financial Group " JInc,; . - .
2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a matenal fact or omit to state a
material fact necessary to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements
were made not misleading with respect to the period covered by this rcport, ]

|
I

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial mformanon included in this report, fairly
present in all material respects the financial condition, results of operatlons 'and cash flows of the reglstrant as
of, and for, the periods presented in thlS report; : : b :

4. The regxstrant s other certifying ofﬁcer and Tare respons1ble for &stabhshmg and mamtamng dlsclosure oonl:rols
and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and lSd—lS(e)) and internal control over financial .
reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-1 5() and 15d-15(f)) for the reglstrant and have:

(a) Des1gned such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such dxsclosure controls and procedures to be
designed under our supervision, to ensure that material information ne!atmg to the registrant, including its
consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those enun&s pamcularly dunng the penod
in which this report is bemg preparcd., R |

) Dcs1gned such mternal ccmtrol over financial reporting, or caused such mtcmal control over financial
reporting to be designed under our supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of
financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for extemal purposes in accordance with
generally accepted accountmg pnnc1ples . : { ¢

o , I

(c) Evaiuatod the’ eﬂ'cctweness of the reglstrant’s dtsclosure controls and‘ procedu:es and presented in this
report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the
period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and

Lo

Ad) Dlsclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s intemal control over financial reporting that occurred
during the registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the repistrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an
.. annual report) that has materially, affected, .or is reasonably likely to} matenal]y affect, the reglstrant s
_ internal control over financial reporting; and oL i
5. The reglstrant s other certifying officer and I have disclosed, based on ourﬁlnost reccnt evaluanon of mtcmal
control over, financial reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of the registrant’s board of

dlrectors (or persons performmg the equivalent functions): |
(a) Al significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or lopf:ration of internal control over
-financial reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the reglstrant s ability to record, process,
summarize and report financial information, and ‘
|
(b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant

role in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting.

Date: March 14, 2007 ]‘

/s/ Jeffrey W. Farrar \'

|
| Teffrey W. Farrar, CPA|
Executive Vice Presidql?t and Chief Financial Officer

1
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| Exhibit 32
Sectio)nT 1350 Certifications
{
Certiﬁcatlon of Chlef Executlve Off' cer and Chief Financial Officer

Pursuant to 18 U. S C. Section 1350, as Adopted
Pursuant to Sectlon 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

I
[

The undersngned, as the Chlcf Executive Ofﬁcer and. Chief Financial Officer of Virginia Financial
Group, Inc., respectlvcly, certify that the Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31,

© 2006, which accompanies this. certification fully complies with the requirements of Section 13(a) or

15(d), as applicable, of the Securities Exchangc Act of 1934 and the information contained in the Annual
Report on Form 10-K fairly presents, in all materlal respects, the financial condition and results of
operations of Vn'gmla Financial Group, Inc. i

|
[

/s/ O. R. Barham; Jr.

‘Date: March 14, 2007
President and Chief Executive Officer

l
{
i
: .
Date: March 14, 2007 - I /s/ Jeffrey W. Farrar
. i Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Ofﬁcer

A signed original of this written statement requu'ed by Section 906, or other document authcnﬁcahng,
acknowledging; or otherwise adopting the signatures that appear in typed form within-the electronic

-version of this written statement required by Section 906, has been provided to Virginia Financial Group,

Inc. and will be retained by Virginia Financial Group, Inc. and furnished to the Securities and Exchange
Commission or its staff upon request.

|
|
|
i
|

|
!
I
|
|
[
|
|
I
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designed by ¢urran & connors, inc. { www.curran-connors.com

‘President & CEQ

i
v

SHAREHOLDER REFERENCE

PRINCIPAL OFFIICERS
O. R. Barham, |r.

leffrey W, Farrar“
Executive Vice President & CFO

Litz H. Van Dyke
Executive Vice Prelsrdenr & COO

Corporate Headquarters
102 South Main Street
Culpeper, VA 22701

(540} 829-1633 |

(540) 825-0834 (Fax)
www.vigi.net

INVESTOR RELATIONS

Shareholders, analysts, and others seeking
information about Virginia-Financial Group,
Inc. are invited to contact:

Jeffrey W. Farrar
Executive Vice President and
Chief Financial Officer

{434) 9642217 |

(434) 964-2210 (Fax)
farrasf@vigi.net

Copies of the Company’s earnings releases
and other financial’ publications, including
the Annual Report on SEC Form 10K filed
with the U.S. SECUI’IUCS and Exchange
Commission, are avallablc without charge
upon request.

Information.abaut the Company’s fmancual
performance may also be found at
www.vigl.net. Earnmgs releases, dividend
announcements, and other.press releases
are typically available at this site within

10 minutes of issuance. In addition, share-
holders wishing to receive e-mail notifica-

lion each time a news release, corporate

event, or SEC filing has been posted may
arrange to do so by visiting the web site
and following the instructions listed under
“E-mail Notification.”

f,
SHAREHOLDER ACCOUNT
INQUIRIES \

To expedite changes of address, the transfer
of shares, the consalidation of accounts,
or the replaccmt_nt of stock certificates or
dividend checks, shareholders ase asked
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to contact the Company’s stock registrar,
transfer agent, and dividend disbursement
agent directly:

REGISTRAR AND TRANSFER
COMPANY

Altention: Investor Relations
10 Commerce Drive
Cranford, New Jersey 07016
(800) 368-5948
info@rtco.com

www. rtCo.com

Irr alf correspondence with Registrar and

“Transfer Company, be sure to mention
Virginia Financial Group, Inc. and 1o pro-
vide your name as it appears on your stock
certificate, along with your social security
number, daytime phone number, and
current address.

In addition, individual investors may report
a change of address, request a shareholder
account transcript, place a stop on a certi-
ficate, or obtain a variety of forms, includ-
ing a duplicate 1099, by logging onto
www.rtco.com and clicking on “Investor.
Services.”

DIVIDEND REINVESTMENT AND .
STOCK PURCHASE PLAN

Under the Company’s Dividend Reinvest-
ment and Stock Purchase Plan, registered
shareholders may purchase additional

. shares of Virginia Financial Group, Inc.

by reinvesting their cash dividends and by
making optional cash contributions up to
twelve times a year. For more information

about the Plan, contact the Plan Admini-
strator, Registrar and Transfer Company, at
(800) 368:5948 or log onto wwv.vigi.net
and click on “DRIP/Stock Purchase” 10
view and download the Plan Prospectus
and enrollment form.

ANNUAL MEETING OF
SHAREHOLDERS

The Company’s Annual Meeting of Share-

-

" holders will be held at 10:00 a.m. Eastern

Time on Monday, May 14, 2007, at the
DoubleTree Hotel, 990 Hilton Heights,
Charlottesville, Virginia. Shareholders of
record as of March 15, 2007 are eligible
{o vote.

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS

Grant Thornton, LLP

4140 Parkl.ake Avenue

Suite 130

Raleigh, North Carolina 27612

STOCK LISTING

Shares of Virginia Financial Group, Inc.
are traded under the symbol “VFGI” on
The Nasdaq National Market®, Price infor-
mation appears daily in major regional
newspapers under similar abbreviations
of the Company’s name and can be
viewed at www.vfgi.net.
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